Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Culture and Communities Committee
10.00 am Tuesday, 26th January, 2021

Virtual Meeting - via Microsoft Teams

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to watch the live
webcast on the Council’s website.
The law allows the Council to consider some issues in private. Any items under “Private
Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be recorded in the minute.

Contacts
Email:

natalie.le.couteur@edinburgh.gov.uk / blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk

Tel:

0131 529 6160 / 0131 529 4085

1. Order of Business

1.1

Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

2. Declaration of Interests
2.1

Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

3. Deputations
3.1

If any

4. Minutes
4.1

Minute of Culture and Communities Committee of 17 November
2020– submitted for approval as a correct record

7 - 14

5. Forward Planning
5.1

Work Programme

15 - 16

5.2

Rolling Actions Log

17 - 30

6. Business Bulletin
6.1

Business Bulletin

31 - 52

7. Presentations
7.1

PLAtforms for Creative Excellence (PLACE)

Verbal
Report

7.2

Outdoor Learning Map

Verbal

Culture and Communities Committee - 26 January
2021

Page 2 of 5

Report
7.3

Thriving Green Spaces

Verbal
Report

8. Executive Decisions
8.1

Thriving Green Spaces – Report by the Executive Director of
Place – Report by the Executive Director of Place

53 - 58

8.2

Festivals and Events Core Programme 2021/22 – Report by the
Executive Director of Place

59 - 68

8.3

City Centre Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Measures Update Report –
Report by the Executive Director of Place

69 - 74

8.4

Declaration of Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park as
Local Nature Reserves – Report by the Executive Director of
Place

75 - 82

8.5

Public Realm CCTV Update – Report by the Head of Safer and
Stronger

83 - 88

8.6

Place Revenue Monitoring Update - Month 7 – Report by the
Executive Director of Place

89 - 96

8.7

Community Centres and Libraries Reopening (Update) - Report
by the Executive Director of Place

97 - 126

9. Routine Decisions
9.1

Edinburgh Million Tree City – Report by the Executive Director of
Place

127 - 134

9.2

Internal Audit: Overdue Findings and Key Performance Indicators
at 30 October 2020 – referral from the Governance, Risk and
Best Value Committee

135 - 240

10. Motions

Culture and Communities Committee - 26 January
2021

Page 3 of 5

10.1

if any

Andrew Kerr
Chief Executive

Committee Members
Councillor Donald Wilson (Convener), Councillor Amy McNeese-Mechan (ViceConvener), Councillor Mark Brown, Councillor Phil Doggart, Councillor Karen Doran,
Councillor David Key, Councillor Max Mitchell, Councillor Hal Osler, Councillor Susan
Rae, Councillor Alex Staniforth and Councillor Ethan Young.

Information about the Culture and Communities Committee
The Culture and Communities Committee consists of 11 Councillors and is appointed
by the City of Edinburgh Council.

Further information
If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Natalie Le Couteur, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre
2.1, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 529 6160 /
0131 529 4085, email natalie.le.couteur@edinburgh.gov.uk /
blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk.
The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council
committees can be viewed online by going to www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol.

Webcasting of Council meetings
Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed. The Council is a Data Controller under the General Data
Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018.
We broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of
the public to observe the democratic process. Data collected during this webcast will be
retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy including, but not limited to,
for the purpose of keeping historical records and making those records available via the
Council’s internet site.
Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or
otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical
record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter

Culture and Communities Committee - 26 January
2021

Page 4 of 5

until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and
other connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as part
of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above. If you have any
queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or storage of any
particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial damage or distress
to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Culture and Communities Committee - 26 January
2021

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4.1
Minutes
Culture and Communities Committee
10.00am, Tuesday 17 November 2020
Present
Councillors Wilson (Convener), McNeese-Mechan (Vice-Convenor), Arthur (substituting
for Councillor Doran), Brown, Dixon (substituting for Councillor Fullerton), Doggart, Key,
Mitchell, Osler, Staniforth and Rae.

1.

Minutes

Decision
To approve the minute of the Culture and Communities Committee of 15 September
2020 and 30 October 2020 as correct records.

2.

Work Programme

Decision
To note the Work Programme.
(Reference – Work Programme 17 November 2020, submitted.)

3.

Rolling Actions Log

The Culture and Communities Committee Rolling Actions Log was presented.
Decision
1)

To note that officers were engaged with stakeholders regarding the Public
Space Management Plan and thereafter would carry out a consultation once the
Committee had been provided with the draft and to circulate an update to
members.

2)

To note the Rolling Actions Log.

3)

To update the rolling actions log to reflect decisions taken at this meeting and
otherwise note the outstanding actions.

(Reference – Culture and Communities Committee Work Programme
November 2020, submitted.)

4.

Business Bulletin

Decision
To note the business bulletin.

Page 7

(Reference – Culture and Communities Committee Work Business Bulletin 17
November 2020, submitted.)

5.

Presentation – Capital Theatres Company Performance Report
2019/20

Fiona Gibson, the Chief Executive of Capital Theatres Trust presented on activity
during 2019 and 2020. The focus of the presentation reflected on a successful period ,
however the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus from March 2020 had forced
theatres to close and had compromised income. Performances were being delivered
digitally while theatres had closed and this innovative solution had allowed for new
audiences to be reached however the loss of box office income, particularly associated
with pantomime season, and the uncertainty for when theatres would be permitted to
reopen were highlighted as areas for financial concern.
Decision
To note the presentation.
Declaration of Interests
Councillors McNeese-Mechan, Mitchell and Wilson declared non-financial interests in
the above item as Board Members for Capital Theatres Trust.

6.

– Capital Theatres Company Performance Report 2019/20

The seventh annual performance report was presented and prepared as a requirement
of the Services and Funding Agreement process which was adopted in 2013/14.
Capital Theatres had another successful year in 2019/20 which had offered a relevant
reference point from which to acknowledge the subsequent impacts of COVID-19
since March 2020. The continued strong financial and programme performance in
2019/20 had subsequently served to highlight the exceptional business resilience
and management of the Trust for the first several months of the crisis. Following a
short delay in progress and planning in the light of COVID-19, Capital Theatres now
continued with the development of the King’s Theatre Capital Project and formal
reporting would be re-introduced into the committee calendar.
Decision
1)

To note the positive performance of Capital Theatres during 2019/20.

2)

To note that the report focused on the COVID-19 crisis and the subsequent
fundamental impact and essential mitigation, advocacy and revised planning
activity which had to implemented by Capital Theatres since March 2020.

3)

To refer this report to Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee.

4)

The Executive Director of Place and Chief Executive of Capital Theatres to
consider how to engage with the Edinburgh Health and Health and Social Care
Partnership to explore opportunities for those resident in care homes with
dementia to share their stories and experiences, especially with respect to their

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 8

Page 2

experiences of restrictions in World War 2 and the synergies with life in
lockdown for school children also facing restrictions.
Declaration of Interests
Councillors McNeese-Mechan, Mitchell and Wilson declared non-financial interests in
the above item as Board Members for Capital Theatres Trust.
(Reference – report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

7.

Adelaide/Edinburgh Cultural Co-operation Project and
Memorandum of Understanding

An update on the successful visit to Adelaide by the Director of Culture in February
2019 and the equally positive return visit by the Chief Executive of the City of Adelaide
and the Associate Director, Customer and People to Edinburgh in August 2019 was
shared with Committee. Approval was sought to adopt the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) and the intended update on co-operation in 2020 between the
two cites had not taken place, as a direct result of the COVID-19 emergency.
Edinburgh and Adelaide would continue their co-operative relationship however due to
COVID-19, the plans for 2020 had been suspended and would to be reviewed. The
review would be informed by the planning impacts of COVID-19 on cultural recovery
priorities.
Decision
1)

To note the exchange of visits between Edinburgh and Adelaide between
February 2019 and August 2019.

2)

To note that the focus that was intended for 2020 on co-operation on Adelaide’s
aspirations to seek and secure UNESCO World Heritage Status for the Adelaide
Parklands and wider South Australia Hills had been directly impacted by the
COVID-19 emergency.

3)

To note that the relationship between the cities was retained and would be
informed by cultural recovery planning priorities;

4)

To approve the Memorandum of Understanding that the Council had approved
the Edinburgh International Activity priorities on future international engagement.

(Reference –report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted)

8.

Allotment and Food Growing Provision Update

An update on the allotment and food growing provision supported by the Council and
considered whether priority should be given to those applicants referred for horticultural
therapy by medical professionals.
Decision
1)

To note the measures undertaken to date to increase allotment provision and to
support and expand the network and the number of community gardens and
food growing initiatives.

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 9

Page 3

2)

To approve the process for applicants referred to the service by medical
professionals for horticultural therapy.

3)

To agree to consider different opportunities for food growing, such as food
growing on rooftops, taking into consideration issues such biodiversity.

(References – Policy and Sustainability Committee, 6 October 2020 (item 17); referral
from the Policy and Sustainability Committee submitted.)

9.

Cemetery Tour Guide Operator Registration Scheme

The Policy and Sustainability Committee had referred a report on the Council’s risk
appetite statement to the Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee for
consideration.
Decision
1)

To note the content of this report.

2)

To approve that a Cemetery Tour Guide Operator Registration Scheme be
introduced with a code of conduct.

3)

To approve that a review of the scheme and an update on progress would be
submitted to this committee on an annual basis.

Declaration of Interests
Councillor Staniforth declared a financial interest as he had worked as a tour guide and
had planned to work as a tour guide in the future and left the virtual teams meeting
during the Committee’s consideration of the above item.
(References –Culture and Communities Committee, 15 September 2020 (item 5);
report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

10.

Review of the Community Council Complaints Procedure

Minor changes were proposed to the Community Council Complaints Procedure to
provide additional clarity and improve the robustness of procedures.
Decision
1)

To agree that proposed changes to the Community Council Complaints
Procedure as detailed at Appendix 1 would take effect for complaints received
from 18 November 2020 onwards.

2)

To agree there would be a full review in 2 cycles and that consultation would
take place with all community councils to ensure that they were aware of what
was required and to give them the opportunity to comment on the proposals.

Declaration of Interests
Councillor Osler declared a non-financial interest in the above item as she was
previously a community councillor and her husband was a Community Councillor.
(Reference – report by the Chief Executive, submitted)

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 10

Page 4

11.

Appointment of Working Groups Update

Working Groups appointed by the Committee had not met during 2019 and 2020 and
the Committee agreed on 15 September 2020 to consider the ongoing relevance of
each of the Working Groups in consultation with the Working Group Chairs
Decision
1)

To agree to the ongoing appointment of the Meadowbank Sports Centre and
Stadium Working Group and the Tourism and Communities Working Group.

2)

To agree to conclude the CCTV Working Group.

3)

To agree to receive six monthly update reports updates and progress of the
Public Realm Upgrade, in lieu of the ongoing appointment of the CCTV Working
Group.

(References – Culture and Communities Committee, 15 September 2020 (item 7);
report by the Chief Executive, submitted.)

12.

Update on Cultural Strategy Diversity Programme

Since the commencement of the Diversity Officer’s post with the Culture Service in
September 2019, a series of activities and initiatives has been developed to best
understand and respond to the needs and ambitions of local ethnically diverse artists
and creatives. An update was provided on the programme of activities and projects
planned, developed and delivered with the aim of ensuring greater visibility and
recognition of the diversity of people and narratives in Edinburgh’s arts and culture
sector. It had also increased cross-sector partnership working and dialogue
surrounding diversity and inclusion in the arts and culture sector in Edinburgh.
Decision
1)

To note the progress of the Diversity Programme through developing the
network of ethnically diverse artists and creatives based in Edinburgh; and
creating programmes, initiatives and opportunities that respond to the needs of
the network.

2)

To note the partnerships developed with local arts, culture and community
organisations with the aim of increasing visibility and representation of ethnically
diverse artists and creatives, their work and narratives across the sector; and
promoting the importance of diversity and inclusion principles at workplace and
in decision-making processes as well as creating pathways into balanced
collaboration and co-curation.

3)

To agree that a Diversity and Inclusion Grant Programme report would be
provided in Autumn 2021 and to note that the recipient projects would be
monitored throughout the interim period;

4)

To agree that a Professional Development Programme outcomes report would
be provided in Autumn 2021;

5)

To agree that a final Diversity Programme Report including legacy outcomes and
next steps would be provided in Autumn 2021.

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 11

Page 5

6)

To engage with school pupils to ensure that they felt that they were represented
in the Diversity programme.

(Reference – report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

13.

Place Directorate - Revenue Monitoring 2020/21 – Month Five
Position

The projected month five revenue monitoring position for the Place Directorate services
was presented. The month five forecast was based on analysis of actual expenditure
and income to the end of August 2020, and expenditure and income projections for the
remainder of the 2020/2021 financial year.
Decision
1)

To note the Place ‘business as usual’ revenue budget forecast for 2020/2021
was a projected £1.710m overspend (excluding Covid-19 impact) including a
forecast budget underspend of £0.650m for services within the remit of this
Committee;

2)

To note the Place revenue budget forecast for 2020/2021 in respect of the net
cost impact of Covid-19 was forecast to be circa £28m. £3.616m of this budget
pressure related to services within the remit of this Committee;

3)

To note that the Executive Director of Place was taking measures to reduce
budget pressures and progress would be reported to Committee at agreed
frequencies.

Declaration of Interests
Councillor Rae declared a non-financial interest in as she
was a council house tenant who had been the target of anti-social behaviour.
(References – report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

14.

Motion by Councillor Doggart- Scottish Public Sector
Ombudsman Case reference 201906053 – Upheld Complaint
Against the Council

The following motion by Councillor Doggart was submitted in terms of Standing Order
17:
“Committee:
Notes the decision of the Scottish Public Services Ombudsman, Case
Reference 201906053, to uphold a complaint against Council regarding
its failure to take action to protect the complainer.
Further notes the Council had issued an apology following the decision of
the Ombudsman.
Asked for a report to Policy and Sustainability within two cycles of any
ongoing investigations being completed, or earlier if possible, detailing:

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 12

Page 6

1. Council policy regarding tenants against whom repeated allegations of
Anti-Social Behaviour have been made.
2. The responsibilities within the Council for delivering these policies.
3. The reasons that contributed to a failure in this case, including the
failure to keep reasonable records.
4. Any changes to policy or process that were being considered in light of
this case.
5. Reassurance that any consideration of the relocating any Council
tenants would strongly favour the victims over the perpetrators of alleged
Anti-Social behaviour.
6. Committee requests any decisions made by Policy and Sustainability
would be referred back to this Committee and Housing Homelessness
and Fair Work Committee for noting.”
- moved by Councillor Doggart, seconded by Councillor Brown
Decision
To approve the motion by Councillor Doggart.
Declaration of Interests
Councillor Rae declared a non-financial interest in as she
was a council house tenant who had been the target of anti-social behaviour.

15.

Resolution to Consider in Private

The Committee, in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973, excluded the public from the meeting during consideration of the following items
of business for the reason that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 8 and 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act.

16.

All Party Oversight Group Follow Up Report

The Committee considered a report on the arrangements for Winter Festivals 2020.
Decision
(Reference –report by the Executive Director of Place, submitted.)

Culture and Communities Committee – 17 November 2020

Page 13

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Work Programme
Culture and Communities Committee
26 January 2021
Title /
description

Purpose/Reason

Routine /
Executive

Lead officer

Directorate

Progress
updates

Expected date

Executive

David Jamieson

Place

March 2021

2.

Cemetery
Strategy

Executive

Robbie Beattie

Place

March 2021

3.

Culture Third
Party Grants
Awards

Executive

Lindsay Robertson

Place

March 2021

4.

Locality
Improvement
Plans (LIPS)

Executive

Michele Mulvaney

Chief Executive

March 2021

5.

Edinburgh
Partnership
response to
Poverty
Commission
reframed LOIP

Executive

Michele Mulvaney

Chief Executive

March 2021

Agenda Item 5.1

Dowies Mill
Weir

Page 15

1.

Executive

Ross Murray

Chief Executive

March 2021

7.

Hunter’s Hall
Park (Jack Kane
Sports Centre)

Executive

Andy Gray

Communities
and Families

March 2021

8.

Citywide Culture
Plan Update

Executive

Lindsay Robertson

Place

June 2021

Executive

Ian Buchanan

Place

March 2021

9.

Public Spaces
Management
Plan

Executive

David Waddell

Place

Page 16

6.

Update on
Community
Council's
Complaints

10.

Fair Fringe and
Fair Hospitality
Charter –
Effectiveness of
Charter

Culture and Communities Committee – 26 January 2021

Flexible

November 2021

Page 2 of 2

Rolling Actions Log
Culture and Communities Committee
17 November 2020
No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

1.

City of Edinburgh
Council - Fair
Fringe and Fair
Hospitality Charter
Guidelines

Calls for report on the
Charter’s efficacy to go to
Culture and Communities
Committee after August
2019.

Executive
Director of
Place

November
2021

Item on business bulletin for 12
November 2019. No survey was
carried out by the Fringe during
2019, so the report will come to
committee in autumn 2020.

31.05.18

Page 17

Due to the Coronavirus pandemic
there was no Fringe during 2020,
therefore any survey would be
undertaken during 2021.
2.

11.09.18

To agree that, in advance of
the publication of the
next iteration of the
Edinburgh People Survey,
the proposed questions
pertaining to culture and
greenspace matters under
the remit of this Committee
would be presented to

Executive
Director of
Place

At present it is not known when,
and if, a survey would be
undertaken.
Spring 2021

Agenda Item 5.2

Edinburgh People
Survey – Culture
Results

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

Committee for review.

Page 18

3.

13.11.18

King’s Theatre
Capital
Redevelopment
Update Report

An annual update report
would be provided to
members.

Executive
Director of
Place

January
2022

4.

29.01.19

Adelaide Cultural
Co-operation
Project

To note that a further report
on the outcomes of the visit
and next steps will be
prepared for a future
meeting of this Committee.

Executive
Director of
Place

November
2020

5.

26.03.19

Service Payment
to Edinburgh
Leisure – 2019/20

To request more detail in
the next report from
Edinburgh Leisure on the
impact of the service
payment to Edinburgh
Leisure

Executive
Director for
Communities
and Families

November
2020

6.

26.03.19

Allotment and
Food Growing
Provision Update

To note that further
investigation would be
undertaken to determine the
feasibility of giving priority to
those applicants referred for

Executive
Director of
Place

November
2020

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Recommended for Closurereport considered in November
2020.

Recommended for Closurereport considered in November
2020.

Page 2 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Executive
Director of
Place

June 2021

Comments

horticultural therapy by
medical professionals.

Page 19

7.

18.06.19

Citywide Culture
Plan Update
2018/19

To note that a Culture Plan
review update report would
be presented in June 2020

8.

18.06.19

CCTV Working
Group Update

To request an update on the Executive
CCTV Working Group
Director for
progress in six months’ time. Communities
and Families

March 2020

Report on agenda for this
meeting.

9.

30.09.19

Grounds
Maintenance in the
South West
Locality

To agree that the outcome
of the review on Living
Landscapes would be
shared with the Committee
and to look at the current
location of floral meadows
and the potential to move
them elsewhere.

September
2020

A summary of Living Landscapes
was included in the Business
Bulletin for this Committee on 15
September 2020.

(Transferred from
the South West
Locality
Committee)

10. 06.11.12

The Future
Management and
Ownership of
Easter

Executive
Director of
Place

To provide information on
Executive
the possibility of community Director of
ownership and management Place
of the woodland and open

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

March 2021

End 2021

Transferred to the Culture and
Communities Committee from the
Policy and Sustainability
Committee.

Page 3 of 14

No Date

Page 20

Report Title

Action

Craiglockhart Hill
Local Nature
Reserve (LNR) –
motion by
Councillor Burns

space in the area in the
longer term and how this
might be achieved, with
ownership transferring to the
Council as an interim
measure, with a view to the
eventual transfer of
ownership and
management, to a
community organisation.

11. 12.12.17

Open Library

That an update report be
submitted to Committee in
six months.

Executive
Director for
Communities
and Families

March 2020

Education, Children and Families
(EC&F) Committee on 8 October
2019 agreed to transfer this
outstanding action to Culture and
Communities Committee.

12. 11.12.18

Petition for
Consideration Edinburgh
Central Library vs
Virgin Hotel

1)
Require a detailed
report on Edinburgh Central
Library as a flagship cultural
project of
national/international
significance commensurate
with existing professional
advice to the Council and
the Council’s own reports.

Executive
Director for
Communities
and Families

November
2019

EC&F Committee on 8 October
2019 agreed to transfer this
outstanding action to Culture and
Communities Committee.

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

Update was included in Business
bulletin on 12 November 2019.

Central Library Future
Development report tabled at
Culture and Communities
Committee 12th November 2019.
Committee approved setting up a

Page 4 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

project team ‘to explore the
viability of developing an
imaginative, accessible and
engaging future vision for the
city’s Central Library’.

2)
To request that the
annual report on the
Lifelong Learning Plan
scheduled for October 2019,
includes within it, options for
the Central Library, drawing
on past and current studies
and feasibility exercises and
a clear vision for its role in
the city’s cultural landscape.

Page 21

10-09-19

13. 10-09-19

City Centre
Hostile Vehicle
Mitigation
Measures Update
Report - report by
the Executive
Director of Place

To note that a further update Executive
report will be prepared
Director of
within six months to outline
Place
the findings from the
working group and to
provide details of the
anticipated financial impact.

January
2021

Transfer of
Management of
Secondary
School Sports

1) Recommendations
approved with the proviso
that the report called for is
brought back in the first

January
2020

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Comments

Executive
Director for
Communities
and Families

Item on the agenda for this
meeting.

Page 5 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Facilities to
Edinburgh
Leisure - referral
report by the
Education,
Children and
Families
Committee

instance to the Culture and
Communities Committee.

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

2) To ask that the report
address:

Page 22

Access to facilities,
recognising Edinburgh
Leisure’s requirement to
balance the operational
costs with its core purpose
in making a positive
difference to communities.
The barriers to access
including cost and physical
access issues related to
transport.
The impact on high
performance sport and any
change in the usage of
facilities from these groups
associated with the transfer
of management of
secondary school sports
facilities to Edinburgh

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Page 6 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

Chief
Executive

Spring 2021

A report on the appointment of
working groups was included on
the agenda for this Committee on
17 November 2020.

Leisure.
14. 10-09-19

Appointments to
Working Groups
– report by the
Chief Executive

To review the membership
of the Tourism and
Communities Working
Group and report back to
the next meeting of the
Committee.

Page 23

The purpose and composition of
the Tourism and Communities
Working Group will be reviewed
when action plans for the city’s
Tourism Strategy 2030 are being
developed.

15. 28.01.20

The Quaich
Outline Business
Case

1)
To welcome the work Executive
carried out to date by the
Director of
Quaich Project and to
Place
support the intention to
improve West Princes Street
Gardens.

Spring 2021

An update on the business case
for this project will be brought
forward to Committee at the
appropriate time.

2)
To request the
Executive Director of Place
to provide a more detailed
report to Committee within
one cycle setting out the
Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Page 7 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

Executive
Director of
Place

September
2020

A stakeholder engagement page
for the Public Spaces
Management Plan is now live and
will remain so until 23 November
2020. The ‘home page’
describes and links to 4
‘challenges’ that are hosted on
the collaborative engagement tool
Dialogue. The 4 ‘challenges’ are:

assumptions in the business
case presented.

Page 24

3)
To note that
Councillor Osler had
declared she would recuse
herself from the
determination on matters
pertaining to the planning
application for the Quaich
Project.
16. 28.01.20

Development of a 1)To note the initial findings
of a review of the Edinburgh
Public Space
Management Plan Parks Events Manifesto
(EPEM) and the Public
Spaces Protocol (PSP).
2)To note that it is intended to
use these findings, alongside
the motions from Committee
and Council to develop a
single Public Space
Management Plan (PSMP) to
be supported by a single set
of processes, criteria and
procedures when applications

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

June 2021

•
•
•

Public Space Management
Plan Key Principles and
Guidelines
Area Conditions
Application process for
Organisers
Page 8 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

•

are received in the future.
3)To approve the principles
for the PSMP as set out in
paragraph 4.8 with the
inclusion of effective
measures that could be
adopted to control the
amplification of sound in
public spaces when
appropriate.

Community Engagement

The link to the site is here:
https://consultationhub.edinburgh.
gov.uk/sfc/b24acf90

Page 25

4)To note that it is intended to
present the draft PSMP to
Committee in March 2020,
with consultation to begin in
April 2020 and the final
document presented to
Committee in June 2020 for
approval.

17. 28.01.20

Edinburgh –
Million Tree City

1)To recognise the value that
urban trees play in
addressing the Climate
Emergency contributing: to
meeting the Council’s
ambitious target of being net
carbon neutral by 2030; and

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Executive
Director of
Place

January
2021

Item on the agenda for this
meeting.

Page 9 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

ongoing global biodiversity
losses;

Page 26

2)To note the Council’s
existing commitments to tree
protection, planting and
management and the
increase in tree numbers
attributable to the positive
implementation of policy
actions, development
planning, and partnership
working.
3)To support the ambition for
Edinburgh to be a “Million
Tree City” by 2030, ensuring
continuing investment in
measures to protect, plant
and actively manage the
city’s trees and woodlands,
aligning with the timeline of
Scotland’s Forest Strategy;
4)To support the
establishment of an
Edinburgh ‘Million Tree
Forum’ to bring together

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Page 10 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

principal stakeholders so that
the city can set an updated
vision for trees in the city, can
better communicate its tree
values, plant trees more
quickly, and collectively help
look after those already in its
care.

Page 27

5)To support further i-Tree
Eco surveys of Edinburgh’s
tree canopy cover and the
ecosystem service benefits
that its urban forest
generates, communicating
tree number and tree location
data on an ongoing basis.
6)To give consideration to
using the environmental
policies within the City Plan to
progress the million-tree
aspiration.
7)To refer the report to the
Transport and Environment
Committee.

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Page 11 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

Natalie Le
Couteur

November
2020

Recommended for Closurereport considered in November
2020.

8)To request that a report on
tree numbers comes to the
Culture and Communities
Committee on an annual
basis which will include the
following:

Page 28

•

Number of trees
planted (by species)

•

Number of trees lost
(by species)

Thereby giving an
understanding of how many
trees are currently in
Edinburgh and how close we
are to achieving the
aspiration of being a Million
Tree City.

18. 15/09/20

Appointments To
Working Groups

1. To provide an update on
the Meadowbank Sports
Centre and Stadium
Working Group.
2.

To contact the Chairs of
the working groups on the

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Page 12 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

need for the groups to
meet before December
and to provide a report to
the next meeting of the
Committee, based on the
feedback from the Chairs.
3.

To provide an update
report for Committee in
November 2020.

Page 29

19. 17/11/20

Business Bulletin

To note that officers were
engaged with stakeholders
regarding the Public Space
Management Plan and
thereafter would carry out a
consultation once the
Committee had been
provided with the draft and to
circulate an update to
members.

Executive
Director of
Place

20. 17/11/20

Review of the
Community
Council
Complaints
Procedure

That there be a full review in
2 cycles and consultation
take place with all community
councils to ensure that they
were aware of what was
required and to give them the

Chief
Executive

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

Update circulated to members
on 18 November – recommend
for closure.

March 2021

Page 13 of 14

No Date

Report Title

Action

Action
Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

opportunity to comment on
the proposals

21. 17/11/20

Motion By
Councillor
Doggart

Motion approved, subject to
the Coalition Addendum to
point 6 of the motion to read:

Executive
Director of
Place

Page 30

“Committee requests any
decisions made by Policy and
Sustainability to be referred
back to this Committee and
the Housing, Homelessness
and Fair Work Committee for
noting.”

22. 17/11/20

Cemetery Tour
Guide Operator
Registration
Scheme

update on progress

Culture and Communities Committee – Rolling Actions and Log – 26 January 2021

November
2021

Page 14 of 14

Agenda Item 6.1

Latest News
Culture and Communities Committee
10.00am, Tuesday 26 January 2021

Message of Support from the Convener and Vice-Convener
Convenor, Councillor Donald Wilson: With all that is going on in the City it is easy to overlook
the efforts of those in the cultural sector in what has been a challenging, and in many ways
disastrous year. From museums and galleries to libraries and sports facilities, staff and volunteers
have fought to bring our institutions and services through. From outright closure to adapted ways
of working, the challenges have been immense but the need has in many ways increased. Few
could now dispute the value of cultural and sporting engagement in our daily lives. As we look
towards our greatest challenge in the weeks ahead, we should also acknowledge those who have
struggled to get us through the year. From lost income in cultural venues to the care and
maintenance of our world class collections there are unsung heroes everywhere in the cultural
and communities sector. Just as we were getting to a position where we could see a way ahead
we are faced with yet another battle for cultural survival. This message is a heartfelt thank you to
staff and volunteers who have got us to this point and a New Year’s wish that the light at the end
of this very long tunnel is not too far off. That light for us has to be the return of personal cultural
and sporting engagement which as well as being a human right is essential to the wellbeing of
every citizen. In the world's first City of Literature and the greatest Festival City you would expect
nothing less but we are proud of how Scotland's Capital City has responded to this crisis and that
is down to you all.
Vice Convener Councillor Amy McNeese-Mechan: I’d just like to add my sincere thanks to all
our staff for the amazing work they’ve done in continuing to deliver services, despite the personal
challenges I know so many of us have faced. The Convenor and I are very aware of how valued
our cultural, library, sporting and leisure services are to the people of Edinburgh. It is perhaps
most especially at this time that it becomes clearer than ever how important it is for our physical,
emotional and mental wellbeing to have these important resources available to us.

Page 31

Culture and Communities Committee – 26 January 2021

Macmillan @ Edinburgh Libraries – The Service Team of the Year Award Success!
Macmillan @ Edinburgh Libraries have been successful
in being selected by The Awards Panel of Macmillan
Cancer Support as the Scotland Regional Winner for
the The Service Team of the Year Award (for
passionate and determined teams supporting people
affected by cancer). Unfortunately, due to the
pandemic there was no awards ceremony, but the team
have received a letter of congratulations and a Service
Team of the Year Award Pin. The team are very proud
at having won this award!

Scotland Street Press – Donation of Books to Edinburgh Libraries
Scotland Street Press made an extremely kind gift to Edinburgh Libraries of 100 children’s books
for Christmas this year. From Monday 14 December any child who visited one of our re-opened
libraries could claim one book* with four four different exciting titles available - Auntie Robbo and
Aboard the Bulger – Ann Scott-Moncrieff; The Mystery of the Raddlesham Mumps – Murray
Lachlan Young; and Black Snow Falling – L.J. MacWhirter.
Libraries worked in partnership with the CEC Communications team to ensure the news of this
opportunity was shared with all primary schools. Although visits to libraries had to be booked in
advance due to social distancing guidelines, people were able to do this easily by booking online
https://bit.ly/EdLibBook or by phoning their library. To ensure child safety, we asked that all
children under 12 years wishing to collect a book be accompanied by a parent or carer.
One of our Library Development Leaders expanded on the benefits of the donation programme
beyond the overt kindness of a free gift of a book:
“…it had the added bonus of bringing families into the library who maybe otherwise wouldn’t have
come in during a restricted service period. The gifting of these books was also about reading
something different, a core aspect of the wonder of public libraries.”
Branch
Central Children’s

Books given out
5

Craigmillar

Branch

Books given out

Kirkliston

6

McDonald Road

2

Drumbrae

10

Newington

2

Fountainbridge

3

Stockbridge

10

Gilmerton

3

Wester Hailes

5

* Books were limited to one per child and were supplied on a first come first serve basis to
children while stocks lasted. Each library had 10 books to give away.

Page 32

Edinburgh Libraries Children and Young People’s (CYP) Services
The Edinburgh Libraries CYP services created a dedicated facebook page for our library offering
during lockdown making sure we covered all aspects of CYP’s core offering ranging from
Bookbug, Read Write Count to STEM and bookgroups. The page quickly increased user numbers
and alongside its weekly timetable, it has hosted events with our partners such as the Royal
Observatory and the University of Edinburgh plus a successful Drag Queen Story Hour event
during Pride.

Book Week Scotland 2020 – 16-21 November
During Book Week Scotland in November, the following events took place and reached over 3,000
customers:
Citywide - Prize-winning poet Michael Pedersen and, designer to the literary stars, Jon Gray are
joined Edinburgh Libraries to champion our virtual poetry jamboree, which encouraged participants
to submit lines of poetry to put thoughts and feelings into the open in word. The words are to be
gathered together and collaborated into forever memories. A “Future” e-book is to be developed
with a hard copy purchased to enable the theme, The Future, to continue for the months ahead.
Sighthill Facebook Event – Sara Sheridan gave an online talk on 18 November on “Agatha
Christie and about how the 1950s relates to today".
Central x 2 Events – An Evening with Alastair McIntosh took place on 18 November and on the
19 November Gillian Galbraith, who was the most loaned eBook author in the UK during
lockdown, talked about her writing. These two online events were held in partnership with Birlinn
publishers and supported by Scottish Book Trust.
Kirkliston - North West Edinburgh public and school libraries came together for a unique project in
partnership with Impact Arts. Impact Arts are Scotland's leading community arts charity, which
primarily works with vulnerable communities. Their new group Creative Pathways is aimed at 1626yr olds and is a creative employability programme for young people not involved in education,
employment or training. The young people enjoyed the challenge of thinking about the future and
the world around them. They created a survey to share their thoughts, which was shared on social
media. As a result of their thoughts and collaboration they have created a comic book influence
installation for BWS consisting of four pop up banners. The banners will be showcased initially in
Forrester High School and will rotate around NW school and public libraries. They can be used by
community branches and secondary schools to promote collections such as the citywide Escape,
Connect, Relate bibliotherapy project
HMP Edinburgh Library – Michael Pederson produced an audio on BWS and the Poetry
Jamboree for the prison radio. Fife College will base their next writing workshop on the jamboree.
The prison have donated £3, £5 and £15 as prizes for three winners, and these will be read out on
the prison radio.

Page 33

Macmillan@Edinburgh Libraries – For each day of Book Week a “Cancer related” book was
featured on their Facebook account with the theme of dreaming/focusing on the future.
South West Libraries – An introduction to Visual Poetry and Photography, called Photo Poems,
was created along with Arts and Creative Learning (south west). These Photo Poems will inspire
those who like photography and the idea of combining images into poetic sequences.
School Librarians – A host of activities were held across the city, including designing a literacy
mask, COVID safe story sticks using online Wheel of Fortune generator, pupils drawing how they
see their future, lunchtime story cafes based on what the future needs to be and how the young of
today fit in.

Museums and Galleries – Looking After Our Collections – A Sticky Problem!
The Museums and Galleries Collections Care Officer has had to think creatively about how to
continue to monitor the museum environments and collections while they remain largely
inaccessible. Luckily, temperature and relative humidity can be monitored remotely through a web
browser. However, checking for insect activity like clothes moths and carpet beetles can only be
done in person by placing and checking sticky blunder traps on a quarterly basis. In normal
circumstances this would involve the Collections Care Officer travelling around the venues each
quarter to swap over the traps. However, during this period of limited access and travel, this
wasn’t possible. Instead, the Collections Care Officer enlisted the help of colleagues who are
carrying out weekly checks of our venues; delivered online pest identification training; posted traps
to them at home; and took receipt of used traps for analysis as and when it was possible. These
checks proved to be vital, as they flagged up an outbreak of carpet beetles at the Museum of
Childhood which is being tackled in a Covid-19 safe way.
Pictured below are two quarters’ worth of traps from Lauriston Castle for analysis. The Collections
Care Officer was relieved to see that, while we do have a silverfish problem in one of the offices,
collections areas are performing well! There are a lot of spiders, which eat the sort of insects that
might damage the collections: my enemy’s enemy is my friend!

Page 34

City Art Centre Visitor Research
The City Art Centre (CAC) re-opened on 12 September following six months of closure caused by
the Coronavirus pandemic. This research was commissioned from CG Research to measure
satisfaction with the Covid-19 safety measures that had been instigated and in order to identify
any required changes. We also wanted to understand the visitor profile in this specific time period.
The research was conducted as an online survey. The report covered survey responses for
people who visited between opening and 18 October. There were 254 responses in a period
where there were 3,981 visitors. Comparisons were made in the report with the CAC visitor
survey conducted in 2019.
It was to be expected given the ongoing travel restrictions that a much higher proportion of visitors
were from Edinburgh itself (75% compared to 16% in 2019), 75% were women and we had an
older demographic of visitors (80% over 55). A high proportion of visitors were regular gallery
goers, and 88% had visited the CAC before.
Satisfaction with the visitor experience was extremely high. The new booking system, introduced
for the first time to limit numbers, was well received with 75% rating it highly. All but one
respondent said they felt safe. Only 2% felt the number of visitors felt overcrowded. 80% rated the
quality of the exhibitions on show as very good, and 88% rated the staff welcome in the same
category. 87% rated their overall experience as very good which is higher than the CAC
benchmark (65%) and suggests that visitors are supportive and understanding of the current
challenges. 97% would recommend people to visit with the current measures in place. The
average length of visit was 76 minutes.
The survey allowed space for open comments, and within those there were some suggestions
which we have sought to address. Inevitably there have been some teething problems as both
staff and visitors got used to new ways of working and visiting.
Overall, the report presents a very positive picture at this difficult time, and thanks are due to the
staff who have helped create a welcoming and safe space for our visitors.

Installation photo: Jock McFadyen Goes to the Pictures. Photo: Lloyd Smith Photography and Film

Page 35

Platform: 2020 – Presented by Edinburgh Art Festival at the City Art Centre, 31 October to 29
November 2020
Although Edinburgh Art Festival was sadly cancelled this summer, there was a desire to urgently
find a way to present Platform: 2020, the annual open submission showcase supporting artists in
the early stages of their careers to make and present new work. Working in partnership with City Art
Centre, it was possible to re-schedule the exhibition to the autumn. The opportunity has been
hugely appreciated by the selected artists - Rabindranath A Bhose, Mark Bleakley, Rhona Jack,
and Susannah Stark - who have reported that the exhibition has given them a valuable point of
focus through the year, and despite working under the restrictions of Covid-19 the Art Festival have
been able to work closely with the artists and to provide a support network for them connecting with
fellow artists, selectors, the festival team, and individual mentors. The exhibition brought together
four new bodies of work that include sound installations, textile and sculptural works, print-making,
film, performance, and text-based works. Across each of the artists’ individual practice, a number of
themes and approaches are particularly resonant for our present times including:
•

the aesthetics of the collective,

•

the intense vitality of ‘being together’ in space;

•

strategies for survival; and

•

the importance of the sense of touch.

The Art Festival/City Art Centre welcomed over 2,000 visitors over the 30 days of the exhibition and
have received positive feedback from press and visitors. The Festival will announce the open call
for Platform: 2021 early in the New Year and look forward to present this within the next festival
edition, which runs from 29 July to 29 August 2021.
The exhibition was made possible thanks to the generous support of the PLACE Programme, a
partnership between Edinburgh Festivals, Scottish Government, City of Edinburgh Council, Creative
Scotland, and the Cruden Foundation. For more info and a video documenting the exhibition see:
https://www.edinburghartfestival.com/news/item/platform-2020-announcement

Credits:
Mark Bleakley & Rabindranath A Bhose, part of Platform: 2020
at City Art Centre, presented by Edinburgh Art Festival. Photo:
Tom Nolan.

Rhona Jack, Trouble Maker Heart Breaker, 2020. Part of
Platform: 2020 at City Art Centre, presented by Edinburgh Art
Festival. Photo: Tom Nolan.

Page 36

E A Hornel: From Camera to Canvas – City Art Centre, until 14 March 2021

E.A.Hornel: From Camera to Canvas. Installation photograph by Lloyd Smith photography and Film

The recently opened E.A.Hornel: From Camera to Canvas exhibition at the City Art Centre is the
first major exhibition of Hornel’s work for 35 years, and it sets out to demonstrate how
photography underpinned his work. Organised in partnership with the National Trust for Scotland,
the exhibition draws on the huge photographic collection of c1,700 images that Hornel used to
create his paintings. Hornel was one of the leading members of the Glasgow School of painters.
However, it was his first visit to japan in the early 1890s in the company of artist friend George
Henry that led to a change in artistic direction.
Photography was crucial to Hornel’s art. From his own photographs, he chose subject matter for
his paintings, in many instances copying poses directly from photographs onto the canvas. It is
ironic that a painter known for his expressive brushwork should have relied so heavily on the
mechanical technology of photography. The current pandemic has impacted the exhibition to the
extent that we are unable to show as many paintings as we would have liked, but the exhibition
still conveys the range of Hornel’s work and this hitherto overlooked link with photography.
A varied online events programme has been arranged to coincide with the exhibition, details of
which can be found here.
The City Art Centre closed on 24 December 2020 in line with the Scottish Government’s Covid-19
guidelines.

Page 37

City Art Centre Exhibition Marks 100 Years Since The Dawn of “The Roaring Twenties”
Over the next few months visitors to the City Art Centre will be able to enjoy the new exhibition
Bright Shadows: Scottish Art in the 1920s. This display is the latest in a series of exhibitions
drawn from the City’s collection of fine art, recognised as one of the best collections of Scottish art
in the country.
Bright Shadows focuses on artworks produced in the 1920s, an evocative period of striking
contrasts. For many people, the 1920s is an era associated with high spirits and glamour; a
decade of Art Deco design, jazz music and flapper dresses. Yet this is only one side of the story. It
was also a time of sombre reflection and hard realities, with the recent losses of the First World
War and ongoing economic instability. Timed to mark 100 years since the dawn of the ‘Roaring
Twenties’, Bright Shadows explores the events, ideas and styles that shaped Scottish art during
this fascinating period. The exhibition showcases a selection of paintings, drawings, prints and
sculptures by 30 different artists. The Scottish Colourists are featured, with J.D. Fergusson’s Art
Deco gem Villa Gotte Garden (c.1920) and S.J. Peploe’s radiant landscape Iona, Mull and Ben
More in the Distance (c.1929). The progressive but short-lived Edinburgh Group is also
represented, with Dorothy Johnstone’s masterpiece Rest Time in the Life Class (1923) and D.M.
Sutherland’s harbour scene Concarneau, Brittany (1924). The Scottish printmaking revival is
explored through the work of Ernest Lumsden and James McIntosh Patrick. Meanwhile, avantgarde influences are traced through the progress of William McCance and William Johnstone.
One of the highlights of Bright Shadows is Cecile Walton at Crianlarich (1920), a bold portrait of
the artist Cecile Walton by her husband Eric Robertson. The painting arrived at the City Art Centre
on long-term loan from a private collection in late 2019, and this is the first opportunity for visitors
to see it on public display. Another highlight is D.Y. Cameron’s A Garment of War (c.1926), an
epic battlefield landscape recalling the artist’s experiences in the First World War. This canvas
recently underwent conservation treatment and has now been restored to its original splendour.
Bright Shadows: Scottish Art in the 1920s runs until 6 June 2021. Admission is free but allocated
time slots must be booked in advance online. For more details see:
https://www.edinburghmuseums.org.uk/whats-on/bright-shadows-scottish-art-1920s

1 Credit: S. J. Peploe, Iona, Mull and Ben More in the Distance, c.1929. (On long-term loan from a private collection. Photo:
Antonia Reeve).
2 Credit: Dorothy Johnstone, Rest Time in the Life Class, 1923. © the artist’s estate.
3 Credit: D.Y. Cameron, A Garment of War, c.1926. City Art Centre, Museums and Galleries Edinburgh.

The City Art Centre closed on 24 December 2020 in line with the Scottish Government’s Covid-19
guidelines.

Page 38

Auld Reekie Retold
Even though they are still working from home, the Auld Reekie Retold team continue to delve into
the depths of the collections to unlock those hidden stories. They have been busy writing blogs
ranging across our collections, from pioneering women artists, to experiments with chloroform via
beautifully wrapped historic textiles, silver sugar pots with links to Scotland’s failed attempt at
Empire building, and stopping off for a spot of needlework on the way! Our first podcast series is
also now online, and we have had some great feedback from listeners.
We’ve continued making significant progress on cleaning our legacy collections information, with
well over 50,000 records individually tidied, cleaned and improved. Many records go back decades
and have inconsistencies and errors which make the records hard to find; the work being done now
will open countless doors, collections, projects and exhibitions for years to come.
The project has now been engaging with audiences for two months and is amassing a great
following on social media. You can follow it with the hashtag #AuldReekieRetold on Twitter,
Facebook and Instagram. We have been using images of the finds of the project, and project team
members at work for an Advent calendar online, which shows the varied strands of the project.
Thanks to funding from Museums Galleries Scotland, the project is now looking to deliver a public
programme in earnest. The team is already making links with community groups across the city,
with plans to contribute to activities in Portobello, Niddrie and a Scots language initiative led by the
South West locality team. The first of a series of online “From the Curator” events is scheduled for
21 January and is open for booking – here. The series will explore the what, why, who and how’s of
the project with key discoveries and an insight into the behind the scenes work of museums.

Page 39

Edinburgh’s Christmas and Edinburgh’s Hogmanay
The impact of Covid-19 meant that the majority of the Edinburgh’s Christmas and Edinburgh’s
Hogmanay programmes had to take place online this year.
During December, The Mound Christmas Tree was complemented by an LED rainbow of thanks to
our key workers and NHS staff and additional festive lighting was provided across the city.
Edinburgh’s makers and producers were featured on a new online platform at the Edinburgh’s
Christmas Neighbourhood Market. In total, 207 local Edinburgh businesses participated in the
market, reaching 195,231 people across Edinburgh’s Christmas social media channels.

Edinburgh’s Hogmanay produced a series of three short films entitled ‘Fare Well’, featuring a drone
swarm choreographed to a specially commissioned poem by Scotland’s Makar, Jackie Kay, a
soundtrack from Skye band Niteworks and interpreted through the designs of Scottish illustrator
Gary Wilson. This was the first time that such technology had been used in the UK.
Released over three nights and narrated by David Tennant, Siobhan Redmond and Lorne
MacFadyen, the films have had over 6 million direct views, generating 626 total pieces of media
coverage including 126 international broadcast hits and featuring in 129 national titles.

A fuller report on Christmas and Hogmanay will be presented to this Committee in due course.

Page 40

Festivals and City Venues – Planning Responsibly Together
Officers are continuing to work closely with the city’s festivals and venues networks. We are
collaboratively exploring and developing options and planning for both events and venues being reintroduced, and in renewed and imaginative formats. Of course, risk assessment and following
public health guidance is fundamental to every aspect of this collective approach.
We are working together on the shared priorities of developing deliverable event models and
maximising employment opportunities; retaining our city’s world-leading festivals status; and on our
city’s venues being fully prepared to re-open at the first opportunity.
Officers are ensuring all necessary expertise is available to the Festivals, working alongside
licensing, business growth and inclusion, environmental health, planning, roads, and parks
services.
The festivals are also exploring and developing options and feasibility of re-purposing spaces as
well as modelling options using the crisis to think differently including looking at further collaborative
initiatives in August.
The city’s cultural venues continue to meet regularly through a number of existing, as well as new,
networks to manage and mitigate the impacts of Covid-19 on the sector. This has included work on
national guidelines for venues and the performing arts, lobbying for financial support, managing
diaries and schedules, and keeping audience engagement programmes in place. The focus has
more recently turned to developing a road map out of the current restrictions, agreeing to work and
share best practice with regard to public and environmental health guidelines, developing shared
charter mark standards to build public trust, continued lobbying for financial support, and
collaborating on audience engagement projects.
This work has been impacted by the most recent changes in the public health environment and
discussions are now taking place to understand likely impacts. Further updates and outcomes on
both the festivals and venues collaborative agendas will be shared with Members as early as
possible.

Creative Play Sessions for Babies age 0-2 and their Parents
Supported by the City of Edinburgh Council/Royal Edinburgh Military Tattoo Culture Project Fund,
a series of 12 creative play sessions for babies age 0-2 and their parents are being delivered at
weekends across Wester Hailes, Broomhouse and Sighthill by Starcatchers, Scotland’s National
Arts and Early Years Organisation.
The sessions, which are Covid-19 secure and currently delivered outdoors, provide a safe space
for families to be creative together, building confidence and helping to strengthen both adult/child
bonds and community connectedness. So far, themed sessions have explored autumnal-coloured
paints, using natural materials for some big ‘no-brush’ outdoor art, creating fire-crackling sounds,
and water drumming.

Page 41

Parents had expressed sadness that there have been fewer activities to participate in as a family
over the past few months. “I miss… always having the opportunity to do something with my
daughter. It’s really impacted me the last few months, not being around people as much. If there
was a weekend group I think this would help with my mental health and my daughter would be
able to have that fun bonding time with me again. She is at nursery full time. Weekends are our
time so I try to make it as fun as possible, just us, but it’s not the same.”
The artists who facilitate the sessions have significant experience working in communities to
improve outcomes and the overall health and wellbeing of vulnerable families. Participants are
referred by local support services or through self-referral. The focus is always on empowering
parents and their children to be confident, co-creators as they engage in activities that encourage
social connection and self-expression.
For further information please email expectingsomething@starcatchers.org.uk.
www.starcatchers.org.uk

Page 42

Edinburgh’s Newest Pump Track Opens at Hunter’s Hall Park
New cycling facilities have opened at Hunter’s Hall Park with the completion of a pump track.
Financed from Section 75 funding, the track is a facility for all types of wheeled sports - from BMX
and mountain bikes to skate board and roller skates. The track is made of rollers and banked turns
and riders navigate the track by performing a “pumping” motion generating momentum from up and
down body movements rather than pedalling or pushing their foot on the ground. Riders of all ages
and abilities can use the track, which is free to use and open all year round.
The project was developed by officers from Communities and Families and Parks and
Greenspaces and was designed and built by Velosolutions UK. The track forms part of the wider
masterplan for new sports facilities within Hunter’s Hall Park.

Page 43

Sports and Outdoor Learning Unit
With the return of schools in August, the Sports Development Officers have been supporting
primary schools with curricular sport delivery, providing a mixture of tennis, football and rugby for
P3 - P7 pupils. The main focus of the sessions has been fundamental movement, co-ordination and
communication skills. See below for more details:

Page 44

Active Schools Activities
Active Schools Deliver Bikeability
As part of the council’s ‘Closing the Gap’ strategy the Active Schools team have been placed in
targeted primary schools across the city delivering activities to help pupils increase their health and
wellbeing. In some schools the Active Schools Co-ordinators have delivered level 1 and 2
Bikeability, supported by other CEC staff. Canal View and St Francis RC have not been involved in
cycle training for a number of years:
P6 Canal View pupil was very nervous at start of training but now cycles to school, “I loved it so
much. It was the most fun thing in my life.” “A fun and productive first Bikeability session” St Francis
teacher.

At Castleview there have been a number of pupils who have never been on a bike before, who are
now riding. Castleview teacher “we were so focused during our final Bikeability session yesterday.
Amazing! Huge thanks to Active Schools and hopefully we’ll all be a little more confident and safer
on the roads now!”
Impact of Outdoor activity
Since Active Schools were redeployment into schools in August, a range of outdoor activities,
including playground games, multi sports, hand-eye coordination skills/games, athletics, tennis,
boccia, circus skills and Bikeability, has been delivered and several teachers noted the significant
impact of outdoor learning and the benefits of getting classes outside: fresh air, room to move,
exploring nature, playing on grass (many of the children don’t have gardens and the school has a
concrete playground throughout), and discovering local parks, not to mention the added bonus of
exercise walking to the parks. Teachers were also able to lead outdoor education sessions with the
support of the ASC’s. Classes from Dalry took part in an Autumn scavenger hunt at a nearby park.
A P6 pupil squealed in delight “we are going on an actual school excursion! we don’t normally do
that!”. A teacher from St David’s Primary School commented that children have improved their
fitness, co-ordination and gross motor skills. The teacher also remarked “Being new to early level, I
have really enjoyed shadowing the ASC, as she has a lot of great ideas and has adapted really well
to support specific individuals. I think she will continue to have impact if she was to be kept on at
the school”.

Page 45

Arts and Creative Learning: STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Maths)
Artist in Residence
The Arts and Creative Learning team is leading an exciting, fully funded creative project with
partner city, Oulu in Finland, which is fully funded by the city of Oulu as part of its bid towards
European Capital of Culture 2026.
Working with colleagues in Oulu, the team is shaping the project to develop creativity skills
through a STEAM artist residency, one in each city. The Finnish Institute supported a call out for
Artists in each city, while in Edinburgh, the Arts and Creative Learning Team invited applications
from schools. Through a rigorous selection process, James Gillespie’s High School was selected
to participate. The school identified a group of pupils who are needing extra support to achieve
and attain, and the staff wanted to re-engage them with learning in a creative way. Staff from the
science department are leading the project in school and are keen to work with an artist to support
learners and also to develop their own creative approaches. The schools and artists from both
cities met online for the first time November 2020 and the project will run through the rest of
academic year.
The STEAM residency was initially planned as a face to face residency with reciprocal visits to
each city and school by the Edinburgh and Oulu artists and staff. This has been revised due to
Covid-19 restrictions, and is currently online. When Edinburgh moves into protection level 2, the
Artist will be able to physically work in James Gillespie’s High school, meanwhile creative
solutions are being developed. Should travel restrictions allow over the course of the residency,
reciprocal learning trips may be possible. The content and process of this project will be captured
as one resource to exemplify creativity within pedagogy, creative learning and teaching and open
ended opportunity empowering young people.
The City of Oulu has adopted the Arts and Creative Learning Team’s Creativity Skills Progression
Framework to support planning in the Oulu school and to enable artists and teachers plan and
track progress. The Edinburgh and Oulu teams are working together to develop the Evaluation
Framework for the residency and the entire project will capture and share learning from both cities
as widely as possible.

Arts and Creative Learning: Heads of Creative Learning Forum
The Arts and Creative Learning Team regularly works with arts, culture, heritage, and Festivals
partner organisations. The team advised on approaches and helps shape content for projects and
associated teacher offered by organisations to schools.
To support the strategic development of Creative Learning as a sector which straddles both arts
and education, the Arts and Creative Learning Team established the Heads of Creative Learning
Forum in November 2019. Around 20 partner organisations attended the initial meeting, all
agreeing that the proposal was beneficial and that CLPL the group would work together to explore
creative learning partnerships between and across organisations, with schools and with the Arts
and Creative Learning Team. The second meeting in January 2020, considered the possibility of

Page 46

developing a Creative Learning Strategy for the City. The third meeting was cancelled as it was
scheduled for April 2020 in lockdown. With the disruption to schools and the unique disruption and
uncertainty for Arts Organisations, the third meeting has not yet been re-scheduled. Time was
needed to see what recovery for the arts and creative sector might look like. The next meeting will
take place on-line in early 2021.

Heads of Creative Learning Forum discussion groups

Paolozzi Prize for Art 2020
The 8th year of the annual Paolozzi Prize for Art was scheduled to take place in June 2020 in the
National Galleries of Scotland. Covid-19 restrictions and lockdown mean that the Arts and
Creative Learning Team had to quickly re-plan the event to run entirely online, while retaining as
much of the usual exciting buzz of the live Award Ceremony. Despite restrictions the 2020
Paolozzi prize attracted the highest number of nominations from art and design teachers across
High Schools, many saying they were pleased to have something positive and celebratory for their
pupils to look forward to. Forty pupils in S4-S6 were nominated across the four categories, which
are:
•

Talent and Creativity

•

New Directions

•

Overcoming Barriers

•

Spirit of Paolozzi

The artworks and accompanying descriptors from teachers were considered by the experienced
and discerning eyes of the judging panel:
•

Juan Cruz: Principal of Edinburgh College of Art

•

Siobhan McConnachie: Head of Education, National Galleries of Scotland

•

Duncan Robertson: artist and freelance educator who studied under Paolozzi in Munich

Page 47

The 8th Paolozzi Prize for Art Ceremony was a first for City of Edinburgh Council, hosted via the
Stream facility of Office365 for teachers, pupils and their families to join on Thursday 25 June.
This involved the Arts and Creative Learning team learning fast while working with IT specialist
Gary Sullivan and resulted in a wonderful celebration of high school pupils’ achievements and art
work enjoyed by dozens in their homes with family. Donald Macdonald, Head Teacher of James
Gillespie’s High School commented afterwards: “You not just pulled it off, you delivered with
aplomb”.
The overall winner this year was Ishrat Rahim of Craigmount High School, who won a cash prize
of £500. Enjoy a short video about the Paolozzi Prize for Art with pupils, head teachers and art
teachers, and Ishrat Rahim’s winning art work below.

Instrumental Music Service (IMS) and Edinburgh International Festival (EIF)
In partnership with the Edinburgh International Festival (EIF), the IMS team is working with The
Wind Section, an Edinburgh based musical instrument supplier. EIF is funding instrument
purchases for IMS and Youth Music Initiative (YMI) pupils who do not own or have access to an
instrument. This fantastic investment from EIF is made possible with support from donations and
EIF’s own Creative Learning Budget. The project called Play On Music is designed to support the
city’s young musicians acknowledging that the cancellation of the Edinburgh International Festival
in August 2020, meant many professional musicians could not play in concert halls, theatres and
venues. The project also supports pupils who previously needed to share instruments. Covid-19
restrictions mean sharing instruments cannot happen and Play On Music ensures pupils will all
have an instrument to play and practice on, whether their lessons are face to face or virtual.

Page 48

Youth Music Initiative (YMI)
A new manager took up post on 8 December following the
retiral of the previous manager after five years of helping
Edinburgh’s YMI programme grow in number and develop
across all primary and most special schools.
The YMI team has been working hard to prepare all its
projects to begin delivery after the Christmas break. The
team is very much looking forward to bringing music and joy
into all primary classrooms in the new year. To manage
Covid restrictions, the YMI team is working closely with
schools, tutors and partners to ensure programmes are
delivered effectively and safely.
YMI funds piping tuition for SQA students, and the bagpipes
are among the instruments which are impacted by Covid19 restrictions. Recently, the YMI team spoke to Dylan
Stewart, an S5 pupil at Craigroyston High School, to find
out about how his piping has progressed. Dylan has been a
member of the YMI’s performance pipe band Piping Hot! for
several years, performing all over the city, and receives YMI
piping tuition in school. He has been working towards his
Higher music exam this year and opened the annual Lord
Provost Fanfare concert last year with a fantastic musical
performance. Dylan said: “Since I’ve been playing the
bagpipes, I feel like my confidence has boosted as I have
played in front of huge crowds on multiple occasions,
whether it’s for a concert, or being hired or playing for the
NHS workers, which I have been doing recently. Learning
to play the bagpipes has gave me many opportunities to do
thing that I never thought I would ever do, like playing for
the Lord Provost, or playing at events like Burns suppers.
Playing the bagpipes also gives me a sense of pride
whenever people see me with them as it makes me
remember how long it took me to get to the performance
stage that I’m at and how rewarding it is. My piping lessons
have encouraged me to take higher music as it improves
my performance and it is very enjoyable. The thing I love
most about playing the bagpipes is seeing people happy
whenever I play them. There have been many occasions
where I have played my bagpipes for people and seen
people cheer up as soon as they hear me play.”

Page 49

St Joseph’s RC Primary School enjoying the
YMI’s Sounds Like Music programme prior to
lockdown

Logan McKinlay and Dylan Stewart, S5
pupils at Craigroyston High School

Screen Education Edinburgh (SEE): Edinburgh City Film Education Programme
Funded by Screen Scotland and part of Arts and Creative Learning, SEE leads a partnership that
includes Into Film Scotland and Centre for Moving Image. The programme develops skills for
primary, secondary and special school teachers and pupils across the city, including filmmaking
projects on the theme of GTCS standard of social justice, supported by bespoke filmmaking Career
Long Professional Learning (CLPL). During the Covid-19 pandemic, the Film Education programme
moved on-line offering virtual learning for pupils and CLPL for teachers, ensuring continuity. The
programme culminated in December with celebratory virtual screening events, online filmmaking
workshops, and the launch of curriculum linked filmmaking teaching resources. 33 teachers, 447
pupils and 40 schools engaged in the programme, with 48 animation, drama or documentary short
films produced.
A teacher at Trinity Primary commented “the main thing I saw was an increase in the pupils’
confidence. They had to be directors and have the confidence to lead the rest of the team. I wanted
to give the kids the broadest experience possible and use the expertise of the tutors, and also
learned a lot about how to use film effectively in my own practice.”
A parent commented on their son’s experience of learning during lockdown ‘It was a very positive
experience for X, he got on with the course quite independently and compared to how he fared with
virtual learning for school, which he found quite challenging and withdrew from, the filmmaking
course gave him something to look forward to each week. It gave him an aim.’

Coverage of Culture in the Media
A selection of stories that have appeared in the media:
Date

Item

Link

21 November 2020

Jock McFadyen and EA Hornel
reviews

https://www.hwlondonartandartistsgui
de.com/magazine.asp

1 December 2020

20 Best Things to do in Edinburgh
(Scott Monument)

https://theworldpursuit.com/things-todo-in-edinburgh/

Page 50

4 December 2020

Jock McFadyen Goes to the
Pictures by Susan Mansfield

https://www.flemingcollection.com/sc
ottish_art_news/news-press/jockmcfadyen-goes-to-the-pictures

10 December 2020

2021 Exhibition Highlights
revealed by City Art Centre

https://theedinburghreporter.co.uk/20
20/12/2021-exhibition-highlightsrevealed-by-city-art-centre/

16 December 2020

Street photographer Robert
Blomfield's unique urban portraits
showcase post-war Edinburgh
(CAC)

https://www.scotsman.com/heritageand-retro/retro/street-photographerrobert-blomfields-unique-urbanportraits-showcase-post-waredinburgh-3070434

29 December 2020

City Art Centre reveals exhibition
highlights for 2021

https://artdaily.com/news/131534/City
-Art-Centre-reveals-exhibitionhighlights-for-2021#.X_L0Adj7Q2w

1 January 2021

Looking Back (CAC 40th)

https://theedinburghreporter.co.uk/20
20/12/looking-back-to-2020/

7 January 2021

Changing role of the home
explored in a new exhibition at
CAC

https://theedinburghreporter.co.uk/20
21/01/changing-role-of-the-homeexplored-in-a-new-exhibition-at-cac/

11 January 2021

Fleming Collection Top Picks for
2021 (Mackie)

https://www.flemingcollection.com/sc
ottish_art_news/news-press/our-toppicks-for2021?fbclid=IwAR2OHTvYWsnWssM
8Lle1sOITqYwSDBtfGCewCtiNulefv3
TP4ms0iatJ82U

13 January 2021

Review: E. A. Hornel: From
Camera to Canvas

https://www.flemingcollection.com/sc
ottish_art_news/news-press/e-ahornel-from-camera-to-canvas

Page 51

Culture and Communities Committee

Convener
Councillor Donald Wilson

Vice-Convenor
Councillor Amy Mcneese-Mechan

Members

Contact

Councillor Wilson (Convener)
Councillor McNeese-Mechan (Vice-Convener)
Councillor Brown
Councillor Doggart
Councillor Doran
Councillor Key
Councillor Mitchell
Councillor Osler
Councillor Rae
Councillor Staniforth
Councillor Ethan Young

Lynne Halfpenny
Director of Culture
Telephone 0131 529 3657
Andy Gray
Head of Schools and Lifelong Learning
Communities and Families
Telephone 0131 529 2217
Gareth Barwell
Head of Place Management
Telephone 0131 529 5844
Natalie Le Couteur
Committee Services
Telephone 0131 529 6160

Page 52

Agenda Item 8.1
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Thriving Green Spaces
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Routine
All
43

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that the Culture and Communities Committee:
1.1.1 notes the progress made in delivering the Thriving Green Spaces project and
supports its extension to March 2022; and
1.1.2 receives further project updates and requests for approval as the project
moves beyond its midpoint review, from development phase to transition
phase.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: David Jamieson, Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries
E-mail: David.jamieson@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 7055

Page 53

Report

Thriving Green Spaces
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report provides an update on the Thriving Green Spaces project.

3.

Background

3.1

As core components of the 20-minute neighbourhood, the city’s green and blue
spaces have never been so important to Edinburgh’s residents. The Covid-19
pandemic has underscored the importance of local outdoor places for people’s
health and wellbeing, as well as the inequalities found in accessing good quality
local green space. People rely on them for daily exercise and mental health and for
making the city resilient to the growing global environmental and societal challenges
of climate emergency, species extinction and biodiversity loss. Yet, at the same
time Edinburgh’s green and blue spaces are under unprecedented risk as the
effects of climate change already begin to impact on operations whilst resources for
their ongoing care, management and maintenance continue to decline markedly.

3.2

The Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries service is leading a project to fashion a
new vision for the city’s parks, green spaces, rivers, lochs and shoreline, to be
captured in an ambitious 30-year strategy which aligns with Edinburgh’s 2050 City
Vision and that delivers a new way of working to ensure their on-going
enhancement, protection and care.

3.3

The service is working with partner organisations, the public and other stakeholders
to understand their needs and aspirations for their green and blue spaces. This will
inform what the city’s Thriving Green Spaces should look like and what benefits
they need to deliver.

3.4

The project is currently in the development phase, collecting and collating
information, data, ideas, opinions and evidence across eight workstreams:
3.4.1 quantifying the ecosystem services provided by the city’s green and blue
spaces and identifying what needs to be done to improve these further;
3.4.2 creating new relationships between the private, public and third sector and
exploring fresh ideas that cut across and remove existing policy and delivery
silos to build a sustainable financial model;

Page 54

3.4.3 testing new technologies to improve service delivery, make operations more
efficient and bring about social, wellbeing and environmental benefits;
3.4.4 investigating models of governance for green spaces which will give users
and stakeholders more opportunities to advocate for and influence their care
and management;
3.4.5 sharing outcomes with other bodies and across sectors to build knowledge
and influence policy and decision-making at local authority, Scottish
Government, and UK levels; and
3.4.6 developing an operational model which will sustain the support and delivery
of all these innovations and benefits
3.5

Recognising this, an application was made to the National Lottery Heritage Fund National Trust Future Parks Accelerator programme, and in June 2019 the Council
were awarded a grant of £899,500; one of only eight UK local authorities to be
successful in securing this funding, and the only one in Scotland. This grant
programme is to enable local authorities to develop bold and innovative financial
and management solutions for their green spaces against a backdrop of increasing
financial uncertainty.

3.6

Following the recruitment of a project delivery team, the establishment of a partner
advisory board (made up of City of Edinburgh Council as lead partner, Greenspace
Scotland, Scottish Wildlife Trust, University of Edinburgh, Edinburgh and Lothian
Greenspace Trust and the Edinburgh Green Space Forum, the umbrella group for
Edinburgh’s friends of park groups), and the nomination of Councillor Amy
McNeese-Mechan as the Project Champion, work started in earnest to produce a
30-year strategy and action plan by May 2021 to protect, enhance and resource the
city’s green spaces, so that they benefit people both today and in the future.

3.7

As a result of the impact of Covid-19 management measures on the pace of project
development, an application was made for additional funding to extend the project.
Again, this was successful (subject to passing a midpoint review), an additional
£349,223 being secured from the National Lottery Heritage Fund to enable an
extension to March 2022. The Council received an ‘excel’ rating for being a highperforming project that is very well-considered, broad and creative, with the
potential for successful and sustainable re-positioning of green/blue space in the
Council and its partner’s agendas.

4.

Main report

4.1

Strong themes have emerged following significant research and developmental
work across the project’s eight interrelated work streams:
4.1.1 People: Citizens are being asked what the Edinburgh 2050 vision should be
for the city’s green and blue spaces. This has identified the potential for
expanding engagement and volunteering across Edinburgh’s green spaces,
via improved direct volunteer management, increased support of Friends of

Page 55

Parks groups, strengthening relationships with third-party volunteer
management organisations, youth engagement, and linking to new volunteer
routes, such as green health and wellbeing prescribing, climate emergency
action, corporate volunteering and employment training. These will be
captured in a Thriving Green Spaces Volunteer Strategy.
4.1.2 Space: A baseline asset register and condition analysis identifying the scale
of infrastructure investment required over the Council’s outdoor estate is
underway. Design-led parks master planning, piloting the use of Spirit of
Place placemaking statements, and using a Parks for Health Toolkit and
health audit to identify new ways to assess the quality of health outcomes
that green spaces provide is also being tested. The Council is working in
partnership with health professionals to identify changes to green spaces
and the interventions needed to benefit health and wellbeing.
4.1.3 Operations: The Council is seeking to bring positive cultural change through
cause messaging, leadership training and Appreciative Enquiry
development, and is also identifying new service structures to bring together
city-wide and locally based strategic and operational functions as part of the
Adaptation and Renewal programme, as well as reviewing the role of Green
Flag Award accreditation, annual Park Quality Assessments, and
management planning in creating high quality parks and other green spaces.
4.1.4 Ecology: In partnership with the Scottish Wildlife Trust an Ecological
Coherence Plan (ECP) that maps habitat network and ecosystem services
across the city is being developed. It will identify protection and site
management measures that maximise multiple benefits for both people and
nature, including tree planting locations to support the Million Tree City
programme. The project is also working to develop a Natural Capital Account
for Edinburgh that will put a financial value on the benefits we receive from
green spaces and provide an evidence-based analysis of the economic and
social benefits of investing in them.
4.1.5 Finance: Critically, a sustainable funding model is being developed which
will facilitate sustained investment in, and care of, the city’s green spaces
over the long term. Ideas being researched include an Edinburgh NatureClimate Bond, a more commercial focus for the Inch plant nursery,
sponsorship, crowd funding and donation schemes, carpark charging,
sustainable energy income generation, and a fundraising-focused Parks
Foundation. These will be captured within a Thriving Green Spaces Income
Generation Strategy and Inch Plant Nursery Business Plan.
4.1.6 Technology: Following the successful integration of ground-source heat
pump and micro-hydro power technology in Saughton Park, the service is
analysing other green spaces with the potential for renewable energy
sources. Not only can these power park buildings and surrounding properties
but could generate an income return for park re-investment. The introduction
of additional robotic mowers to complement existing trial mowbots is being
investigated. A pilot for a new GI Application tool is also underway. This has

Page 56

a dashboard function which can map all of the habitat types using citizen
science and provides data-driven intelligence to assist site management,
planning and interpretation.
4.1.7 Governance: New models of governance are being investigated for the
city’s green spaces which can give users and other stakeholders greater
opportunities to advocate for and influence their care and management. This
builds on the community empowerment agenda but crucially recognises that
few communities want to own and manage green space assets directly.
Innovative Citizen Park Panels are presently being developed and trialled.
4.1.8 Learning and Sharing: The co-design and collaborative approach fostered
by the National Trust means that there is constant project sharing between
the Future Park Accelerator cities via webinar events and on-line gatherings,
most frequently with the Northern Cohort group - Edinburgh, Birmingham and
Nottingham. Unfortunately, the Covid-19 pandemic has limited engagement
with other Scottish local authorities, but this will hopefully come to the fore
during 2021.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

A project mid-point review is due to take place in February, after which the project
will move into its transition phase.

5.2

Further update reports to Committee seeking consideration of and support for
Thriving Green Spaces transition recommendations.

5.3

Production of a Thriving Green Spaces Strategy for Council approval.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

Thriving Green Space project costs are contained within the existing project budget,
which is to be enhanced following approval for project extension to March 2022.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

Consideration of stakeholder and community impact is a central tenet of the
Thriving Green Spaces project. Consequently, there is significant and on-going
stakeholder and community engagement and consultation across all the project
workstreams, and partners with stakeholder interest and expertise are represented
on the project Advisory Board.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

https://www.thrivinggreenspaces.scot/

Page 57

8.2

https://www.futureparks.org.uk/

9.

Appendices

9.1

None.

Page 58

Agenda Item 8.2
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Festivals and Events Core Programme 2021/22
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Executive
All
46

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that Committee:
1.1.1 Notes that COVID-19 has had a significant impact on festivals and events in
the city over the last nine months and that events are only permitted at levels
0 and 1 of the Scottish Government’ Coronavirus (COVID-19) protection
levels. At present the Scottish Government has issued ‘stay at home’
guidance until the end of January;
1.1.2 Notes that the events outlined below can only take place if Coronavirus
protection is at the appropriate level and that all events will be required to
comply with the relevant Scottish Government guidance at the time of the
event;
1.1.3 Notes that event organisers, however, are continuing to plan for events to
take place in 2021/22;
1.1.4 Therefore, agrees, in principle, the following funding allocations from the
Events budget:
1.1.4.1

£70,000 towards the Tour of Britain;

1.1.4.2

£30,000 towards the Edinburgh Winter Run;

1.1.4.3

£7,000 towards the Squash European Masters Championships;

1.1.4.4

£10,000 towards the Small Countries Beach Volleyball
International;

Page 59

1.1.4.5

£10,000 towards the UK Beach Volleyball Tour;

1.1.4.6

£15,000 towards the Commonwealth Games Qualification
Tournament;

1.1.4.7

£20,000 towards the Edinburgh International Swim Meet.

1.1.4.8

£30,000 towards the Scottish Album of the Year Awards;

1.1.4.9

£25,000 towards Burns&Beyond Festival in 2022;

1.1.5 Notes the update to the Edinburgh Summer Sessions programme in West
Princes Street Gardens for 2021;
1.1.6 Notes the continued in principle commitment to the following events from the
Events budget:
1.1.6.1

£5,000 towards Armed Forces Day from the 2021/22 financial
year;

1.1.6.2

£18,000 towards the Edinburgh Award; and

1.1.6.3

£8,000 towards the Remembrance Day Service;

1.1.7 Notes that, where the Scottish Government guidance means that events
cannot take place as planned, event organisers will be encouraged to plan
for online events if possible; and
1.1.8 Will be kept updated on the status of events throughout the year through the
Committee Business Bulletin.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: Lindsay Robertson, Arts, Festivals, Events and Public Safety Manager
E-mail: lindsay.robertson@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel: 0131 529 6719
Contact: David Wardrop, Sports Events and Special Projects Manager
E-mail: david.wardrop@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel: 0131 529 7738
Contact: David Waddell, Senior Events Officer
E-mail: david.waddell@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel: 0131 529 4929

Page 60

Report

Festivals and Events Core Programme 2021/22
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report provides an update on the recommended core programme of festivals
and events for 2021/22. Given the current restrictions as a result of COVID-19, it is
recognised that this events programme could be impacted by the on-going need to
protect public health and therefore the nature and form of events may need to
change and some may be cancelled. However, to support the event planning
process, Committee is asked to agree funding awards in principle. Regular contact
with event organisers will continue and notice of changes to plans will be agreed
and publicised on an on-going basis.

3.

Background

3.1

This programme is aligned with the Council’s Events Strategy which was reported
and approved at the Culture and Sport Committee on 31 May 2016. The Strategy is
designed to provide a positive mix of new and well established cultural and sporting
events which promote Edinburgh as a vibrant, contemporary, international city.

3.2

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the events sector locally
and internationally. At the time of writing, events are forbidden in all but levels 1 and
0 and the entire country is in a national lockdown.

3.3

While the city and events sector has responded to the crisis with determination and
innovation with either hybrid models of delivery or the creation of outdoor/online
programmes, many events have not been able to take place and have had to be
either cancelled or postponed. The sector has suffered disproportionately due to
indoor venues being one of the last areas to reopen. Many workers in the events
industry are either self-employed or in small companies and have not had
employment or paid work since March 2020.

3.4

In order to allow the events sector to recover, the Council plays a vital role in
supporting the sector and in meeting the objectives of the events strategy for the
city’s residents and visitors.

3.5

However, the events outlined below can only take place if Coronavirus protection is
at the appropriate level and all events will be required to comply with the relevant
Scottish Government guidance at the time of the event.

Page 61

4.

Main report
Festivals and Events Core Programme 2021/22

4.1

The current proposed programme of the 2021/22 Festivals and Events is set out in
Appendix 1.
2021/22 Programme of Events

4.2

Armed Forces Day could not take place in 2020 but the event will return in 2021
and continues to recognise the contribution of veterans and the Council’s
commitment to the Community Covenant. This event comprises a city centre march
for veterans and finale event, featuring refreshments, entertainment alongside
charity and information stalls associated with the Armed Forces. An allocation of
£5,000 from the events budget is recommended.

4.3

The organisers of the annual Tour of Britain (Sweetspot) would like to bring the
event back to Edinburgh on 11 September 2021. The Tour of Britain is the UK’s
premier cycling road race and was last in Edinburgh in 2017 when the Grand Depart
was very successfully hosted from the Royal Mile. This time it is planned to bring a
Finish stage to Edinburgh, starting from the Borders, with the actual Race Finish in
Holyrood Park. The event is supported by EventScotland, British Cycling and
Scottish Cycling, and a title sponsor will be confirmed at a later date. Previous
Tours have enjoyed live coverage on ITV4, plus various highlight shows also shown
on other channels. There has been a huge upsurge of interest in cycling in recent
years, and the event will be free to attend for spectators, who will get to see some of
the world’s top cyclists racing through Edinburgh streets. As always, the race will be
managed in full consultation with the Council’s Public Safety and Roads Teams, as
well as Police Scotland, and will be achieved on roads which will be closed only for
a short period using the tried and tested rolling road closure technique, which
involves teams of trained motorcycle escorts to ensure safe passage through the
city. The event is likely to bring a significant economic impact for Edinburgh, as it
will attract spectators from around Britain and further afield. It is recommended that
£70,000 is allocated from the 2021/22 events budget.

4.4

Following its success in early 2020, the Edinburgh Winter Run scheduled for
January 2021 could not take place as a result of Covid-19. However, it is proposed
to bring this popular event back in January 2022, in the same format as before. This
will see up to 2,000 competitors running on the 5k loop road around Arthur’s Seat,
with Scottish Athletics staging a companion cross country event in Holyrood Park.
This is likely to be the British Cross Challenge, which attracts around 1,000 of the
best junior and senior athletes from the UK and Ireland. The event would also be
combined with the Scottish Inter-District match, and the Scottish Open Cross
Country. Organisers Triathlon Edinburgh would co-deliver all these events
alongside Scottish Athletics. It is recommended that £30,000 is allocated from the
2021/22 events budget.

Page 62

4.5

The Scottish Album of the Year (SAY) Award has grown to become Scotland’s
most popular and prestigious music prize. Developed by the Scottish Music Industry
Association (SMIA) in association with Creative Scotland, the SAY Award offers one
of the UK’s most lucrative prize funds of it kind (£20,000 winner prize and nine
awards of £1,000 to nine short list runners up) and champions the extraordinary
strength and diversity of Scotland’s musical landscape. With previous Longlist titles
featuring hip-hop, rock, alternative, traditional, folk, classical, dubstep, reggae, pop
and jazz, The SAY Award accommodates Scottish music in all its influential,
inspiring and idiosyncratic glory. The awards ceremony came to Edinburgh in
September 2019, alongside the Longlist nominations announcement, in June 2019
for its debut in the capital. This represents year three of three of funding to further
develop the event and establish Edinburgh as their host city.

4.6

This year’s SAY Award was reimagined to provide key strategic benefit and support
to Scotland’s music industry at a time where it’s never been needed more. The
2020 SAY Award was won by Edinburgh-based producer and rapper Nova for her
debut album, Re-Up, the first grime record to win in the prize’s nine-year history.

4.7

Robert Kilpatrick, general manager of the Scottish Music Industry Association said
Nova’s win “sends a powerful message of hope and ambition to Scotland’s music
scene” during a period of immense financial struggle for emerging artists and the
arts as a whole. It is recommended that £30,000 is allocated from the events
budget.

4.8

Scottish Squash has successfully won a bid to bring the European Masters
Championships to Edinburgh on 16-19 June 2021. This biennial event offers a
wide range of categories for male and female competitors from over-35s to over-75s
and is likely to attract over 500 competitors from all over Europe. Due to the sheer
number of matches which require to be played, a number of squash venues in the
city will be involved, which is likely to include Oriam and the Edinburgh Sports Club.
Participants will typically bring along one or more family members and stay in the
city for several days, which helps to produce a modest economic benefit to the city.
It is recommended that £7,000 is allocated from the 2021/22 events budget.
Beach Volleyball Events

4.9

Scottish Volleyball are planning to host three beach volleyball events at Portobello
in 2021 subject to COVID Guidelines:
4.9.1 Small Countries Beach Volleyball International. This event will see male
and female teams from countries including Iceland, Cyprus, England, Ireland
and Scotland compete in what will be part of the performance pathway for
the 2022 Commonwealth Games in Birmingham. It will be held in April or
May 2021 and will showcase the sport with some 60 top athletes
participating over 48 matches, providing the Scottish Team with some great
opportunities to compete on home ground. It is recommended that £10,000 is
allocated from the 2021/22 events budget.

Page 63

4.9.2 UK Beach Volleyball Tour. This annual tour typically takes place in over 70
locations around the UK. The tournament is unusual in that it allows
competitors from beginners to elite level to take part in a carefully structured
competition format. It is open to both male and female participants and is
planned to take place in July 2021. This event will also present an
opportunity for the Scottish athletes to compete at home prior to selection for
the 2022 Commonwealth Games. It is recommended that £10,000 is
allocated from the 2021/22 events budget.
4.9.3 Commonwealth Games Qualification Tournament. Scottish Volleyball are
bidding to host a Continental Qualification Tournament to provide national
teams from Europe with an opportunity to qualify for the 2022
Commonwealth Games. This will take place in September 2021 and is likely
to comprise four to six teams competing at the highest level. The
Commonwealth Games is one of the few major events where Scottish
athletes compete as Scotland, rather than as part of a GB Team. It is
recommended that £15,000 is allocated from the 2021/22 events budget.
4.10

The Edinburgh International Swim Meet event has grown out of the East District
Championships and has now firmly established itself on the UK swimming calendar,
taking place in the Royal Commonwealth Pool in March each year. Previous
competitors have included the likes of Adam Peaty and Duncan Scott, and in fact
British Swimming are keen to be more involved in its delivery and help enhance its
status to attract even more top swimmers to compete. The proposed enhancements
would include increased marketing activity, branding and professional live streaming
which would require additional funding to deliver. It is therefore recommended that
an allocation of £20,000 is made from the 2021/22 events budget for the March
2022 event.

4.11

Burns&Beyond is now in its third year and over the previous editions, the
organisers have created a popular and well-regarded festival in what is traditionally
a quiet time for the city. The programme combines large-scale public art
installations with showcases of the best in Scottish talent in music, spoken word and
poetry while celebrating the life and works of Robert Burns. The festival also
supports Culture United, a European partnership project that allows Edinburgh
schools to participate in the festival and to deliver multidisciplinary learning through
creativity. It is recommended that an allocation of £25,000 is made available from
the 2021/22 events budget for the January 2022 event.

4.12

The annual Edinburgh Award marks the outstanding contribution of an Edinburgh
citizen in their chosen field. The Award recipients are presented with an engraved
gift of a Loving Cup at a ceremony in the City Chambers and an imprint of their
hands installed in the City Chambers quadrangle. The gilding on the handprints
requires some refurbishment and will be completed in 2021. An allocation of
£18,000 has been identified from within the events budget for this annual city event.

Page 64

4.13

The annual Remembrance Day Service in St Giles’ Cathedral and wreath laying
ceremony in the High Street will continue to be supported through the provision of
large outdoor screens to relay the Remembrance service from within the Cathedral
to the public gathered outside. An allocation of £8,000 has been identified within the
events budget for this city event.
Summer Sessions 2021

4.14

The Summer Sessions concerts due to take place in Princes Street Gardens in
August 2020 were deferred to 2021, a decision approved by the Policy and
Sustainability Committee on 28 May 2020.

4.15

Officers are in the process of addressing the operational impact on access to
Princes Street Gardens and an Event Planning Officer Group (EPOG) will be
established to manage this process. The event organiser has rescheduled artists,
ticket transfers and/or refunds and will work through the EPOG to address the
required licensing and public health and safety requirements pertaining the event
achieved through relevant applications and EPOG recommendations.
Update on Illumination of Granton Gasometer

4.16

In the Core Festivals and Events 2020/21 report to this Committee in January 2020,
£100,000 of funding was allocated to the illumination of the Granton Gasometer.
Due to pressures on the in-year Place budget, this allocation was reduced to
£75,000. Following Committee, the Council has secured additional funding of
around £100,000 to procure, through Edinburgh College, a lighting engineer to take
forward the illumination of the Granton gas holder. Works to illuminate this
magnificent structure, which will light up the city’s skyline, will commence early this
year with the illumination expected early spring. The illuminations will be for a
minimum of two years, providing the students at Edinburgh College with the
opportunity to enhance their skills within this field. Due to Covid restrictions, the
legacy launch event that was to accompany the switch-on is unlikely to be held in
spring but plans to undertake this at a later date once current restrictions are
relaxed are ongoing. This project provides a magnificent opportunity for the Council
and its partners to showcase their ambition and commitment to creating a new
coastal town in Edinburgh which will bring further creative and cultural opportunity
alongside setting the standard in sustainability through exemplar urban design and
placemaking.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

Continue to work in partnership with stakeholders, partners and residents to deliver
a successful sports and cultural events and activities portfolio for the city through
the framework of the Events Strategy.

5.2

Committee will be kept updated on the arrangements for events through the
Committee Business Bulletin.

Page 65

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The Festivals and Events Core Programme is funded from the Council’s revenue
budget allocation for Culture.

6.2

The contributions to events listed in this report can be contained in the current
projected Events budget for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

The Council has engaged with the relevant partners and event promoters to
develop and deliver these proposals.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

Festival and Events Core Programme 2019/20 - Culture and Communities
Committee, 29 January 2019

9.

Appendices

9.1

Appendix 1 – Festival and Events Programme to end March 2022

Page 66

APPENDIX 1
FESTIVALS AND EVENTS PROGRAMME to end March 2022
New events are italicised.
* denotes one of the major festivals
** denotes one of the major festivals with dates still to be confirmed

CEC Funded Events in Calendar Year 2021 to 31 March 2022
28 December 2020 – 1 January 2021

Edinburgh’s Hogmanay Festival*

22 – 31 January 2021

Burns & Beyond Festival

April/May 2021

Small Countries Beach Volleyball International

19 May – 30 May 2021

Imaginate Festival*

16 – 19 June 2021

Squash European Masters Championship

26 June 2020

Armed Forces Day

Date TBC

Edinburgh International Film Festival**

26 June – 11 July 2021

Edinburgh International Science Festival*

July 2021 (date TBC)

UK Beach Volleyball Tour

16 - 25 July 2021

Edinburgh International Jazz and Blues Festival*

29 July – 29 August 2021

Edinburgh Art Festival*

August (various dates)

Edinburgh Summer Sessions

6 – 30 August 2021

Edinburgh International Festival*

6 – 30 August 2021

Edinburgh Festival Fringe*

6– 28 August 2021

Royal Edinburgh Military Tattoo*

14 – 30 August 2021

Edinburgh International Book Festival*

11 September 2021

Tour of Britain

September (date TBC)

Scottish Album of the Year Awards

September (date TBC)
Tournament.

Commonwealth Games Qualification

16 – 31 October 2021

Scottish International Storytelling Festival*

November 2021 (date TBC)

The Edinburgh Award

14 November 2021

Remembrance Sunday

30 December 2021 – January 2022

Edinburgh’s Hogmanay Festival*

January 2022 (date TBC)

Edinburgh Winter Run

January 2022 (date TBC)

Burns&Beyond

March 2022 (date TBC)

Edinburgh International Swimming Meet

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.3
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

City Centre Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Measures Update
Report
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Routine
City Centre
15, 16, 46, 51

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that Committee:
1.1.1 notes that the officer working group progressed the assessment of the
suitability of type, position, and cost of Hostile Vehicle Mitigation (HVM)
installations at prioritised sites in the city centre up until “lockdown” in March
2020;
1.1.2 notes the proposed extension of activity to include external partners to allow
joint planning for any installations;
1.1.3 approves the working group recommendation that all statutory and project
planning for the city centre public realm going forward includes consideration
of HVM measures at key sites;
1.1.4 notes that a further update report will be prepared following return to normal
working conditions to outline the findings from the working group and to
provide details of the anticipated cost and how it will be funded; and
1.1.5 approves the continued liaison with Police Scotland and the Centre for the
Protection of National Infrastructure (CPNI), as appropriate, to develop the
protective scheme proposals.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: John McNeill. Senior Public Safety Officer
E-mail: john.mcneill@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 4559

Page 69

Report

City Centre Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Measures Update
Report
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report updates Committee on the progress of the project to install safety
measures in the city centre to protect crowded places from the threat of a hostile
vehicle being used as a weapon (VAW).

2.2

It is proposed that the working group continues to gather information and to bring
forward recommendations for the future installation of Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
(HVM) measures in the city.

3.

Background

3.1

HVMs were provided to the city by the Centre for Protection of National
Infrastructure (CPNI) in 2017 to mitigate the risks associated with VAW.

3.2

A working group was established in 2019 to consider options for the city to
introduce HVM at locations across the city where VAW could be deployed.

3.3

It was noted in the previous report that it is essential that HVM measures are
considered when public realm developments and/or events in the public realm are
planned and that these measures should be demountable, where possible, and, as
far as possible, are in keeping with the surrounding landscape and built
environment. Discussions have been on-going with project staff for several city
centre projects to incorporate HVM measures into the designs, e.g. King’s Theatre
redevelopment, George Street / City Centre Transformation, Meadows to George
Street cycleway, Picardy Place etc.

3.4

The Centre for Protection of National Infrastructure (CPNI) have not indicated a
terminal date for the current National Barrier Asset (NBA) but are encouraged to
see that the city is working towards a replacement for their assets.

3.5

The in-house temporary system is retained and can be deployed at events in the
city where a risk from VAW had been identified. These events may include
Summertime Streets, REMT, various Festival sites, Christmas and Hogmanay
activities.

Page 70

3.6

As noted in the last report, a Working Group meeting took place on 17 April 2019.
At this meeting one of the preferred option gates was presented. The flexibility in
the final appearance of this type of gate was explained, showing it can be tailored to
the requirements of the city (see Appendix 1).

3.7

A briefing on the up to date position was circulated on 29 November 2020 to
Elected Members and Council Officers involved in project design.

4.

Main report

4.1

The working group met on 23 and 29 May 2019 and 28 January 2020 to discuss
HVM locations for the High Street in more detail and to explore the potential for a
pilot installation in conjunction with proposed Public Realm road works to the High
Street/Jeffrey Street/St Mary’s Street junction, including the sharing of subterranean
investigation research on utilities etc.

4.2

The meetings resulted in the potential to install a pilot gate in the High Street
between the junction and John Knox House, giving a design and build timeline
together with more accurate costs for much of the rest of the scheme.

4.3

This would provide a potential opportunity to pilot the installation of a proposed
HVM gate, although this location is considered a second-tier priority.

4.4

The Council, through the Working Group, will continue to progress liaison with
venue owners and managers like the University of Edinburgh, the Royal Edinburgh
Military Tattoo (REMT) etc. to develop a partnership approach to the installation of
HVM measures.

4.5

Locations for permanent fixtures will be kept under review in line with Public Realm
works and other emerging proposals.

4.6

Initial consideration of the introduction of HVMs in the city have concluded that it is
preferred for any measures to be demountable and deployed only when and where
required, to minimise impact on pedestrians, cyclists and those enjoying
Edinburgh’s public realm and the appreciation of the city centre. The only proposal
where this may not be possible would be at Mound Place where a section of stone
wall may require to be constructed to define the line of protection. The wall design
will be considered alongside planning requirements for the locale and the Meadows
to George Street cycleway project.

4.7

The Council will still retain the ability to deploy the portable, temporary assets which
can be used to protect one-off events in areas where there is no permanent
protection.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

It is proposed that the working group continues to progress discussions on the
design and costs of HVMs.

Page 71

5.2

Briefings for Elected Members will be set up to consider design criteria for the final
pattern of the gates at the appropriate time.

5.3

The installation of the pilot gate in the High Street will remain on the project
planning agenda as it would assist in the final preparation of a business case for the
project as accurate costs and timelines could then be set.

5.4

Engagement with partner organisations to investigate the suitability of locations for
mitigation within their property and to seek funding partnerships where appropriate
will continue.

5.5

Continue to consider second priority areas that occasionally become crowded
places for events and festivals e.g. George Square, George Street, Cowgate, parts
of the Royal Mile, etc, then third priority areas that very occasionally become
crowded places due to circumstances such as building evacuations or high-level
events, such as the Playhouse, and E.I.C.C. etc.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The full cost of the installing and maintaining of HVM measures is still to be
calculated and, to a great extent will be based on final product choice exact number
and location of gates, bollards etc.

6.2

There is currently no dedicated funding for the installation of these measures within
the Council’s capital budget, although limited funding is integrated into budgets for
wider public realm improvements. Similarly, there is no revenue budget available to
maintain the measures once they are installed.

6.3

A future report will set out the full cost and funding solutions for consideration by
members, although timescales on this are uncertain due to the current pandemic.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

The Working Group is made up of both Council officers and partner agency
representatives; the membership will also work with event producers and affected
site owners and interested parties going forward.

7.2

Partners will be invited to a presentation to be held in March 2021 which will outline
the proposals for the areas affected.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

None.

9.

Appendices

9.1

Appendix 1 – Lockdown barrier design.

Page 72

Appendix 1

Examples

London Embankment protecting Houses of Parliament Estate
Square fretwork with blank centre panel.

Windsor Castle
Ring fretwork with blank centre panel

Page 73

Appendix 1

Electronic renders

Westminster render with rings and crest decal in centre panel
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Westminster render with portcullis and crest decal in centre panel
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Notes:
•
•
•

The fretwork is a laser cut panel and can have almost any design cut in to it.
The centre panel is non-structural and can be completely omitted, have any design applied
or left blank for other attachments (street names, traffic signage etc)
The gates can be any colour

Page 74

Agenda Item 8.4
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Declaration of Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little
France Park as Local Nature Reserves
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Executive
9 Fountainbridge/Craiglockhart
17 Portobello/Craigmillar
43

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that the Culture and Communities Committee approves:
1.1.1 progression of matters to declare Wester Craiglockhart Hill as a Local Nature
Reserve (LNR) under the provisions of the National Parks and Access to the
Countryside Act 1949; and
1.1.2 progression of matters to declare Little France Park as a LNR under the
provisions of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: David Jamieson, Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries
E-mail: David.jamieson@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 7055

Page 75

Report

Declaration of Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little
France Park as Local Nature Reserves
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report outlines the Council’s legislative power to declare Local Nature
Reserves (LNR) and seeks the Committee’s approval to progress the declaration of
both Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park as protected nature reserves.

2.2

A LNR is an area of land declared under Section 21 of the National Parks and
Access to the Countryside Act 1949 by a local authority because of its special
nature interest and/or educational value.

3.

Background

3.1

Local authorities possess statutory powers to set up and manage LNRs under
Section 21 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949. It is a
statutory designation that is important for the conservation of biodiversity and
geological features at a local level. LNRs are best seen as critical nature nodes in
the urban green-blue space network because this sets them in an ecological
coherence context; values them as part of the environmental resources of a local
authority area; and draws attention to their excellence as sites of nature
conservation value. Reference to specific LNRs in development plans provides
protection from non-beneficial development; a positive land use for each site; and
demonstrates to everyone that the primary land use is nature conservation. The
production of a management plan for each Local Nature Reserve also strengthens
land use purpose and provides the basis for coherent site maintenance and
investment decisions.

3.2

To date the City of Edinburgh has declared and manages seven LNRs:
Burdiehouse Burn Valley Park, Cammo Estate, Corstorphine Hill, Easter
Craiglockhart Hill, Hermitage of Braid-Blackford Hill, Meadows Yard and Ravelston
Wood. The former Edinburgh District Council also declared Straiton Pond as an
LNR. The responsibility for this site transferred to Midlothian Council in 1996 as part
of local government reform.

Page 76

3.3

The selection and designation of LNRs is in accordance with the Edinburgh
Biodiversity Action Plan. The Scottish Biodiversity Duty section of the Plan contains
an action to ‘Continue a programme of developing and designating Local Sites’.

3.4

Wester Craiglockhart Hill is situated within the South West of the city. It is 10.3
hectares in extent and comprises unimproved acidic and calcareous grassland,
broadleaved woodland, and recreational amenity grassland. Part of the site is
designated as a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

3.5

Little France Park lies within the North East of the city. It is 45 hectares in size and
comprises a mosaic of reclaimed farmland, semi-improved grassland, newly planted
woodland specimen trees, wetland and open still water areas, a naturalised section
of the Niddrie Burn, species rich grassland, and scrub.

3.6

Both sites are owned by the Council and managed by the Parks, Greenspace and
Cemeteries Service in partnership with Friends of Parks groups and other partner
organisations. Part of Wester Craiglockhart Hill is leased to Merchants of Edinburgh
Golf Club.

4.

Main report

4.1

LNRs are areas of high natural heritage interest within the local context, which are
not just protected but are managed and improved with the conservation of nature as
a priority concern. Community participation, education and informal recreation are
also desirable objectives.

4.2

In order to meet the legislative requirements of the 1949 Act it is essential that a
proposed LNR meets these requirements:
4.2.1 Consists of land: Wester Craiglockhart Hill is an area of open public space
consisting of a SSSI, unimproved acidic and calcareous grassland, and
broadleaved woodland. Little France Park is a naturalised site with locally
rare and desirable habitats comprising reclaimed farmland, semi-improved
grassland, newly planted woodland and specimen trees, wetland and open
still water areas, a burn with riparian habitat, species rich grassland and
scrub.
4.2.2 Is managed: Wester Craiglockhart Hill is partly managed by the Parks,
Greenspace and Cemeteries service via a management group comprising
Council officers and representatives from Merchants of Edinburgh Golf Club
and the Friends of Wester Greenbank. The golf course sections are
managed by the golf club, under lease arrangements. Little France Park is
managed by the Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries service via a
management group comprising Council officers, Edinburgh and Lothian
Greenspace Trust, Royal Botanic Garden Edinburgh, Scottish Wildlife Trust,
Scottish Enterprise, and the Friends of Little France Park.

Page 77

4.2.3 Provides special opportunities for study and research of British flora
and fauna and the conditions in which they live, and for study of earth
sciences of special interest in the area; and/or preserves the special
natural or earth science interest in the area: Given its SSSI status Wester
Craiglockhart Hill has significant educational potential, particularly as it is
adjacent to Edinburgh Napier University and within walking distance of two
local high schools. Biodiversity and conservation interest in Little France
Park is also high with a number of organisations currently using it for species
recording and habitat survey, notably Butterfly Conservation Scotland, the
Bumblebee Conservation Trust, Royal Botanical Garden Edinburgh,
Woodland Trust Scotland, Forestry Land Scotland, Scottish Wildlife Trust,
British Trust for Ornithology, and the Botanical Society Scotland. The site is
also regularly used by health and wellbeing groups, for school engagement
and conservation volunteer activities.
4.2.4 Consists predominately of British flora or fauna: Wester Craiglockhart
Hill has three main British habitat types, each with a diversity of species and
healthy ecosystems. Recent surveys identified the presence of national and
locally important plant species, such as welted thistle and common rockrose, as well as three protected terrestrial mammal species (common
pipistrelle, soprano pipistrelle and Eurasian badger), bird species of
conservation concern (e.g. swift and sparrowhawk) and seven species of
bumblebee, including the scarce buff-tailed bumblebee. Little France Park
contains a significant number of locally significant bird species (skylark,
buzzard, kestrel and yellowhammer) reliant on its mosaic of habitats, as well
as being particularly rich for locally rare butterflies and other invertebrates,
such as small skipper and speckled wood.
4.2.5 Have the study and research into, or preservation of, nature or the
earth sciences as a priority objective and not as an incidental land
management consideration: Environmental education, conservation,
surveying, promotion for research and species and habitat monitoring and
the preservation of habitat all feature in the management objectives of both
Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park.
4.2.6 Lie within the jurisdiction of the local authority concerned: Both Wester
Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park lie wholly within the administrative
boundary of City of Edinburgh Council.
4.2.7 Be owned or leased by the local authority, or under an agreement from
the owner or tenant: Wester Craiglockhart Hill is owned by the City of
Edinburgh Council and partly leased to the Merchants of Edinburgh Golf
Club. Little France Park is owned by the City of Edinburgh Council.
4.3

NatureScot (Scotland’s Nature Agency) also recommends that sites should be
selected which provide accessible, positive, current (or potential) informal
opportunities for raising people’s awareness, understanding and enjoyment of, and
involvement with, their local natural heritage; and be (or have the potential to be) of
special natural heritage interest in the area, through good management and

Page 78

safeguarding of the site. Both Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park are
managed by the Council as publicly accessible natural green spaces. Site
management plans encourage responsible use, and awareness, understanding and
enjoyment of nature.
4.4

As both Wester Craiglockhart Hill and Little France Park fully meet the legislative
requirements of the 1949 Act, have stakeholder support, have management plans
in place, and their management as nature reserves can be contained within existing
service budgets, they are deemed appropriate and welcome additions to the
Council’s suite of Local Nature Reserves.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

Under Section 21(6) of the 1949 Act, a local authority may only declare a LNR after
consultation with the Government’s nature agency. Any comments made by
NatureScot are simply advice, it has no mandatory powers regarding site selection
and management. However, its support is considered to be significant in that it is
able to offer management advice.

5.2

Similarly, community support for the LNR declaration is considered beneficial if
long-term protection and management is to be successful. In order to gain the views
of the wider community a formal consultation exercise will be undertaken via the
Council’s Consultation Hub.

5.3

Following consultation with NatureScot and Edinburgh residents, a notice of
declaration must be published ‘in a manner which appears best suited to informing
the persons concerned’. In this instance it will involve placement of electronic
copies of the declarations on the Council website.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

Any legal costs associated with these declarations will be met from the Parks,
Greenspace and Cemeteries service revenue budget.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

Both LNR proposals have been received positively by the Wester Craiglockhart Hill
Management Group and Little France Park Management Group respectively.

7.2

The Merchants of Edinburgh Golf Club have confirmed their support for the
declaration of Wester Craiglockhart Hill.

7.3

There are no equalities, health and safety, governance, compliance or regulatory
implications that elected members need to take account of when reaching their
decision.

Page 79

7.4

There are no negative impacts relating to carbon impacts, adaptation to climate
change and sustainable development. Rather, LNR declaration will increase the
city’s resilience to climate change impacts because it will increase protection of the
city’s semi-natural green space and the habitats and species that make up the
green space. It will also help achieve a sustainable Edinburgh as LNRs provide
people opportunity to enjoy their local natural environment, delivering benefits to
health, education and wellbeing.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

https://www.nature.scot/local-nature-reserves-scotland-guide-their-selection-anddeclaration

8.2

https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/wester-craiglockhart-hill-mgt-plan/
https://consultationhub.edinburgh.gov.uk/sfc/little-france-park-plan/

9.

Appendices

9.1

Little France LNR Boundary Map.

9.2

Wester Craiglockhart Hill LNR Boundary Map.

Page 80

Appendix 1 - Little France LNR Boundary Map

Page 81

Appendix 2 - Wester Craiglockhart Hill LNR Boundary Map

Page 82

Agenda Item 8.5
Culture and Communities Committee

10am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021
Public Realm CCTV Update
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Executive
All

1.

Recommendations

1.1

To approve the update of the multi-agency project board for the upgrade of the
Public Realm CCTV service in Edinburgh.

1.2

To request an update on the Public Realm CCTV upgrade project progress in nine
months’ time.

Jackie Irvine
Head of Safer and Stronger Communities and Chief Social Work Officer
Contact: Carey Fuller, Senior Manager Community Justice
E-mail: Carey.Fuller@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 532

Page 83

Culture and Communities Committee Report

Public Realm CCTV Service
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report seeks to present an update on the progress made towards developing
the Public Realm CCTV service in Edinburgh.

3.

Background

3.1

The City of Edinburgh Council operates a CCTV camera estate across the public
realm, housing blocks, the transport network, and Council buildings. Provision of
CCTV services is non-statutory, and the service is provided to support public safety
and security, including the prevention and detection of crime.

3.2

An internal audit review of CCTV infrastructure conducted in 2017/18, included a
recommendation for the creation of a corporate plan for CCTV to ensure that all
CCTV operations across the Council are managed efficiently, consistently, and are
legislatively compliant.

3.3

Significant investment is required across the public realm CCTV estate to establish
an effective and efficient service. The current analogue systems have surpassed
the end of their serviceable life expectancy, particularly given the shift in technology
from analogue to digital/internet protocol (IP).

3.4

The Public Realm CCTV upgrade requires to be future proofed for any
developments in the Smart City Operations Centre programme within the Council,
to which the service area would be integrated.

3.5

The upgrade project successfully submitted a European Regional Development
Fund (ERDF) bid as part of the 8th City Programme; Scottish Cities Alliance smart
cities initiative. This bid revolves around the upgrade of public safety infrastructure,
for developing a ‘Smart City’. The proposal was approved, and the ERDF project
will span across 2019-2022. The amount requested from ERDF is £712,000 (40%),
with £1,068,000 (60%) being match funded from the capital budget allocation for the
CCTV upgrade. This project is currently being aligned with the Smart City Operation
Centre Programme.

2

Page 84

4.

Main report
European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) project

4.1

The ERDF CCTV upgrade project is underway, with Technical Consultants
supporting the development of a Specification of Requirements. The consultant
shall give consideration to all elements of upgrading the Public Realm CCTV
service, including the key components: cameras, transmission and video
management system (VMS). Furthermore, data protections, cyber security and
civils works considerations are part of the project and will need to be included within
the specification. The intention is to claim 40% of this consultancy contract against
the ERDF monies.

4.2

Significant auditing of the public realm CCTV system has taken place and the
impact of the upgrade on stakeholder systems, notably Police Scotland, is being
mapped out for a suitable working solution in the future.

4.3

Cross-organisational activity is taking place to ensure that the project is aligned with
the Smart City ambitions within the Council. The service area features within the
Digital and Smart City Strategy 2020 – 2023 and the upgrade project is a part of the
Smart City Operations Centre Programme board. This ensures that opportunities to
integrate technology across the organisation where possible are acted upon.

4.4

A separate contract, the ‘Transmission Survey’, has been completed and produced
a report which provides the project team greater understanding of the transmission
element of the specification of requirements document. Due to COVID-19 related
pressures in the industry this work package was completed behind schedule and
has since impacted the timescales of the upgrade project.

4.5

Revised upcoming milestones within the project are outlined below:
Tender Publication

February 2021

Tender Evaluations

May 2021

Committee Approval

August 2021

Contract Award

September 2021

Implementation of Upgrade

September 2021 – September 2022

Saughton Park
4.6

The Council has a requirement to install a CCTV system of 13 cameras at
Saughton Park linked to the Central Monitoring Facility (CMF) at the City
Chambers, to protect the £8 million refurbishment completed at the Park in 2019.

3

Page 85

4.7

The contract for these works has been awarded and planning stage completed.
Following COVID-19 related delays, the installation of the new system within the
park is due to begin in January 2021.

4.8

The new system for the park will be integrated with the larger CCTV upgrade
project, ensuring that the current investment in the park is part of the wider system
in due course.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

The continued implementation of the project plan and timeline for the upgrade of the
Public Realm CCTV, in adherence to the ERDF 8 th City Programme; notably
publishing the upcoming tender in February 2021.

5.3

The implementation of the Saughton Park CCTV system installation.

5.5

Continued cross-departmental co-ordination towards the development of the Smart
City Operations Centre.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The project intends to reduce maintenance costs of the new public realm CCTV
system.

6.2

The Technical Consultant contract advising the project is partly match funded (40%)
by the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF).

6.3

The Transmission Survey contract which has been recently completed is partly
match funded (40%) by the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF).

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

The provision of these CCTV services extends to Police Scotland and the Scottish
Fire and Rescue Service, as recipients of CCTV feeds at their satellite sites. The
project board works closely with all stakeholders to ensure that the benefits of the
upgrade improve service delivery for all partners involved.

7.2

This project will bring a smart, integrated approach to city monitoring and
management for Edinburgh. This capability will enable Edinburgh to develop a
proactive rather than reactive management response to events and incidents in the
city. The new system will be able to streamline workflow so that operators can
manage public safety incidents and co-ordinate with key stakeholders such as
Police Scotland more efficiently to secure better outcomes for the public.

4

Page 86

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

N/A

9.
9.1

Appendices
None

5

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.6
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Place Directorate – Revenue Monitoring 2020/21 –
month seven position
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Routine
All

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that Committee notes:
1.1.1 the Place ‘business as usual’ revenue budget forecast for 2020/21 is a
projected £0.516m overspend (excluding Covid-19 impact) including a
forecast budget underspend of £1.209m for services within the remit of this
Committee;
1.1.2 the Place revenue budget forecast for 2020/21 in respect of the net cost
impact of Covid-19 is forecast to be circa £28m. £3.890m of this budget
pressure relates to services within the remit of this Committee; and
1.1.3 that the Executive Director of Place is taking measures to reduce budget
pressures and progress will be reported to Committee at agreed frequencies.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: Susan Hamilton, Principal Accountant
E-mail: susan.hamilton@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 469 3718

Page 89

Report

Place Directorate – Revenue Monitoring 2020/21 –
month seven position
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

The report sets out the projected month seven revenue monitoring position for the
Place Directorate services. The month seven forecast is based on analysis of actual
expenditure and income to the end of October 2020, and expenditure and income
projections for the remainder of the 2020/21 financial year.

2.2

Excluding the costs of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic, the month seven
projection for the Place 2020/21 revenue budget is a net residual budget pressure
of £0.516m. This is an improvement of £1.194m on the reported month five position,
reflective of an updated assessment of approved savings delivery, implementation
of additional measures to mitigate carried forward pressures and savings from
reduced scale external events. £0.559m of this improvement relates to services
within the remit of this Committee.

2.3

At month seven, the services within the remit of this Committee are forecasting an
underspend against budget in 2020/2021 of £1.209m. The respective service
positions for Parks and Greenspaces and Cultural Services are set out later in this
report.

2.4

At month seven, the General Fund Covid-19 impact for Place Directorate has been
forecast to be a net cost in the region of £28m with £3.890m of this relating to
services within the remit of this Committee.

2.5

The Executive Director of Place is fully committed to making all efforts to identify
management action to reduce the budget pressures. However, given the magnitude
of these pressures, there is the potential for a significant level of overspend.

3.

Background

3.1

The portfolio of services under the remit of the Committee have a General Fund
gross revenue budget of £23.212m in 2020/2021 which is netted to £12.034m after
budgeted income of £11.178m is considered. A fund of up to £1.000m is also held
Corporately for 2020/2021 expenditure undertaken in respect of the Platform for
Creative Excellence (PLACE).

Page 90

3.2

This report provides an update on financial performance against the above revenue
budgets. A separate report to the Council’s Finance and Resources Committee on
21 January 2021 sets out the projected position on the Council’s Capital Investment
Programme.

4.

Main report

4.1

At month seven, the 2020/2021 forecast net pressure across Place general fund
revenue budgets is £0.516m. This is an improvement of £1.194m from the position
reported at month five. The improvement is a combination of progress made in
delivery of existing agreed management action, service manager efforts to address
‘at risk’ elements of approved savings and delivery of new measures. Gross
pressures of £8.690m have been identified and £8.454m of management actions
have been agreed across the Directorate with a commitment to identify additional
measures to mitigate against the risk of not delivering a balanced budget for the
Directorate as a whole. The month seven forecast reflects the delivery status
assessment of agreed management actions.

4.2

At month seven the forecast position for services within the remit of the Committee
is a £1.209m under-spend (excluding Covid-19 impact). This is an improvement of
£0.559m from the reported month five forecast. The respective positions for Parks
and Greenspaces and Cultural Services are set out below and summarised within
Appendix 1:
4.2.1 Parks and Greenspaces – At month seven the service is forecasting an
overall overspend of £0.330m in respect of ‘business as usual’. This is a
£0.120m improvement on the reported month five position and can be
attributed to spend reductions in predominantly supplies and services which
were brought forward by the service. As part of the 2020/21 budget process
additional funding of £0.400m was added to the budget to partially address
underlying pressures which have predominantly arisen from legacy approved
savings which have not yet been fully delivered. This includes income
generation proposals in respect of Roundabout and Verge Advertising
(£0.290m), Parks Concessions (£0.150m) and Edinburgh Leisure (£0.181m).
4.2.2 Cultural Services – At month seven the service is forecasting an overall
underspend of £1.539m in respect of ‘business as usual’. This is an
improvement of £0.439m from the reported month five forecast. The public
health temporary restrictions on planned service operations have meant that
cost reductions have been identified against existing budgets by Service
Managers particularly in relation to variable costs in respect of supplies and
services linked to programmed events and activities which are subject to
temporary hiatus. The service has been successful in securing £0.240m of
funding from Creative Scotland in respect of 2020/21 operating costs which
has assisted in managing budgetary issues.

Page 91

Savings Delivery – General Fund Approved Savings 2020/21
4.3

The approved budget savings for Place Directorate in 2020/2021 total £4.508m.
Approved savings within the remit of the Committee total £0.112m and relate to
income generation proposals within the Culture service. A risk assessment
exercise has been undertaken and this indicates that, on the basis of actions
planned or already undertaken, £2.278m of the Directorate approved savings
including £0.112m of the savings which fall under the jurisdiction of this Committee
are ‘at risk’ of non-delivery within the 2020/21 financial year. As can be seen from
the underspend forecast for Cultural Service, the service has been able to bring
forward an in-year substitution for the approved saving through variable cost
reduction and external funding. This is shown in Appendix 1.
Covid-19 Impact

4.4

As can be seen from paragraph 3.1, the Place Directorate services within the remit
of this Committee fund 48% of their budgeted expenditure from income generation.
This has meant that the public health restrictions as a result of Covid-19 have had a
material impact on the services. At month seven the associated forecast pressure
from predominantly net lost income is £3.890m. The increase from month 5 is
representative of loss of income from Cultural operations to the end of the financial
year, mitigated in part by a reduction in associated variable staff costs. The
composition of this is shown within Appendix 2.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

The Place directorate is committed to delivering mitigating management action to
address identified budget pressures wherever possible. Progress will be reported to
Committee at agreed frequencies.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The Council’s Financial Regulations set out Executive Directors’ responsibilities in
respect of financial management, including regular consideration of their service
budgets. The Executive Director of Place regularly reviews the directorate budget
position alongside the identification and implementation of management actions to
mitigate budget pressures.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

Consultation was undertaken as part of the budget setting process.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

None.

Page 92

9.

Appendices

9.1

Appendix 1 – 2020/2021 – Place Directorate services within the remit of Culture and
Communities Committee - Business as usual – Month seven revenue forecast.

9.2

Appendix 2 - 2020/2021 – Place Directorate services within the remit of Culture and
Communities Committee – Covid-19 Impact – Month seven revenue forecast.

Page 93

Appendix 1 – 2020/2021 – Place Directorate services within the remit of Culture and
Communities Committee - Business as usual – Month seven revenue forecast.

Month five revenue
forecast

2020/21
Gross
Budget

2020/21
Net
Budget

2020/2021
Month 7
Forecast

Service
Parks and Greenspaces
Cultural Services
Total

£m
8.137
15.075
23.212

£m
2.968
9.066
12.034

£m
3.298
7.527
10.825

2020/2021
Month 7
Forecast
Variance
£m
0.330
(1.539)
(1.209)

2020/21 Approved Savings within the remit of Culture and Communities Committee
Saving

Cultural Service –
Income
Maximisation

Green £m

Amber £m

Red £m

Black £m

Delivered

In
Progress
0.00

Limited
Assurance
0.000

At Risk *

0.00

0.112 MC

Total £m

0.112

*PD = Project Design
*MC= Material Change in Circumstances
A substitution has been delivered by the service in respect of the above saving by
deployment of one-off temporary measures.

Page 94

Appendix 2 - Covid-19 Impact – Place Directorate Services within the
remit of Culture and Communities Committee - Month seven forecast
2020/21

Month 7
Forecast
£m

Covid-19 Income Reductions – Culture and Communities Committee
Parks and Greenspaces
Losses of income including for events, trading stances, park leases,
rechargeable tree works, nursery sales, timber sales and Edinburgh Leisure
recharge.

0.957

Cultural Venues
Net loss of income - sales, rentals, admissions and rents. Revised forecast
reflects projected position until end of year, offset by savings in casual staff
costs.

1.734

Cultural Museums and Galleries and Cultural Strategy
Net loss of income - museum and galleries donations, admissions and rents
based on expected periods of closure/service unavailability. The updated
projections reflect assumed disruption until the end of the financial year.

1.199

Total Covid-19 Impact – Place Directorate Services within the remit of
Culture and Communities Committee

3.890

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.7
Culture and Communities Committee
10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Community Centres and Libraries reopening (update)
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

35

1.

Recommendations

1.1

The Culture and Communities Committee is asked to:
1.1.1 Note the current use of community centres and libraries;
1.1.2 Note the current restrictions and challenges placed on community libraries
and community centres due to Covid-19;
1.1.3 Note that the current necessary measures are a resource challenge for the
Council and that maintaining a safe environment for citizens and staff across
the estate is subject to resources being made available; and
1.1.4 Approve the continued, phased approach to safely re-open libraries and
community centres in line with Scottish Government guidelines, allowing safe
roll-back to previous phases of service delivery, or forward progression,
depending on the prevailing Scottish Government levels.

Andrew Kerr
Chief Executive

Contact: Paul McCloskey, Strategic Manager CLD and Libraries
E-mail: paul.mccloskey@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 6156/ 07990 772 333

Page 97

Report

Community Centres and Libraries reopening (update)
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report outlines the present adaptation and renewal arrangements in community
centres and libraries, including performance data for libraries.

2.2

It outlines the challenges faced by the Council to continue to provide a library
service in line with government guidelines and public health guidance, alongside the
key pressure that remains on facilities management.

2.3

It proposes next steps to improve service and protect health and safety: the reintroduction of online reservations; upgrade of the current Library App to allow selfservice from customer’s own smart devices (i.e. mobile phone); resource request
service from Central Library Art and Design, Music and Edinburgh and Scottish
Libraries.

2.4

The key pressure on the Council remains the Facilities Management (FM) resource
deployed across the schools’ estate. Maintaining as far as possible a safe
environment for pupils and staff requires a high level and quality of janitorial and
cleaning services. The reopening of other Council buildings and services diverts this
key FM resource from schools and the service has a consequent pressure in trying
to address this gap in capacity.

3.

Background

3.1

The Council has 35 community centres and 28 libraries offering a wide range of
community learning, information and leisure opportunities which are highly valued
by citizens and community groups across the city. In addition to the 28 libraries
there are targeted mobile library services, a prison library and hospital library.

3.2

On 6 August 2020 the Council approved a process to enable approval for
Management Committees of CEC Community Centres to access centres for
essential services. These were the hosting of essential voluntary or urgent public
support services, such as food banks, homeless services, blood donation sessions,

Page 98

regulated childcare, access to retrieve equipment for outdoor youth work. Policy
and Sustainability Committee of 10 November approved the addition of youth work
(as defined by Youthlink Scotland) and community services that support the
vulnerable. Approval to reopen centres is on the basis that no Council resources
are required.
3.3

The first phase of Library building re-opening was approved and on 6 October 2020
six library buildings reopened for public use, offering a range of services with visits
controlled via a booking system. The libraries were: Central, Fountainbridge,
Kirkliston, McDonald Road, Newington, and Stockbridge.

3.4

The second phase saw a further four libraries reopened: Craigmillar, Drumbrae,
Gilmerton, and Wester Hailes.

3.5

Selection of phase one libraries was pragmatic, based on available space for the
large volume of returned items to be quarantined. The choice of phase two libraries
prioritised as far as possible those communities which have low Scottish Index of
Multiple Deprivation (SIMD) scores. Selection of libraries has also taken into
consideration planned building works which would affect re-opening.

3.6

Some management committees have had approval to reopen community centres
for the delivery of agreed essential services. Following the 10 November Policy and
Sustainability Committee decision, a new Missive was developed by the Council’s
legal and estates teams, which enables indoor public activity to take place within
centres without any requirement for Council resources. To date one Community
Centre has signed this missive and reopened for indoor activity. Several other
centres have expressed an interest but are not yet able to commit to signing a
Missive.

3.7

Community Centres guidance was published by the Scottish Government 21
December 2020. It is worth noting that the document ‘does not provide guidance for
the wide range of activities that take place within a community centre. Referral
needs to be made to the sector specific guidance for details on particular activities.’

3.8

The implementation of Level 4 in Scotland from 26 December 2020 has resulted in
the Council reverting from what is permitted under Level 3, in line with Scottish
Government guidance.

3.9

Since the announcement of further restrictions on 4 January, Community centres
may continue to essential services only e.g. emergency shelter, medical services,
meals for homeless. Officers have informed management committees of this
change.

3.10

Libraries continue to always be open online to borrow ebooks, audiobooks,
magazines and newspapers. Click and collect services may operate and we are
preparing plans as to how we may be able operate this service in our libraries,
subject to the teams not being required to provide critical/essential services
elsewhere.

Page 99

4.

Main report

4.1

The challenge before the City and the Council cannot be underestimated in both the
immediate and longer term. The national position regarding Covid-19 continues to
evolve. Therefore, any programme arrangements put in place need to have the
flexibility to adapt to changing circumstances and Public Health Guidance. Our
ambition is to have a planned, phased re-opening of libraries and community
centres as part of Phase 4 of the Scottish Government’s Scotland’s Route map
through and out of the crisis.
Libraries

4.2

In accordance with Scottish Government guidance for public libraries and the
capacity to support the safe use of the settings, the ten libraries offer a reduced
service so as to maintain good infection controls: returning items, browsing and
borrowing books, collecting hearing aid batteries, free sanitary protection, National
Entitlement Card (bus pass) applications and access to public computers, internet,
printing and photocopying.

4.3

Service performance, staff and customer feedback are being monitored: current
data is included at Appendix 1. Officers are learning from each stage to inform the
next stage.

4.4

An Integrated Impact Assessment on library service adaptation and renewal has
been completed and is available at Appendix 2.

4.5

The Library A&R Team is preparing plans to propose the re-opening of four further
libraries and the single Mobiles route in phase three if resources allow this. An
updated outline route map for further re-opening of libraries is attached at Appendix
3.

4.6

Subject to available resources and prevailing national restrictions levels, the team is
working towards an indicative date of 29 March 2021. This will mean that, all things
being equal, Blackhall, Piershill, Morningside and Currie libraries plus the new
mobile route will reopen on that date.

4.7

Improvements to the libraries offer have been developed in response to feedback
from customers, while continuing to maintain safe use of services.
4.7.1 A Contact and Collect model has been developed to enable citizens to order
a collection of resources (online, or via email or telephone) and collect them
at a pre-arranged time and date from their local library, without entering the
building. This could be introduced, subject to Facilities Management cleaning
being available, should the city remain in level 4 for some time.

Page 100

4.7.2 A bespoke request and collect service has been developed to enable loans
from the collections within Central Library (Art and Design, Music and
Edinburgh and Scottish). Current guidelines and restrictions do not allow for
these areas to be open at present. However, customers will be able to
request specific titles or subject matter from these departments and collect
the items from Central Library.
4.6.3 Library officers have worked with software developers to enable the reintroduction of online reservations in the current restricted conditions.
Customers will once again be able reserve specific items online via their
library account and collect from a library which is open.
4.6.4 Collection of items will vary depending on the current public health Level.
In Level 4 all items must be collected as part of Contact and Collect i.e. at
the library door with no entry to the building. Despite the fact that there will
no public access to the building, there is still a requirement for Facilities
Management resource to open libraries to operate in this manner.
4.6.5 The current Library App has been updated to enable customer self-service
borrowing through the App. Customers can borrow items using their own
smart device (mobile phone, tablet). This maintains social distancing,
reduces the number of people touching materials and allows staff to
concentrate efforts elsewhere e.g. providing information, assisting with
complex enquiries. Currently the return of all items must be controlled by
library staff for quarantine procedures, however, looking to the future, this
investment in digital technology will also allow customers to return their own
items (reduces the needs for staff handling), allowing a much greater degree
of simple account self-management.
Community Centres
4.7

Over November and December Virtual Teams meetings have been held with
Management Committees (MCs). Over 20 MCs were represented across the
meetings, along with third sector colleagues from Edinburgh Voluntary
Organisations Council (EVOC) and Lothian Association of Youth Clubs (LAYC),
representatives from Lifelong Learning, Facilities Management and Business
Support. These meetings gave MC’s an opportunity to question Officers directly and
share experiences with each other, as well as hearing service updates from the
Council, EVOC and LAYC.

4.8

A key theme from these meetings was how keen various MC’s and third sector
organisations were for centres to be reopened and the potential for Council
guidance to support this. Council Health and Safety, Fire Safety and Facilities
Management Officers will provide links to Health and Safety templates and signage
via the Council website, signposting MC’s to relevant Scottish Government
Guidance. Following the 10 November Policy and Sustainability decision, a new
Missive was developed by the Council’s legal and estate teams, which enables
indoor public activity to take place within centres without a requirement for Council
resources. Prior to the Management Committee signing the Missive, Officers will
arrange an onsite induction for key MC officer bearers, so that they understand

Page 101

what arrangements need to be in place prior to reopening. A trusted key holder
procedure enables the MC to have responsibility for controlling who has access to
their centre.
4.9

Many MC’s asked for their contact details to be shared with other MC’s, so that they
can more easily support each other in addition to support offered through EVOC
and LAYC. There is a commitment from Council officers and management
committees to continue these regular meetings, which have been very useful in
exploring the opportunities and challenges, in developing a mutual understanding
and appreciation of people’s different perspectives on adaptation and renewal.

4.10 Since the announcement of further restrictions on 4 January, Community centres
may continue to provide essential services only e.g. emergency shelter, medical
services, meals for homeless. Officers have informed management committees of
this change.

5.
5.1

Next Steps
Work will continue to adapt and renew community centre and library services.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The investment in the upgrade to the Library App has been contained within
libraries revenue budget.

6.2

In library buildings there will be a daily cleaning requirement of FM supplemented
by regular touch point cleaning by library staff during the day.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

The Council will continue to engage with citizens on its plans for libraries and
community centres adaptation and renewal.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

Coronavirus stay at home guidance 4 January 2021 https://www.gov.scot/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-stay-at-home-guidance

8.2

Scotland’s route map - https://www.gov.scot/collections/coronavirus-covid-19scotlands-route-map/

8.2

Coronavirus (COVID-19):public libraries guidance https://www.gov.scot/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-public-libraries-guidance/

8.3

Community Centre Guidance (21 December 2020) https://www.gov.scot/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-multi-purpose-communityfacilities---guidance/

Page 102

9.

Appendices

9.1

Appendix 1 - Library service re-opening data (updated Dec 2020)

9.2

Appendix 2 - Integrated Impact Assessment: library adaptation and renewal

9.3

Appendix 3 - Outline route map library service re-opening (updated Dec 2020)

Page 103

Appendix 1: Libraries re-opening update – January 2021

Usage and service capacity by branch: period 2 November 2020 – 31 December 2020
Library

Appointments
booked

Appointments
available

Failed to
attend

% service
capacity

Items
returned

29.1
26.6

Items
borrowed (or
renewed)
9824
2973

Central
Central
Children’s
Craigmillar*
Drumbrae*
Fountainbridge
Gilmerton*
Kirkliston
McDonald
Road
Newington
Stockbridge
Wester Hailes*

3507
523

12064
1968

455
66

108
263
1457
145
407
1866

1664
1560
3968
1536
2232
6032

14
13
216
17
39
32

6.5
16.9
36.7
9.4
18.2
30.9

343
1166
3812
450
1798
3673

329
671
3764
156
1827
3526

1768
1195
242

6032
4464
1872

204
136
29

29.3
26.8
12.9

5946
3639
820

5471
3607
487

8834
1180

* these branches are phase 2 re-opening and only re-opened on 14 December 2020.
Libraries digital services usage: period 1 October 2020 – 30 November 2020
E-service
e-books
e-audio books
e-magazines and
newspapers

October
18,226
11,128
211,256

Items borrowed
November
17,331
11,725
193,713

Total
35,557
22,853
404,969

In addition to the booked visits and loans of physical items, an update on the use of digital services is
provided above. This level of usage is up 50% for e-books, 40% for e-audio books, and 105% for emagazines and newspapers compared with previous year.

Page 104

Appendix 2

Integrated Impact Assessments
Introduction
We know that services are under pressure, difficult decisions are being made and normal working
practices may need to change or be adapted very quickly to ensure we can deliver essential services
at this challenging time. However, it’s important that we don’t lose sight of our legal responsibilities
in relation to equality, socio-economic disadvantage, climate change, sustainability, the environment
and human rights.
The Council uses an Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) tool to help ensure we are meeting those
duties when developing policies and making service decisions. We recognise that it may not be
possible to carry out all elements of the Council’s IIA process when making rapid decisions in relation
to the Council’s response to Covid-19. However, the Council remains under these duties and it’s
vital we continue to have due regard to potential impacts and record our consideration of these and
any mitigating actions required. We have produced this shortened guide to help relevant staff to do
this.
Heads of Service remain ultimately responsible for deciding whether an assessment is required and
ensuring potential impacts are considered and recorded. The full Council IIA process should be
followed in all but emergency circumstances and Equality Diversity and Rights Advisors nominated
by each service area have a role in supporting the process. We are also making arrangements for IIA
training to be provided remotely and offered to a wider range of staff, beyond Equality Diversity and
Rights Advisors, with further information to follow.
The remainder of this document provides guidance on:
1. Deciding whether an impact assessment is required
2. Considering potential impacts
3. Recording impacts and mitigating actions
1.

Deciding whether an IIA is required

1.1. The first stage is to consider whether a proposal requires an impact assessment. If you answer
yes to any question in the high relevance category, then an IIA is required. If you identify that an
IIA is not required, then you need to explain why/how you have reached this decision and send
a brief statement to your Head of Service for agreement and approval. This can be done by
email, but It is important you retain a record of this approval as evidence.
High Relevance
The proposal could potentially affect people for example in the availability, accessibility or quality of goods, facilities or
services
The proposal has potential to make an impact on equality even when this only affects a relatively small number of people
The proposal has the potential to make a significant impact on the economy and the delivery of economic outcomes
The proposal is likely to have a significant environmental impact
The proposal is considered strategic and high level in the organisation
Low Relevance
The proposal has little relevance to equality
The proposal has negligible impact on the economy and the delivery of economic outcomes
The proposal has no/minimal impact on the environment

Yes/no
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
No
No
Yes

If you have identified only low relevance please give a brief statement of your reasoning and report this to your Head of Service/NHS
Project Lead for approval. Please then insert the statement in the section in the relevant management or committee report.

Page 105

Appendix 2

2. Considering potential impacts
2.1. IIAs are normally carried out by a group of at least four people, to increase the diversity of
perspectives and provide supportive challenge. We would encourage you, when possible, to
make use of skype to facilitate this. If this is not possible, we would recommend that the lead
officer involves at least one other staff member.
2.2. Gather relevant data and evidence about the needs and experiences of people with protected
characteristics and those vulnerable to experiencing poverty and ill health in the context of the
work you are undertaking. A list of the types of evidence you will want to consider is included
within the summary report template at Annex A. Much of this evidence will already be
available within services; where evidence is not available, this should be noted.
2.3. As a group exercise if possible, think critically about how your proposal will impact on different
groups of people, including those with protected characteristics, and/or impact on human
rights, sustainability and the environment. A list of population groups and potential impacts is
provided at Annex B as a prompt to aid thinking (and is not intended to be exhaustive).
3. Recording impacts and mitigating actions
3.1. Taking account of what the evidence gathered is telling you, critically consider how the proposal
might impact on different groups in different ways. Consider positive, as well as negative
impacts, and consider what actions might be necessary to prevent or mitigate negative impacts
and/or maximise positive impacts.
3.2. Record a summary of the anticipated impacts and mitigating actions. A summary report
template for recording this information is provided at Annex A.
3.3. Return the completed summary report template to
strategyandbusinessplanning@edinburgh.gov.uk for publication on the Council website.

Page 106

Appendix 2

Annex A
INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY REPORT TEMPLATE FOR EMERGENCY DECISIONS
Please complete as many of these sections as possible
1.

Title of proposal

Library Service – adaptation and renewal (re-opening phase) of libraries following closure in
response to Covid-19 virus
2.

What will change as a result of this proposal?

The first phase of reopening libraries will see a selection of branches across the city opening
on Tuesday 6 October, for a range of services.
The initial service offer will include access to library buildings for browsing and borrowing, returning
items, free access to computers, internet and WiFi, support with National Entitlement Card online
applications, Hey Girls free sanitary provision, collection of hearing aid batteries, printing and
photocopying.
The 6 libraries are Central, Kirkliston, McDonald Road, Fountainbridge, Stockbridge and Newington.
The choice of locations for the first phase of reopening is a pragmatic one, based upon the
availability of space to manage an expected early surge in demand. We also wanted to avoid (initially
at least) library hub buildings where critical resilience services are operating
3. Briefly describe public involvement in this proposal to date and planned
In planning the reopening of Edinburgh's libraries our top priority is the health of residents and
colleagues, and the process is directed by Scottish Government guidance and Safer Workplace
Guidance for Public Libraries. Planning has considered the specific considerations for each library
building and we have examined different approaches adopted by our colleagues in many services
across Scotland and more widely afield.
The date and rationale for re-opening has been communicated via notices on buildings, library
account email, library web page, mainstream media, library social media and main Council web page
and social media communications.
As part of monitoring and evaluating the impact of this library reopening, we will seek customer and
staff feedback.
4.

Date of IIA

05/10/2020
5.

Who was involved in carrying out the IIA? (please list lead officer and other staff)

Name
Louise Graham

Job Title
Lifelong Learning Strategic Development Officer
(Libraries)

Paul McCloskey

Lifelong Learning Service Manager (CLD and
Libraries)

Page 107

Appendix 2

6. Evidence available at the time of the IIA
Evidence

Available – detail source

Data on populations
in need

Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD);
2011 census data; free school meals and school
clothing grants; RNIB sight loss data tool; the
number of individuals in key demographics
within Edinburgh, accessing specific Council care
packages and services.

Data on service
uptake/access

Library Management System; E-service supplier
platforms
People’s Network (public access computer)
usage

Data on socioeconomic
disadvantage e.g.
low income,
material/area-based
deprivation.

Scottish Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD);
free school meals and school clothing grants;
DWP Universal Credit application data

Data on equality
outcomes

https://scvo.org.uk/digital
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/accessibility

Research/literature
evidence

The Place of Kindness: Combating Loneliness
and Building Stronger Communities Carnegie
UK, 2017
Shining A Light: Country Factsheet (Scotland)
Carnegie UK, 2017

Page 108

Comments: what does the evidence
tell you about different groups who
may be affected?
Identifies small area concentrations
of multiple deprivation across all of
Scotland in a consistent way;
declared ethnic group; local
authority register of areas of need;
figures for Edinburgh compared to
Scotland
http://www.rnib.org.uk/knowledgeand-research-hub ; the percentage
of vulnerable communities and
individuals likely to be impacted by
a loss of service
Loan figures for physical stock
e-audio issues
e-book issues
Press Reader statistics
RB Digital e-magazine issues
Number of library members
Number of virtual users
Identifies small area concentrations
of multiple deprivation across all of
Scotland in a consistent way; local
authority registers of areas of need;
number of residents per locality
accessing benefits/seeking
employment
Digital equality – SCVO Confidence, skills, access and
affordability may prevent people
from being online.
Accessibility equality - tools to
provide digital solutions which
reflect the diversity of a wide range
of issues.
Libraries’ positive role in social
inclusion and mental wellbeing.

Appendix 2

Evidence

Available – detail source

Ambition and Opportunity: A Strategy for Public
Libraries in Scotland 2015-2020 Scottish Library
and Information Council (SLIC) and Carnegie UK,
2015
The Next Chapter SLIC and Young Scot, 2018

Comments: what does the evidence
tell you about different groups who
may be affected?
A summary of Scottish data on
attitudes to and use of public library
services.
National strategy – sets out the
vision, mission and outcomes for
public libraries across Scotland.

Public/patient/client Council complaint and compliment process;
experience
library enquiries email; library membership
information
account help; e-services account help

Insights, ideas and
recommendations for policy and
practice in public libraries following
co-design process with SLIC and
Young Scot panel members.
Customers can contact staff,
request help and feedback on issues
in a variety of ways.

Insight from public /
service user
engagement

Libraries enquiries email accounts; Libraries
social media accounts; event and activity
evaluation and feedback

Active web and social media
presence – monitoring customer
requests and feedback.

Evidence of unmet
need

N/A

Good practice
guidelines

Ambition and Opportunity: A Strategy for Public
Libraries in Scotland 2015-2020 Scottish Library
and Information Council (SLIC) and Carnegie UK,
2015
How Good Is Our Public Library Service – A
Public Library Improvement Model for Scotland
SLIC, 2014

Carbon emissions
generated/reduced

Business support library van run schedule;
Mobile library van routes; Library Link journeys
to libraries.

Environmental data

N/A

Page 109

National strategy – sets out the
vision, mission and outcomes for
public libraries across Scotland.

A framework designed for public
library managers and staff to
evaluate the quality and
effectiveness of their service
provision, identify areas for
improvement, and demonstrate
their contribution to overall
corporate performance.
Drop in carbon emissions indicates
a proportionate drop in service
delivery – and types of services
used by more vulnerable customers

Appendix 2

Evidence

Available – detail source

Risk from
cumulative impacts

N/A

Other (please
specify)

https://www.gov.scot/publications/coronavirus- Scottish Government guidance on
covid-19-public-librariespublic libraries use during Covid-19
pandemic by all user groups.
guidance/pages/protection-levels-framework/

Additional evidence
required?

N/A

7.

Comments: what does the evidence
tell you about different groups who
may be affected?

In summary, what impacts were identified, and which groups will they affect?

Equality, Health and Wellbeing and Human Rights
Positive
Restricted movement of people – customers and staff throughout
the city in line with government and council instructions not to
travel unnecessarily: phased opening approach allows impact of
opening to be measured and rolled back if necessary.
Citywide staffing approach supports reduced travel where
appropriate.
Staffing has been considered in discrete cohorts (bubbles) to limit
transmission.
Social distancing measures enforced in library buildings supports
staff and customer health and safety e.g. altered layouts, reduced
capacity, protective barriers, booking system, PPE.
Increased access through technology to greater choice and
improved accessibility (in some cases) to information and
resources.
Improved staff skills in use of technology and development of
these life skills in the population (increasingly essential for
employability).
New developments and innovation in service delivery methods
and programme development.
Increased engagement with audiences via social media.
Renewed access to physical book stock.
Enable fulfilment of customer reservations from open branches.
Physical, welcoming space – hub of community and place of social
inclusion re-opens – positive impact on local community.

Page 110

Affected populations
All

Appendix 2

Stage 2 reopening prioritises libraries in areas of social
disadvantage.
Request and collect service introduced for specialist departments
within Central Library not currently able to re-open (Music,
Edinburgh & Scottish and Art & Design). Customers can request
items via email/phone and collect items from Central Lending
Library.
Library App updated to enable customer self-issue and account
self-management via personal smart devices (e.g. mobile phone).
Supports social distancing health and safety measures for citizens
and colleagues and has potential to release library staff to address
more complex library enquiries.
Contact & Collect model developed for Tier 4 and library buildings
must close: return and borrowing of books and free sanitary
provision available for citizens from libraries without customer
access to buildings.
Negative

All

Booking system in place – at least initially – off-putting to some
and barriers to some for online and/or telephone booking.
Reduction in availability of specialist resources: health, rights, law,
community languages etc. – not all services fully functioning yet,
and expectations raised.
Social isolation and lack of support for mental wellbeing,
community support, peer mentoring and neighbourhood networks
– not able to fully support with short booked appointments and
current social distancing guidelines.
Necessary cancellation/postponement of programmed live events,
festivals and group activities – until otherwise indicated by
relaxation in Scottish Government guidelines.
Contact and Collect introduction may encourage people to travel
in tier 4 conditions when unnecessary journeys may be contrary to
Scottish Government advice.

Page 111

Appendix 2

Environment and Sustainability including climate change
emissions and impacts
Positive
Drop in carbon emissions as library van run is reduced, Mobile
Library vans and Library Link transfers stop during restricted
opening.
Majority of library buildings (18) remain closed – reduction in
water, power and lighting.
Less use of paper-based resources.
Opening more branches will enable shorter journeys and may
encourage walking to visit rather than travel by car or public
transport.

Affected populations

All

Negative
Minerals and natural resources (e.g. Cobalt) used for new and
emerging technologies has environmental impacts.
Ten Library buildings re-open – water, power, lighting.
Library van run and stock transfer re-starts in a limited form.
New stock deliveries re-start.
Having libraries open may encourage people to travel across the
city by car thereby increasing carbon emissions.

Economic including socio-economic disadvantage

Affected populations

Positive
Access to the People’s Network (free computer and internet
access) will support employability and training initiatives.

All

Staff training packages developed to be delivered remotely and
online – investment in webcams to continue this type of delivery –
part of service adaptation and renewal.
Programme of activities and events tailored for online delivery
and lockdown conditions continued as part of service offer.
Bespoke Children and Young People Libraries Facebook page
created to support parents.
E-issues have no fines and no fees.
E-learning content is free.
E-services are free.
E-resources offers e.g. family history e-resources available to use
from home – usually only available within libraries.
Stage 2 re-opening prioritises libraries in areas which have low
SIMD scores.
Free online reservations, request and collect and Contact and
Collect services (subject to resources and Scottish Government

Page 112

Appendix 2

guidance) to enable citizens to access required/desirable
resources.
Negative
Some libraries in areas of low SIMD scores (social and economic
disadvantage) remain closed.

All

Extra investment in digital technology and e-services in order to
deliver library services effectively – laptops/tablets ordered per
branch in order to improve customer experience.
Loss of income generation to Library Service from community
group room bookings.
Loss of income generation to Library Service from event ticket
bookings.
Significant loss of fines and loans charges income to the Council

8. Is any part of this policy/ service to be carried out wholly or partly by contractors and if so,
how will equality, human right, including socio-economic disadvantage, environmental and
sustainability issues be addressed?
No.
9.

Describe how you will communicate information about this policy/ service change to children
and young people and those affected by sensory impairment, speech impairment, low level
literacy or numeracy, learning difficulties or English as a second language?
We will communicate the reasons and process around libraries re-opening in various ways: with
posters, via web, social media and mainstream media. Messages will also be conveyed through
Government issue leaflets and mainstream media. We will promote the services that are
available, advertise how to make a booking, and how to contact the libraries that are open. We
will continue to communicate with Communities and Families staff, partners in adult learning,
youthwork and disabilities organisations.

10. Is the policy likely to result in significant environmental effects, either positive or negative? If
yes, it is likely that a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) will be required and the impacts
identified in the IIA should be included in this.
No.
11. What, if any, actions are recommended in response to the impacts identified above? This can
include keeping the proposal under review, gathering more data, or specific actions to mitigate
identified impacts.

Page 113

Appendix 2

Specific actions (as a result of the IIA
which may include responding to
financial implications, mitigating
negative impacts, action to manage the
risk of cumulative impacts)

Who will take them
forward (name and
job title)

Deadline for
progressing

Review date

Development of Pentagull booking
system to incorporate Contact & Collect
appointments

Lead Officer(s):
Louise Graham,
Lifelong Learning
Strategic
Development Officer

11 January
2021

18 January
2021

Testing and roll out of Solus Library App
self-service technology in re-opened
libraries

Lead Officer: Alison
Stoddart, Lifelong
Learning
Development Officer

18 January
2021

Promotion and marketing of Request
and Collect service for Central Library
specialist department stock

Lead Officer: Fiona
Myles, Lifelong
Learning
Development Officer

29 January
2021

19 February
2021

Health and Safety risk assessments and
Method statements prepared and
approved for Contact and Collect model

Libraries
Development
Leaders – service
offer working group

18 January
2021

19 February
2021

Lead Officer: Scott
Donkin, Service
Manager

Are there any negative impacts in section 7 for which there are no identified mitigating actions?
The fact that 10 libraries out of 28 are open is a very positive development. However, it cannot fully
mitigate the loss of physical service for those people living in areas of the city distant from a
library. While the revised mobile library programme in development will have some impact,
this will be limited. However, we are living through a pandemic and reopening of ten city
libraries, with a range of services for customers, with public, staff and volunteer safety as a
priority, is a positive step forward for the world’s first City of Literature and its people.

Page 114

Appendix 2

13.

How will you monitor how this proposal affects different groups, including people with
protected characteristics?
Through existing Council, partners and third sector organisational contacts for groups with
protected characteristics. In addition, monitoring channels of customer engagement and
feedback e.g. complaints and compliments process, library emails and library social media
channels.

14.

Sign off by Head of Service
Name Andy Gray

Date
8 January 2021
15.

Publication

Completed and signed IIAs should be sent to strategyandbusinessplanning@edinburgh.gov.uk to be
published on the IIA directory on the Council website www.edinburgh.gov.uk/impactassessments

Page 115

Appendix 2

Annex B
Population groups and potential impacts
POPULATION GROUPS
Think about how the policy or proposal could impact (positively or negatively) on the following groups.
People with protected characteristics
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Older people and people in their middle years
Young people and children
Men (include trans men), Women (include trans women) and non-binary people. (Include issues
relating to pregnancy and maternity including same sex parents)
Disabled people (includes physical disability, learning disability, sensory impairment, long-term
medical conditions, mental health problems)
Minority ethnic people (includes Gypsy/Travellers, migrant workers, non-English speakers)
Refugees and asylum seekers
People with different religions or beliefs (includes people with no religion or belief)
Lesbian, gay, bisexual and heterosexual people
People who are unmarried, married or in a civil partnership

Those vulnerable to falling into poverty
• Those who have low or no wealth
• Those on low income
• Those who live in areas of deprivation
• Those experiencing material deprivation
• Unemployed
• People in receipt of benefits
• Lone parents
• Vulnerable families e.g. young mothers, people experiencing domestic abuse, children at risk of statutory
measures, includes disabled adult/child, minority ethnic families
• Families with a child under 1
• Larger Families (3+ children)
• People in receipt of pensions
• Looked after children and young people
• Those leaving care settings (including children and young people and those with illness)
• Homeless people
• Carers (including young carers and carers with protected characteristics)
• Those involved in the criminal justice system
• People with low literacy/numeracy
• People experiencing difficulties with substance use
• Others e.g. veterans and students
Geographic / other communities
• Rural/semi-rural communities
• Urban communities
• Coastal communities
• Business community
Staff
•
•
•
•

Full-time / Part-time
Shift workers
Staff with protected characteristics
Staff vulnerable to falling into poverty

Page 116

Appendix 2

POTENTIAL IMPACTS
Think about how the policy or proposal could impact (positively or negatively) on the following objectives, and
how this might affect the population groups listed above in different ways:
Equality and Human Rights
• Eliminate discrimination and harassment
• Advance equality of opportunity e.g. improve access / quality of services
• Foster good relations within and between people who share protected characteristics
• Enable people to have more control of their social/work environment
• Reduce differences in status between different groups of people
• Promote participation, inclusion, dignity and control over decisions
• Build family support networks, resilience and community capacity
• Reduce crime and fear of crime including hate crime
• Protect vulnerable children and adults
Promote healthier lifestyles including:
• diet and nutrition,
• sexual health,
• difficulties with substance use
• physical activity
• life skills
Environmental
• Reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (including carbon management)
• Reduce need to travel and promote sustainable forms of transport
• Plan for and adapt to future climate change
• Pollution: air/ water/ soil/ noise
• Protect coastal and inland waters
• Enhance biodiversity
• Encourage resource efficiency (energy, water, materials and minerals) e.g. avoid single use plastic
Public Safety e.g.:
• minimise waste generation
• infection control
• accidental injury
• fire risk
Improve the physical environment e.g.:
• housing quality
• public space
• access to and quality of green space
Economic (including socio-economic)
• Improve quality of and access to services
• Reduce cost of living
• Maximise income and/or reduce income inequality
• Support local business
• Improve local employment opportunities
• Help young people into positive destinations
• Help people to access jobs (both paid and unpaid)
• Improve working conditions, including equal pay
• Improve literacy and numeracy

Page 117

Appendix 3 – Library Service – Building/Service Implications – Covid – 19
Scottish Government Framework – Applicable Library Service
The table below illustrates the four Service Stages (A1,1, 2 and 3) of the library offer and cross references this to the Scottish Government Guidance and
levels.
Service Offer
STAGE A1 Service Phase:
Contact and Collect – Pre order books and other
lending items via email and phone and online
reservations with appointment time to collect

Page 118
STAGE 1 Service Phase:
Browsing – Booking Required – including children’s
areas
Bus Pass Application – Booking required
Computer Access – Booking required
Hearing aid batteries – At door – no entry
Strict controls over numbers of customers based on
building size

Page 1 of 8

Implications
Scottish Government guidance 6
January 2021 ‘Local authorities can
continue to offer a click and collect
service and delivery service – the
regulations do not prevent
this. Although leaving the house solely
to pick up library books would not be a
reasonable excuse, a person could do
this as part of a trip for essential
shopping or exercise. It will of course
be up to local authorities whether they
want to continue to offer these
services, and the most important thing
will be that they only do this if they
can do so safely.’
Distinct service areas require
dedicated staff resource to maximise
throughput of customers. Staff
numbers higher than pre lockdown
requirements
Web and telephone booking in
operation
Strict health and safety measures

Level 0

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Level 4

NO

NO

NO

NO

Yes (see
note under
implications)

NO

NO

YES

YES

NO

Strict
Protective
measures in
place

Strict
Protective
measures in
place

STAGE 2 Service Phase:
Browsing – No booking required
Bus Pass Application – Booking required – Avoid
queuing
Computer Access – Booking required
Hearing aid batteries – Entry to branch to pick up

Potential for slight reduction of
number of staff required to maintain
safe operations.

STAGE 3 Service Phase:
Move to pre – lock down conditions. Open browsing,
return of group-based activity, children’s activities,
teenagers activities, booking system remains for bus
pass and computers, partners activities

Service prepared to return to Covid –
19 restrictions
Staff ratios per branch return to
normal levels. Maintain hygiene
practices.

NO

YES
Maintain
state of
awareness
based on
guidance

N/A

N/A

NO

YES
Maintain
state of
awareness

N/A

N/A

N/A

NO

Health and safety measures still
required

COVID LEVEL 4 STATUS – ALL BUILDINGS CURRENTLY CLOSED (as at 06 January 2021)
Branch

Current Status

Page 119

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of Customers
in line with H&S
requirements / Service
Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service Stage

Other factors to consider

PHASE 1 Libraries – October 2020
Central

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

1624

16

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Fountainbridge

Closed Was open prior to Lockdown.

291

12 – Separate ICT Suite

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Parts of building being used
to support storage and
quarantine with additional
staff welfare

Kirkliston

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

242

8

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Significant challenges exist
with storage solutions

Page 2 of 8

Page 120

Branch

Current Status

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of Customers
in line with H&S
requirements / Service
Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service Stage

Other factors to consider

McDonald Road

Closed Was open prior to Lockdown.

443

9

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Building not fully open to
accommodate storage and
quarantine

Newington

Closed Was open prior to Lockdown.

420

9

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Stockbridge

Closed Was open prior to Lockdown.

293

11 –

0–3

A1
(Proposed)

Not all of the building is
available for customer use
to accommodate service
offer, storage and
quarantine

PHASE 2 Libraries – December 2020
Craigmillar

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

583

7

0–4

A1
(Proposed)

Shared space with Council
Resilience Centre – loss of
library space at east end of
building

Drumbrae

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

330

10

0–4

A1
(Proposed)

Meeting spaces within
building are supporting NW
Social Work services

Gilmerton

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

217

6

0–4

A1
(Proposed)

Adjacent office space
leased to third sector org.
Shared staff welfare space

Page 3 of 8

Branch

Current Status

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of Customers
in line with H&S
requirements / Service
Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service Stage

Other factors to consider

Wester Hailes

Closed –
Was open prior to Lockdown.

607

12

0–4

A1
(Proposed)

External works around Plaza
entrance must be
considered at all stages.

PHASE 3 Libraries – DATE TO BE CONFIRMED

Page 121

Single Mobile
Library route

Plans to introduce one single
kerbside route to cover those
areas of the city where library
access is more challenging. May
be offered as a contact and
collect model.

N/A

To be confirmed

0-3

1-3

Service restrictions are
dependent on physical
restrictions of the mobile
internal space.

Muirhouse /
North

Discussions are underway locally
to identify an immediate service
solution and a longer-term
service offer whilst construction
of the new building takes place

N/A

To be confirmed

0-3

1-3

Service restrictions are
dependent on physical
location of temporary
service offer.

Blackhall

Closed – Refurbishment Work
underway with building likely to
be ready March 2021.

868

N/A

0-3

1-3

Dependent on
refurbishment works
completion and approval
via Health & Safety

Currie

Closed
Requires visit, reconfiguration
and approval of Health & Safety

190

N/A

0-3

1-3

Will involve very small
number of customers
during Covid level 3 –

Piershill

Closed
Requires visit, reconfiguration
and approval of Health & Safety

317

N/A

0–3

1-3

Will involve very small
number of customers
during Covid level 3 -

Page 4 of 8

Page 122

Morningside

Closed
Requires visit, reconfiguration
and approval of Health & Safety

455

N/A

0–1

2/3

Upper floor inaccessible
presenting reconfiguration
challenges on ground floor.

Branch

Current Status

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of
Customers in line with
H&S requirements /
Service Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service
Stage

Other factors to consider

Portobello

Closed

282

N/A

0–3

1

Moredun

Closed

250

N/A

0–1

2/3

Building layout/condition
presents challenges
around safe operation

Balgreen

Closed

112

N/A

0

3

On primary school
footprint. Size of building
impacts on type of service
alongside appropriate
safety measures

Colinton

Closed

134

N/A

0

3

Size of building impacts on
type of service alongside
safety measures

Granton

Closed

153

N/A

0

3

On Primary School
footprint. Size of building
impacts on type of service
alongside safety measures

Balerno

Closed

52

N/A

0

3

Size of building impacts on
type of service alongside
safety measures

Page 5 of 8

Current Status

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of
Customers in line with
H&S requirements /
Service Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service
Stage

Other factors to consider

Corstorphine

Closed – Refurbishment works
planned
7 January 2021 update:
Contract was awarded just
prior to Christmas and the
consultants appointed to
manage works will be
agreeing a programme in
consultation with Builders and
Library contacts over the next
week or so.

276

N/A

0–1

2/3

Layout of building impacts
on type of service
alongside safety
measures. Consider
proximity to Drumbrae
Hub

Oxgangs

Closed – Refurbishment Work
started 1 October planned
completion March 2021

Central

Open – Refurbishment
Estimated start 1 December
with completion August 2021 –
temporary short term closure

Page 123

Branch

Page 6 of 8

when main electrical board is
replaced.

Page 124

Gate 55

Closed

Not Known

N/A

N/A

N/A

Covid -19 test centre

Muirhouse

Closed – Due to be demolished
to accommodate new build
Culture & Learning Hub

410

N/A

N/A

N/A

New Cultural & Learning
Hub to be completed 2022

Branch

Current Status

Floor Space
(Sqm)

Max Number of
Customers in line with
H&S requirements /
Service Offer/Building size

Scottish
Government
Framework
Level

Service
Stage

Other factors to consider

Oxgangs

Closed - Refurbishment
Contract works to be
completed February 2021

338

N/A

0–3

1

Significant works taking
place until March 2021

Ratho

Closed – Due to be demolished
to create new school/library
hub

91

N/A

N/A

N/A

South
Queensferry

Closed -

137

N/A

0–1

2/3

Building layout creates
challenges around
distancing and service
offer

Leith

Closed -

537

N/A

N/A

N/A

Covid-19 Test Centre

NOTE:
Buildings
Page 7 of 8

Current conditions mean all buildings must be inspected and involve Health & Safety with a view to creating a safe layout, distinct service spaces and
functionality for staff welfare.
Each building will have a safe maximum number of occupants both in terms of staff and customers. This ensures effective distancing and monitoring of
hygiene in line with infection control and health & safety.

Staffing
More staff are required in each branch to ensure each distinct service area is fully supported, manage customers through their allotted booking time period
and ensure the next customer can access the service. Where social distancing measures relax going forward, staffing will begin to retract to normal
numbers. As the number of libraries reopening increases towards the maximum number, the service will need to recruit to some of the posts currently
vacant.
Covid-19 cleaning

Page 125

Library staff undertake regular touchpoint cleaning during the day to maintain standards of hygiene and reduce potential virus transmission. However,
there is a daily requirement for cleaning carried out by Facilities Management cleaning operatives as well as monthly fogging of each building. This includes
an additional requirement for cleaning on Saturdays and on Thursdays (at those libraries which were previously closed on that day).
Library futures
As part of the Adaptation and Renewal Wellbeing strand, a library futures option paper is in development, looking at the development of hub models and
taking into account the new build developments at Ratho (Nursery and Library) and Muirhouse (Nursery, Library and North Edinburgh Arts); the role of
library and information services in supporting community wellbeing and wider access to Council and partner services and information; extending choice for
citizens by their being able to access services through the use of Open + technology.

Page 8 of 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.1
Culture and Communities Committee

10.00am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Edinburgh Million Tree City
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

Routine
All
43

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that the Culture and Communities Committee:
1.1.1 notes progress made in initiating the Edinburgh Million Tree City project,
including a successful application to the Woodland Trust’s Emergency Tree
Fund for £298,055 to support project delivery; and
1.1.2 receives annual updates on the project, including tree numbers and other
monitoring data.

Paul Lawrence
Executive Director of Place
Contact: David Jamieson, Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries
E-mail: David.jamieson@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 529 7055

Page 127

Report

Edinburgh Million Tree City
2.

Executive Summary

2.1

This report provides an update on plans to ensure Edinburgh becomes a Million
Tree City by 2030.

3.

Background

3.1

The Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries service is leading a project to increase tree
cover to help Edinburgh fulfil its Climate Emergency commitments and become a
Million Tree City by 2030.

3.2

To achieve this, some 250,000 trees will need to be planted over the next decade
across a wide range of public and private land:
3.2.1 in parks and other Council green spaces;
3.2.2 along streets and roadsides;
3.2.3 on golf-courses and university grounds; in residential gardens; and
3.2.4 as part of new developments

3.3

Although a significant number of these can be planted and cared for at minimal cost
to the Council, there will be a requirement for a sustained funding commitment over
the ten-year lifetime of the project, from the Council, its project partners, grantgiving agencies and organisations, other landowners, donors, bond-holders and
sponsors.

3.4

At its meeting of 28 January 2020 Committee recognised the value that urban trees
play in addressing the Climate Emergency and global biodiversity losses,
supporting an ambition for Edinburgh to be a “Million Tree City” by 2030.

3.5

Although the impact of Covid-19 measures has meant that officer time to support
the initiative has been limited, progress has been made in determining existing tree
numbers, identifying the means through which tree planting can be funded and
encouraged across the city, and ascertaining how we can more effectively monitor,
record and communicate tree data.

3.6

The Woodland Trust has begun this contribution by granting £298,055 from its
Emergency Tree Fund to support project delivery. These funds will be used to
appoint a Million Tree City Project Manager and catalyse tree planting, project

Page 128

communication, project fundraising, public engagement and volunteer activity
between 2021 and 2023.
3.7

Once appointed, the Project Manager will establish and support a Project Board
and formalise the Million Tree Forum of supporting expert disciplines. A Project
Delivery Plan will be produced and reported against, and a tree number
accumulator established and communicated widely.

4.

Main report

4.1

In 2017 an i-Tree Eco survey estimated that urban Edinburgh had in the region of
713,000 trees, 25% under the City Council’s management and the remainder on
public agency or privately-owned land.

4.2

Since then, the Council and its partners have planted a further 36,000 trees across
a range of sites that are within its management, whilst around 5,000 trees have
been removed by the Council for public safety reasons (usually the result of disease
or storm damage) and active woodland management, bringing the estimated total to
744,000.

4.3

There is an unknown number of trees across the wider City of Edinburgh local
authority area. However, the urban areas of Balerno/Currie/Juniper Green, Ratho
Station, Ratho, Newbridge, Kirkliston, Dalmeny and South Queensferry are likely to
collectively contain at least 56,000 additional trees in proximity to residents bringing the overall total to around 800,000.

4.4

From 2021, the Council is to widen its tree condition survey activities to cover an
additional 82,000 trees, which is anticipated to increase the annual number of trees
requiring public safety removals to about 2,000 per year; an estimated 20,000 trees
between 2020 and 2030.

4.5

It should be noted that the scale of Ash Dieback in Edinburgh is presently
unquantified. The Parks, Greenspace and Cemeteries service will produce an Ash
Dieback Action Plan in 2021 that will include a city-wide condition survey of ash
trees and an analysis of the number of trees needing to be removed as a public
safety precaution.

4.6

A number of woodlands that were created as part of the Craigmillar/Millennium Tree
Projects (1997-2001) are now at the stage where they require thinning in order to
benefit the long-term health of the woodland habitat. This is likely to total
approximately 14,000 removals by 2030.

4.7

As 75% of the city’s trees are outside of the Council’s direct management control,
recent tree gains and losses across the wider city canopy are not known and a
significant number of trees are potentially vulnerable to loss. It is known that 2% of
Edinburgh’s trees, about 16,000 in total, are on vacant brownfield land and may
therefore be at risk from new, planned or future development.

Page 129

4.8

Taking these anticipated future losses into account, and discounting natural
regeneration, attaining one million trees by 2030 will require the planting and care of
some 250,000 new trees across the urban environment.

4.9

Many of the most suitable public green spaces were planted up as Millennium
Woodlands two decades ago, and since that time the Council has focused its tree
planting resources in public parks and other green spaces. New parks established
over the last twenty years have also already benefited from generous tree planting,
notably Little France Park. However, it is estimated that the Council’s public parks,
recreation grounds, housing green space, golf courses and school grounds could
readily accommodate a further 50,000 trees.

4.10

Because of the relatively high cost and complexity of establishing roadside trees,
there has been a steady decline in the number of street trees across Edinburgh.
This means that there is the potential to plant about 2,500 trees in streets that trees
have been removed from, as well as in suitable road and highway verges and along
central reservations.

4.11

Edinburgh is home to many government agencies, educational establishments, and
environmental charities that collectively have responsibility for the care of
substantial areas of green space. The National Health Service, Ministry of Defence,
Historic Environment Scotland, environmental trusts, and the city’s many
universities and private schools can all play their part in increasing tree cover on
their estates, perhaps up to 11,250 trees in total. There are also numerous private
golf courses, private outdoor estates and urban-fringe farms that have extensive
areas of managed green space. Again, some 11,250 trees could be planted in
these locations, enhancing both their immediate landscape and the wider city
environment.

4.12

Urban creep, the paving over and building on residential gardens, accounts for 6.4
hectares of vegetation loss in Edinburgh each year. There are 236,000 households
in Edinburgh looking after private or residential green space totalling an estimated
2,500 hectares. Not all will have gardens, and for those that do a tree may not be
desirable; but even if just a third of households with suitable space planted a tree to
support the project then Edinburgh would gain around 55,000 trees.

4.13

The Edinburgh City Plan 2030 proposes that all new development include green
infrastructure that provides a well-connected ecologically diverse landscape,
including trees where appropriate. It commits to the building of 20,000 affordable
and low-cost homes; recognises the need to supply land for 22,600 market houses;
identifies the need for an additional 22 primary and secondary schools; and has an
ambition to create significant new lengths of walking and cycling routes. With the
inclusion of more robust planning policy and climate-adapted developments, there
is the potential to introduce considerable new tree and woodland cover across the
urban environment. Although it is not easy to be precise at this stage of the Plan
process, it is anticipated that at least 120,000 new trees can be planted as part of
planned development.

Page 130

4.14

A city-wide Ecological Coherence Plan is presently being produced as part of the
Thriving Green Spaces project. This will help identify opportunity areas for tree
planting, as well as those locations ecologically sensitive to new trees. Research is
also underway to masterplan Edinburgh’s future green-blue network. This will
opportunity map potential woodland planting locations that strengthen the network
and help realise its myriad ecosystem services.

4.15

In short, it is possible for Edinburgh to be a Million Tree City by 2030, but this
ambition will only be attained if all sectors of Edinburgh society do their bit. To be
successful the Council needs the full commitment and ongoing support of other
landowners, government agencies, charities, residents, and developers.

4.16

Programmes of this scale and longevity demand appropriate and ongoing levels of
project management and partner support if they are to be successful. A Project
Board supported by a dedicated Project Manager will therefore be established,
along with formalisation of the Million Tree Forum of supporting expert disciplines.

4.17

This will initially consist of representatives from various Council services (Parks,
Planning, Housing, Roads, Strategy and Communications), Edinburgh Greenspace
Forum, Edinburgh and Lothian Greenspace Trust, Forest Research, Forestry
Commission Scotland, Royal Botanic Garden Edinburgh, NatureScot, Scottish
Wildlife Trust, The Conservation Volunteers, Trees of Edinburgh, and the Woodland
Trust Scotland. This grouping will vary and grow as demands on the programme
change over time.

5.

Next Steps

5.1

The ambition for Edinburgh to be a city of one million trees by 2030 has been set
and the Million Tree starting gun has effectively been fired. Although relatively few
trees have been planted during 2020 due to the impact of Covid-19 control
measures, there are plans to “catch up” during the 2021-22 planting season.
Subject to the provisions of Covid-19 controls the following actions will be initiated
during 2021 to support this:
5.1.1 February: Appoint Project Manager;
5.1.2 March: Establish Project Board and re-host Million Tree Forum;
5.1.3 April: Complete analysis of potential woodland planting locations;
5.1.4 May: Finalise Delivery Plan and formally launch Edinburgh Million Tree City;
5.1.5 May-September: Plan tree planting programme for Autumn-Winter, including
community and volunteer activities; and
5.1.6 From October: Undertake tree planting across the city.

Page 131

6.

Financial impact

6.1

The Woodland Trust has granted £298,055 from its Emergency Tree Fund to
support the initial phases of project delivery.

6.2

Given the current uncertainties around available land for tree planting, the relative
willingness of key landowners to plant trees on their land, and the specific times for
delivering additional trees over ten years, either directly, through partners, or via
new development, it is difficult to accurately determine the financial cost of
establishing 250,000 additional trees across the city.

6.3

However, experience suggests that there is usually positive engagement from
funders and other organisations for tree planting. Indeed, demands for tree planting
action are likely to increasingly resonate with potential funders as the need to
address the challenges of the Climate Emergency become ever more urgent.

6.4

In recent financial years the Council has provided an annual tree planting budget for
its public spaces, which if continued over the ten years of the project should provide
sufficient resource to cover the cost of establishing the requisite number of
additional Council parks and recreational land trees.

6.5

The Edinburgh and Lothian Greenspace Trust and Woodland Trust Scotland have
been working alongside the Council to develop the Edinburgh TreeTime initiative, a
vehicle to raise tree planting funds through public donation and sponsorship. A
review of the scheme is currently underway, the recommendations from which will
inform the required steps needed to increase generated revenues further.

6.6

Golf clubs, government agencies and environmental charities would be expected to
meet the costs of establishing trees on their properties. These costs should be
relatively small given the likelihood that young trees planted as woodland or groups
would be favoured over more expensive forms of establishment. The national
Forestry Grant Scheme offers financial support for the creation of new woodland
and the sustainable management of existing woodland. Within the scheme's eight
categories there are a range of support options covering tree planting, protection,
and on-going maintenance. It may be possible to offer “Million Tree” incentives for
these owners to encourage additional planting.

6.7

Similarly, developers would be expected to meet the cost of tree planting and
woodland planting as part of the conditions of planning permission. Responsibility
for on-going maintenance would differ from site to site, but would likely be a mixture
of resident managed, factor managed, or Council adopted land. Developers may
also be able to fund tree planting beyond their immediate development as part of a
“developer contribution”.

6.8

Tree establishment grants and materials for communities, schools and other
volunteers are available from Reforesting Scotland, The Woodland Trust and other
charities.

Page 132

6.9

Encouraging householders to plant trees in their gardens could take the form of a
discount scheme with local plant nurseries or, if financial support/sponsorship could
be secured, a tree “giveaway” scheme could be operated.

6.10

In addition to the Council, there are many companies, business and other
organisations in Edinburgh that are developing or implementing plans to become
carbon neutral. The Million Tree programme would help them to achieve this by
paying funds directly into the scheme to offset their emissions. The i-Tree Eco
analysis estimated that Edinburgh’s existing trees store an estimated 179,237
tonnes of carbon, worth £39.8m, and remove 4,885 tonnes of carbon from the
atmosphere each year, worth £1m. An alternative to direct payments would be to
work with existing charities that provide carbon offsetting to business by arranging
tree planting. These include Trees for Cities, Trees for Life, Ecologi, Carbon
Footprint, Forest Carbon, Carbon Managers and the Woodland Trust.

6.11

The Scottish Government’s draft infrastructure investment plan 2021-2026 seeks to
enable the transition of Scotland to net zero emissions and environmental
sustainability. Amongst its planned investments is a £350m programme to create
18,000 hectares of new woodland.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

Engaging individuals, families and communities in the project will be critical to its
long-term success, either as supporters, donors, planters or counters. There will
therefore be an increasing emphasis on communication, consultation and
engagement as it develops, and much of the tree planting will incorporate a role for
volunteers to help foster citizen care for trees.

7.2

It is important that tree planting and loss over the decade is recorded, and that
progress to the one million tree target is regularly monitored and reported. Recent
technological development will enable Edinburgh citizens to play an active role in
counting and recording trees via the on-line tree recording platform Treezilla. It can
be used by individuals (from novice to expert), Tree Wardens, Friends of Parks
groups, and by secondary school and tertiary students. A manual is also being
produced so that non-professional volunteers can undertake i-Tree Eco compliant
surveying, which will assist with data collection when updated i-Tree Eco
assessments are undertaken, probably at the mid-point and towards the end of the
project.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/news/article/12729/edinburgh-2030-a-million-tree-city

8.2

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Million_Tree_Initiative

Page 133

9.

Appendices

9.1

None.

Page 134

Agenda Item 9.2
Culture and Communities Committee

10am, Tuesday, 26 January 2021

Internal Audit: Overdue Findings and Key Performance
Indicators at 30 October 2020 – referral from the
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee
Executive/routine
Wards
Council Commitments

1.

For Decision/Action
The Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee has referred the attached report
to the Culture and Communities Committee information.

Andrew Kerr
Chief Executive
Contact: Martin Scott / Natalie Le Couteur, Committee Services
E-mail: martin.scott@edinburgh.gov.uk / Natalie.le.couteur@edinburgh.gov.uk

Page 135

Referral Report

Internal Audit: Overdue Findings and Key Performance
Indicators at 30 October 2020 – referral from the
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee
2.

Terms of Referral

2.1

On the 8 December 2020 the Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee
considered a report on Internal Audit Overdue Findings and Key Performance
Indicators at 30 October 2020, which provided an overview of the status of the
overdue Internal Audit (IA) findings as at 30 October 2020. A total of 126 open IA
findings remain to be addressed across the Council as at 30 October 2020. This
includes the one remaining historic finding and excludes open and overdue Internal
Audit findings for the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and the Lothian Pension
Fund.

2.2

The Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee agreed:
2.2.1 To note the status of the overdue Internal Audit (IA) findings as at 30 October
2020.
2.2.2 To refer the paper to the relevant Council Executive committees and the
EIJB Audit and Assurance Committee for information.
2.2.3 To note that in appendix 1, the report by the Chief Internal Auditor at
paragraph 4.8 should say increased rather than decreased

3.

Background Reading/ External References

3.1

Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee – 8 December 2020– Webcast

4.

Appendices

Appendix 1 – report by the Chief Internal Auditor

Page 136

Culture and Communities Committee – 26 January 2021

Page 2

Governance, Risk, and Best Value Committee

10:00am, Tuesday, 8 December 2020

Internal Audit: Overdue Findings and Key Performance
Indicators at 30 October 2020
Item number
Executive/routine

Executive

Wards
Council Commitments

1.

Recommendations

1.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes:
1.1.1 the status of the overdue Internal Audit (IA) findings as at 30 October 2020;
and
1.1.2 refers this paper to the relevant Council Executive committees and the
EIJB Audit and Assurance Committee for information.

Lesley Newdall
Chief Internal Auditor
Legal and Risk Division, Resources Directorate
E-mail: lesley.newdall@edinburgh.gov.uk | Tel: 0131 469 3216

Page 137

Report

Internal Audit: Overdue Findings and Key Performance
Indicators at 30 October 2020
2.

Executive Summary
Open and overdue Internal Audit findings

2.1

Due to the impacts of Covid-19, the last report on overdue IA findings was
presented to the Committee in December 2019 and reported the position as at 22
October 2019. A high level update on the position as at 31 March 2020 was also
included in the 2019/20 IA annual opinion that was presented to the Committee in
August 2020.

2.2

Monthly reporting on overdue IA findings to the Corporate Leadership team (CLT)
recommenced in October 2020, reporting the position as at 28 September 2020.

2.3

With regard to resolution of the 26 historic overdue findings reopened in June 2018,
only one overdue finding remains and validation of this is in progress.

2.4

A total of 126 open IA findings remain to be addressed across the Council as at 30
October 2020. This includes the one remaining historic finding and excludes open
and overdue Internal Audit findings for the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and
the Lothian Pension Fund.

2.5

Of the 126 currently open IA findings:
2.5.1 a total of 65 (52%) are open, but not yet overdue;
2.5.2 61 (48%) are currently reported as overdue as they have missed the final
agreed implementation dates. This reflects an increase of 6% in comparison
to the October 2019 position (42%).
2.5.3 72% of the overdue findings are more than six months overdue, reflecting an
increase of 6% in comparison to October 2019 (66%) with 28% aged
between six months and one year and 44% more than one year overdue.
2.5.4 The historic position (more than one year overdue) has improved in
comparison to the October 2019, with a decrease from 66% to 44% evident,
reflecting increased management focus on this population.
2.5.5 evidence in relation to 10 of the 61 overdue findings is currently being
reviewed by IA to confirm that it is sufficient to support closure; and
Page 2

Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 138

2.5.6 51 overdue findings still require to be addressed.
2.6

Whilst good progress continues with resolution of all but one of the reopened
historic overdue findings and findings that are more than one year overdue, it is
important to ensure that management continues to focus on timely implementation
of agreed management actions supporting the remaining population of open and
overdue findings. This should result in an improvement in the ageing profile of
overdue findings and will help to ensure that the Council is not exposed to the risks
associated with these findings for a significant period of time.

2.7

The number of overdue management actions associated with open and overdue
findings where completion dates have been revised more than once since July 2018
is 71, reflecting an increase of 38 when compared to the October 2019 position.
This excludes the four month date extension that was applied to reflect the impact
of Covid-19.
Key Performance Indicators

2.8

Recognising the impacts of Covid-19, IA key performance indicators (KPIs) have
not been applied to the Covid-19 audits completed by IA during the period July to
October 2020.

2.9

KPIs will now be applied to delivery of the remaining audits included in the
refreshed 2020/21 IA annual plan approved by the Committee in September 2020.
Whilst the KPIs will be applied, the ongoing Covid-19 impacts on the areas being
audited will also be considered.

3.

Background

3.1

Overdue findings arising from IA reports are reported monthly to the Corporate
Leadership Team (CLT) and quarterly to the GRBV Committee.

3.2

This report specifically excludes open and overdue findings that relate to the
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).
These are reported separately to the EIJB Audit and Assurance Committee and the
Pensions Audit Sub-Committee respectively.

3.3

Findings raised by IA in audit reports typically include more than one agreed
management action to address the risks identified. IA methodology requires all
agreed management actions to be closed in order to close the finding.

3.4

The IA definition of an overdue finding is any finding where all agreed management
actions have not been evidenced as implemented by management and validated as
closed by IA by the date agreed by management and IA and recorded in relevant IA
reports.

3.5

The IA definition of an overdue management action is any agreed management
action supporting an open IA finding that is either open or overdue, where the
individual action has not been evidenced as implemented by management and
validated as closed by IA by the agreed date.
Page 3

Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 139

3.6

Where management considers that actions are complete and sufficient evidence is
available to support IA review and confirm closure, the action is marked as
‘implemented’ by management on the IA follow-up system. When IA has reviewed
the evidence provided, the management action will either be ‘closed’ or will remain
open and returned to the relevant owner with supporting rationale provided to
explain what further evidence is required to enable closure.

3.7

A ‘started’ status recorded by management confirms that the agreed management
action remains open and that implementation progress ongoing.

3.8

A ‘pending’ status recorded by management confirms that the agreed management
action remains open with no implementation progress evident to date.

3.9

An operational dashboard has been designed to track progress against the key
performance indicators included in the IA Journey Map and Key Performance
Indicators document that was designed to monitor progress of both management
and Internal Audit with delivery of the Internal Audit annual plan. The dashboard is
provided monthly to the Corporate Leadership Team to highlight any significant
delays that could potentially impact on delivery of the annual plan.

4.

Main report

4.1

The 126 open IA findings across the Council have been split into the following two
categories to enable separate monitoring and reporting of the historic findings that
were reopened in June 2018:
4.1.1 Current findings (125 in total) shows progress with findings raised, tracked,
and reported on as part of the routine IA assurance cycle; and
4.1.2 Historic overdue findings (1 in total) highlight progress with closure of the 26
historic findings that were reopened in June 2018.

4.2

A total of 61 open IA findings (60 current and 1 historic) are overdue.

4.3

The movement in open and overdue IA findings during the period 22 October 2019
to 30 October 2020 is as follows:
Analysis of changes between 22/10/19 and 30/10/20
Position
22/10/19
Open
Overdue

Added

Closed

Position
30/10/20

Analysis at 30/10/20
Current

Historic
reopened

101

69

(44)

126

125

1

42

51

(32)

61

60

1

Appendix 1 provides a graphic of the analysis detailed at 4.1 and 4.2 above.

Page 4
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 140

Current Overdue Findings
4.4

Of the 126 currently open findings, 61 (48%) comprising 18 High; 33 Medium; and
10 Low rated findings are now ‘overdue’.

4.5

However, IA is currently reviewing evidence to support closure of 10 of these
findings (3 High, 5 Medium and 2 Low), leaving a balance of 51 overdue findings
(15 High; 28 Medium; and 8 Low) still to be addressed.
Historic Overdue Findings

4.6

IA is currently reviewing evidence recently provided to support closure of the one
final remaining medium rated historic finding. This work will be completed by
December 2020.
Overdue findings ageing analysis

4.7

Figure 1 illustrates the ageing profile of all 61 current and historic overdue findings
by rating across directorates as at 30 October 2020.

Fig1: Aged Overdue Findings by Ratings across Directorates

30-60 days

Medium

180-365 days

365+ days

Low

This analysis of the ageing of the 61 overdue findings outlined below highlights that
Directorates continue to make good progress with resolving findings between six
months and one-year overdue, as the proportion of those findings, has significantly
decreased. However, there has been an increase in the proportion of findings less

Page 5
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 141

Health & Social Care

Resources

Place

Health & Social Care

Resources

Communities & Families

Place

90-180 days
High

4.8

Resources

Communities & Families

Place

Communities & Families

Place

Chief Executive

Strategy & Communications

Resources

Communities & Families

14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

than six months overdue, as well as a rise in the proportion of findings that are
overdue by more than one year.
•

8 (13%) less than 3 months (90 days) overdue, in comparison to 26% as at
October 2019;

•

9 (15%) between 3 and 6 months (90 and 180 days) overdue, in comparison to
7% as at October 2019;

•

17 (28%) between 6 months and one year (180 and 365 days) overdue, in
comparison to 16% as at October 2019; and

•

27 (44%) more than one year overdue, in comparison to 50% as at October
2019.

It should be noted that findings more than 180 days old include the one remaining
medium rated historic finding to be closed (see 4.6 above) that is currently being
reviewed by IA.
Agreed Management Actions Analysis
4.9

The 126 open IA findings are supported by a total of 376 agreed management
actions. Of these, 179 (48%) are overdue as the completion timeframe agreed with
management when the report was finalised has not been achieved. This reflects a
16% increase from the October 2019 position (32%).

4.10

Of the 179 overdue management actions, 20 have a status of ‘implemented’ and
are currently with IA for review to confirm whether they can be closed, leaving a
balance of 159 to be addressed.

4.11

Appendix 2 provides an analysis of the 179 overdue management actions
highlighting:
•

their current status as at 30 October 2020 with:
➢ 20 implemented actions where management believe the action has been
completed and it is now with IA for validation;
➢ 119 started where the action is open, and implementation is ongoing; and
➢ 40 pending where the action is open with no implementation progress evident
to date.

4.12

•

44 instances (24%) where the latest implementation date has been missed; and

•

76 instances (42%) where the implementation date has been revised more than
once.

Figure 2 illustrates the allocation of the 179 overdue management actions across
Directorates, and the 20 that have been passed to IA for review to confirm whether
they can be closed.

Page 6
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 142

Figure 2: Overdue and Implemented Management
Actions by Directorate

Axis Title

60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Overdue
Implemented
Place

Implemented

7

Communiti
es &
Families
0

Overdue

56

34

Resources

Chief
Executive

Health &
Social Care

12

Strategy &
Communic
ations
0

0

1

34

8

1

46

Revised Implementation Dates
4.13

Figure 3 illustrates that there are currently 78 open management actions (including
those that are overdue) across directorates where completion dates have been
revised between one and five times since July 2018. This number excludes the
automatic extension applied by IA to reflect the impact of Covid-19.

4.14

This reflects an increase of 45 in comparison to the position reported in October
2019 (33).

4.15

Of these 78 management actions, 28 are associated with High rated findings; 43
Medium; and 7 Low, with the majority of date revisions in Health and Social Care
directorate.

Page 7
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 143

Figure 3 - management actions with more than
one revised completion date since July 2018
38
37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
Place

Communities & Families
High

4.16

Resources
Medium

Strategy &
Communications

Health & Social Care

Low

Given the timeframes involved in reviewing open IA findings with directorates as
part of the revisiting IA extension timeframes exercise, the full population of
amendments to overdue findings has not been reflected in this paper. Where
relevant, overdue management actions included in Appendix 2 have been manually
updated to reflect extension timeframes outcomes.
Key Performance Themes Identified from the IA Dashboard

4.17

The IA dashboard has not been applied since April 2020 as the annual IA plan was
paused to enable the Council to focus on implementation of Covid-19 resilience
activities. The dashboard will be reinstated to support delivery of the IA annual plan
with effect from October 2020.

Page 8
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 144

5.

Next Steps

5.1

IA will continue to monitor the open and overdues findings position, providing
monthly updates to the CLT and quarterly updates to the Governance, Risk and
Best Value Committee.

6.

Financial impact

6.1

There are no direct financial impacts arising from this report, although failure to
close findings and address the associated risks in a timely manner may have some
inherent financial impact.

7.

Stakeholder/Community Impact

7.1

If agreed management actions supporting closure of Internal Audit findings are not
implemented, the Council will be exposed to the service delivery risks set out in the
relevant Internal Audit reports. Internal Audit findings are raised as a result of
control gaps or deficiencies identified during reviews therefore overdue items
inherently impact upon effective risk management, compliance and governance.

8.

Background reading/external references

8.1

Internal Audit report - Historic Internal Audit Findings - May 2018 Committee - Item
7.3

8.2

Internal Audit Report – Overdue Findings and Late Management Responses as at
22 October 2019 – December 2019 Committee - Item 11

9.

Appendices

9.1
9.2

Appendix 1 – Graphic of Open and Overdue IA Findings
Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Overdue Management Actions

Page 9
Governance, Risk and Best Value Committee, 8 December 2020

Page 145

Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Open and Overdue findings position as at 30 th October 2020

126
Open findings

Page 146

125 (99%)
Current

60 (48%)
Overdue

9 (15%)
IA Validation in
Progress

65 (52%)
Open but not
due yet

51 (85%)
Management
Update awaited

1 (1%)
Historic

1 (100%)
Overdue

1 (100%)
IA Validation in
Progress

Appendix 2 - Internal Audit Overdue Management Actions
Glossary of terms
1. Project – This is the name of the audit report.
2. Owner – The Executive Director responsible for implementation of the action.
3. Issue Type – This is the priority of the audit finding, categorised as Critical; High; Medium; or Low
4. Issue – This is the name of the finding.
5. Status – This is the current status of the management action. These are categorised as:
•

Pending (the action is open and there has been no progress towards implementation),

•

Started (the action is open and work is ongoing to implement the management action), and

•

Implemented (the service area believes the action has been implemented and this is with Internal Audit for validation).

6. Agreed Management action – This is the action agreed between Internal Audit and Management to address the finding.
7. Estimated date – the original agreed implementation date.
8. Revised date – the current revised date. Red formatting in the dates field indicates the last revised date is overdue.

Page 147

9. Number of revisions – the number of times the date has been revised since July 2018. Amber formatting in the dates field indicates the date has been
revised more than once.
10. Contributor – Officers involved in implementation of an agreed management action.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Portfolio
Governance
Framework

1

CE1801 Issue 1:
Project and
portfolio
management and
scrutiny
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Issue/Status

CE1801 Issue
1.2:
Completeness
and accuracy
of project
reporting
Implemented

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

It was agreed at the Council’s Change Board on 17 April 2019
that the management actions detailed above would be
implemented by each Directorate (with the exception of the
Health and Social Care Partnership where scrutiny of change
and major projects is performed by the Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board) and Strategy and Communications

Estimated Date:
31/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
George Gaunt
Laurence
Rockey
Simone Hislop

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Roarty
Jane MacIntyre
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig

Estimated Date:
31/03/2017
Revised Date:
29/06/2018
No of Revisions
0

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Murdo
MacLeod
Peter Watton

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

2

Page 148
3

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals

High

CF1901 Issue
2.3(c): Risk
Based Annual
Address
Checks

The Transactions Team is currently engaging the Council’s
Business Transformation team to explore intelligent automation
options for completing annual checks. Should this solution not
be feasible, a risk-based methodology will be developed and
documented to determine scope and extent of future checks.

Implemented

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources
Historic
Unimplemented
Findings
MIS1601 - issue 1
Budgetary Impact
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Medium

Recommendati
on 1 Budgetary
Impact
Implemented

The R&M budget for 2016/17 will be closely monitored as
services are now procured direct from suppliers and an
imbedded due diligence process has been developed. This will
inform the budget setting process, but it should, however, be
noted that this has historically been based on availability and
not need.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

ICT System
Access Rights

4

CW1809 Financial
Systems Access
Controls Development of
Overarching Action
plan

Page 149

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

CW1809 Development
of Overarching
Action plan
Implemented

Agreed Management Action
Digital Services has confirmed that they will own the findings
raised from this review and will work (in conjunction with other
divisions such as information governance; finance; and human
resources) to create an appropriate action plan to address the
risks identified. The action plan will initially focus only on the
Council’s key financial systems and will consider all of the
recommendations made by Internal Audit in this report. It is
also acknowledged that the risks that have been highlighted
are not exclusively limited to financial systems and could also
extend to the Health and Social Care Partnership (the
Partnership). Consequently, the action plan will include
guidance to be applied by all system administrators across the
Council. This will be communicated and shared with the
expectation that it will be applied across all systems and
divisions, including those that deliver services on behalf of and
provide support to the Partnership. Following distribution of the
guidance, discussions will be held with Internal Audit to
determine whether the remaining systems used across the
Council should be subject to a separate audit to confirm
whether the user administration guidance is being consistently
applied. Once the plan has been prepared and resources to
support implementation identified and agreed with relevant
divisions, timeframes for implementation of individual system
plan actions will be discussed and agreed with Internal Audit.
The plan will be prepared by March 2020.

Dates

Estimated Date:
28/02/2020
Revised Date:
01/07/2020
No of Revisions
0
Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Digital Services
Change Initiation

5

CW1901 Change
Initiation: Issue 2 Actions and
responsibilities in
the Partnership
Board report

Low

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 150
6

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

CW1901
Recommendati
on 2.1.1 Reporting
rationale for
significant
delays to the
Partnership
Board

Agreed Management Action

Agreed – will be implemented as recommended by Internal
Audit.

Dates

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
No of Revisions
0

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Derek Masson
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey

Implemented

Digital Services
Change Initiation
CW1901 Change
Initiation: Issue 2 Actions and
responsibilities in
the Partnership
Board report

Issue/Status

Low

CW1901
Recommendati
on 2.1.2 Reporting
themes
impacting
change
requests to the
Partnership
Board
Implemented

Agreed – will be implemented as recommended by Internal
Audit.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
No of Revisions
0

Alison Roarty
Derek Masson
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Lone working

7

HSC1902: Lone
Working - Issue 5:
Health and Safety
Risk Management
and Covid-19
Impacts

Medium

Page 151

Non-Housing
Invoices
Schedule of Rates

A reminder will be issued to all Partnership localities and
services to request that all current risk assessments are
reviewed to ensure they take account of the changing working
environment. Further changes to risk assessment templates
and procedures will be addressed as part of the wider detailed
action plan.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
No of Revisions
0

Implemented

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

8

HSC1902:
Issue 5.1(b) COVID-19
lone worker
risk
assessments

Medium

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

New nonhousing
contractor
framework
Implemented

The non-Housing contractor framework will be re-tendered
during 2017. The inclusion of detailed best-value and duediligence options will be considered as part of the process.
This may include schedule of rates, gain share, penalties etc or
a combination.

Estimated
Date:31/08/2017
Revised
Date:31/03/2019
No of Revisions
2

Contributor
Angela Lindsay
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Deborah
Mackle
Helen Elder
Mike MassaroMallinson
Moira Pringle
Nikki Conway
Tom Cowan
Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Mark
Stenhouse
Michelle
Vanhegan
Murdo
MacLeod
Peter Watton

Non-Housing
Invoices

9

Availability of
documentation

CAFM
Medium
Implemented

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

It is anticipated that CAFM will be in operational use (services
being implemented on a rolling programme thereafter) in early
2017 with a non-Housing R&M implementation process in
place for FY 2017/18

Estimated Date:
01/04/2017
Revised Date:
31/08/2018
No of Revisions
1

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Murdo
MacLeod
Peter Watton

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Local Development
Plan
10

Financial Modelling

Funding
High
Implemented

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Agreed Management Action

Challenge of infrastructure proposals will be performed at the
LDP Action Programme oversight group. Complete and agree
Financial Model of 2018 LDP Action Programme Annual
Report to CLT and F&R Committees Prepare update to
Financial Model in line with next LDP project plan.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/03/2018
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Leslie
David Givan
George Gaunt
Kate Hopper
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Estimated Date:
31/03/2018
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Leslie
David Givan
George Gaunt
Kate Hopper
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Local Development
Plan

Page 152
11

Governance
arrangements over
infrastructure
appraisals

Medium

Infrastructure
Governance
arrangements
Implemented

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Establish and agree appropriate roles, resources and the
responsibilities for delivery the above matters as an early
action in the project plan for LDP 2. Oversight will be provided
by the Project Board to ensure that all individual appraisals
performed across Service Areas have applied these
recommendations. (sept 18)

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Planning and S75
Developer
Contributions

12

Page 153
13

End to end
developer
contribution
processes,
procedures, and
training

High

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Issue/Status

PL 1802 Iss 2
Rec 2.1
process
documentation
, guidance,
and
standardised
documentation
Implemented

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Planning is working with Finance and Legal Service on a
number of key areas of the end to end process. Significant
progress has been made including; the pilot and use of a
transport officer proforma, to identify and detail infrastructure
requirements: and the introduction of standard legal
agreements. Planning continues to work with legal services to
finalise developer contribution templates for planning officers
and this will inform a standardised approach to key consultee
infrastructure requests. All Internal Audit recommendations will
be implemented as detailed above (with the exception of 3),
with Planning leading the process. As an alternative to IA
recommendation 3, the rationale detailing why either no
agreement; or a section 69 or 75 agreement has been
developed and applied, will be documented.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Bruce
Nicolson
David Leslie
David Givan
George Gaunt
Graham Nelson
Hugh Dunn
Kevin McKee
Michael Thain
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nick Smith
Rebecca
Andrew

Finance colleagues will be engaged to ensure that the Waste
and Cleansing budget is rebased to reflect actual demographic
changes and includes street cleansing.

Estimated Date:
29/05/2020
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andy Williams
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Karen Reeves

Waste & Cleansing
Services Performance
Management
Framework
PL1807 Issue 1:
Waste and
Cleansing
Performance
Management
Framework
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Low

PL1807 1.1
Waste and
Cleansing
budget uplift
Implemented

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

PL1807 1.2
Performance
Indicators

This indicator will be included as a question in quarterly survey
and the results included in annual Waste and Cleansing
performance reports. The next annual Waste and Cleansing
performance report is due to be presented to the Transport and
Environment Committee in May 2020.

Estimated Date:
29/05/2020
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andy Williams
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Karen Reeves

The Policy Handbook will not be updated to reflect items
suitable for inclusion in residual waste bins as it is not updated
frequently enough to ensure that this information would be up
to date and accurate. A clearer link to the Scottish
Government’s Code of Practice on Litter and Refuse guidance
will be included in all customer communications and on the
website.

Estimated Date:
27/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Andy Williams
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt

Waste & Cleansing
Services Performance
Management
Framework

14

Page 154
15

PL1807 Issue 1:
Waste and
Cleansing
Performance
Management
Framework

Low

Implemented

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO
Waste & Cleansing
Services Performance
Management
Framework
PL1807 Issue 1:
Waste and
Cleansing
Performance
Management
Framework
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Low

PL1807 1.3
Waste and
Cleansing
Policy
Implemented

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Property
Maintenance

16

Monitoring of
outstanding jobs

Medium

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 155
17

Implemented

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments
RES1809 Issue 2:
Contracts and
Grants
Management
Strategic Direction
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Monitoring of
outstanding
jobs

RES1809

High

Issue 2.1:
Identification of
High-Risk
Contracts and
Contracts and
Grants
Management
Capacity
Implemented

Agreed Management Action
The AS400 system does not allow recoding or reporting on
completion until invoice stage. Contractors are already
confirming when jobs complete to agreed SLAs (M&E in
particular). This includes outstanding jobs. New contracts
being procured will require all contracts to report on
performance, but this is not anticipated to be complete until
end 2017 by which time CAFM will also be in place. CAFM will
support monitoring of outstanding works orders. In the
meantime, as noted in Finding 2, an interim monitoring/tracking
process has been developed for condition survey high
risk/urgent items
Currently, there are approximately 120 Tier 1 contracts on the
Council’s contract register, and 291 Tier 2 contracts. The
C&GM Team will assist services in identifying those contracts
they have which should be categorised as either Tier 1 or Tier
2, and this will be dealt with under the Council’s contract
management framework, including at contract mobilisation post
contract award. This work will be dependent upon active
service area engagement. Commercial and Procurement
Services will shortly be commencing a review of the Council’s
current Commercial and Procurement Strategy (2016-2020),
which will be submitted to the Finance and Resources
Committee for adoption in March 2020. This will include detail
on how the operational work of the team will support the
strategy, including the work of the C&GM Team. A suitable
section will be included in the Strategy around contract
management support/training, including an estimated number
of compliance reviews that are to be undertaken and the
Directorates to which they relate, and if practicable specific
contracts. Compliance with the strategy is reported annually to
Finance and Resources Committee, in August, so this will
enable annual monitoring against this.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/12/2017
Revised Date:
31/05/2019
No of Revisions
3

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Mark
Stenhouse
Michelle
Vanhegan
Murdo
MacLeod
Peter Watton

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020

Annette Smith
Gavin Brown
Hugh Dunn

Revised Date:
01/02/2021

Iain Strachan

No of Revisions
0

Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mollie Kerr

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

New Facilities
Management
Service Level
Agreement

18

Page 156
19

RES1814 Facilities
Management SLA:
Janitorial Services
Governance
Framework

High

Issue/Status

Facilities
Management
SLA: Issue 1.1
Key
Performance
Indicators
Implemented

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources
New Facilities
Management
Service Level
Agreement
RES1814 Facilities
Management SLA:
Janitorial Services
Governance
Framework

High

Facilities
Management
SLA: Issue 1.3
Ongoing
quality
assurance
reviews
Implemented

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Agreed Management Action

A suite of KPI’s is currently being developed in conjunction with
the Communities & Families. While an element of these are
service led, Facilities Management are keen to ensure a
customer led component to these. These KPI’s will be based
on industry standards and will be linked to Facilities
Management performance data and the outcomes of quality
assurance reviews. Once agreed, KPI’s will be communicated
through training sessions, web updates and included in the
SLA and janitorial handbook which is distributed both to staff
and to our customers and key stakeholders. Monthly
dashboards will be produced highlighting performance against
indicators. These will be both for internal service use and for
customer reporting.

Ongoing quality assurance reviews will be established as
described above. In addition to using these to measure the
efficacy of our SLA delivery, these are required as part of the
ISO 9001/45001 certification process and designed to give us
comfort over the robustness of our policies, procedures and
supporting documentation.

Dates
Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2020
No of Revisions
0
Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
1

Contributor

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Mark
Stenhouse
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Mark
Stenhouse
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Asset Management
Strategy and
CAFM system
18/19

20

Page 157
21

RES1813 Asset
Management
Strategy and
CAFM: Issue 1 Council Property
Strategy

High

1.2 - Property
Aspects of
Major Projects
Implemented

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

P&FM will recommunicate the requirement for business cases
to be developed through the Asset Investment Groups; request
that Strategy and Communications include it in the Strategic
Change and Delivery project management toolkit; and have
oversight of ensuring P&FM have input into any property
changes at the Change Board. P&FM will comment on all
known business cases and provide estimates of property
whole life costs (not just R&M costs). For smaller projects,
such as the siting of a portacabin on school grounds to
accommodate increased pupil numbers, Properties and
Facilities Management will design a process and supporting
funding protocols to ensure that P&FM are consulted at an
early stage to enable revenue costing to be prepared for the
client service (for example, where additional janitorial and
cleaning services are required) and for the source of funding to
be established and agreed. The process and supporting
funding protocols will be shared with all Directorates and
Heads of Service for discussion and agreement.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2020
No of Revisions
0

Andrew Field
Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Lindsay
Glasgow
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

Strategic Change and Delivery will include guidance for project
managers on whole life costing based on the approach
adopted by finance

Estimated Date:
29/05/2020
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Henry
Gillie Severin
Hugh Dunn
Rebecca
Andrew
Simone Hislop

Portfolio
Governance
Framework
CE1801 Issue 1:
Project and
portfolio
management and
scrutiny
Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

High

CE1801 Issue
1.4: Whole of
life toolkit
Pending

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

22

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 1: Policies,
Procedures &
Guidance

High

CF1901: Issue
1.1(a) Review of
Schools
Admissions
Policy

Following review, the policy will be presented to the Education,
Children and Families committee for review and approval. The
Executive Director of Communities & Families will be the policy
owner, with the Senior Education Officer responsible for
operational review and oversight.

Pending

Page 158
23

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Dates

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning
CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

High

CF1901 Issue
2.1(a):
Committee on
Pupil Student
Support
Recording of
Officer Review
Pending

Communities and Families, Committee Services and
Transactions will ensure the officer review of the annual
placing request list and the rationale supporting
recommendations made to the Committee on Pupil Student
Support from 2020 onwards is formally documented.

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Claire
Thompson
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

24

Page 159
25

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals

High

CF1901 Issue
2.3(a):
Validation of
Registration &
Enrolment
Applications

Dates

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
A reminder will be sent to all schools to reinforce the
requirement to confirm that adequate and valid evidence is
provided to support all registrations and enrolments, including
two matching proofs of address aligned with the address
provided in the application.

No of
Revisions1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Pending

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Contributor

Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Claire
Thompson
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning
CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

High

CF1901 Issue
2.3(b): Quality
Assurance
Checks in
Schools
Pending

Schools business managers will be instructed to undertake
sample quality assurance checks of evidence obtained from
parents to support applications to ensure compliance with
procedures. This will include completion of checks prior to
completion of enrolment processes. Checking of completion
will form part of the Communities and Families Self-Assurance
Framework from 2021 onwards.

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Claire
Thompson
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

26

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals

High

CF1901 Issue
2.4: Managing
Conflicts of
Interest

Guidance will be developed for use in all schools to ensure any
conflicts of interest are recorded and managed appropriately.
This will include Business Manager review and Head Teacher
sign off where necessary.

Pending

Page 160

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families
School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

27

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 4: Data
Access, Security &
Retention
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CF1901: Issue
4.1: Access to
Personal Data
Pending

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Files and shared folders will be reviewed, and appropriate
access permissions and password controls implemented.

Estimated Date:
31/07/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Claire
Thompson
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

28

Page 161
29

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 4: Data
Access, Security &
Retention

Medium

CF1901: Issue
4.2: Secure
Email
Transmission
Pending

The Information Governance Unit and Digital Services will be
engaged to discuss the recipients; nature and sensitivity of
information transmitted via email to establish whether the
current method is appropriately secure or whether additional
steps are required. This will include consideration of email
data classification labels where deemed appropriate.

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families
School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning
CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 4: Data
Access, Security &
Retention
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CF1901: Issue
4.3: Data
Sharing
Agreements
Pending

The Information Governance Unit will be consulted to
determine if data sharing agreements which meet these
requirements, are currently in place with Midlothian, East
Lothian and West Lothian Councils. If current agreements are
not in place, or do not cover the required categories of data,
specific data sharing agreements will be established.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

30

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 4: Data
Access, Security &
Retention

Medium

CF1901: Issue
4.4(a):
Document
Retention &
Disposal; All
Services
Pending

Page 162
31

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

The Information Governance Unit will be engaged to confirm
data retention and disposal requirements. Where necessary
the data retention schedule will be updated. Document
retention and disposal requirements will be reinforced across
all services processing admissions and appeals including
schools. All appeals information currently retained out with the
relevant period will be destroyed in line with the Council’s
disposal guidelines and a retention schedule and destruction
log maintained.

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning
CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 4: Data
Access, Security &
Retention

Medium

CF1901: Issue
4.4(b):
Document
Retention &
Disposal;
Schools
Pending

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

A communication will be issued to schools to request that
retention schedules and destruction logs are established to
ensure records are managed and disposed of in line with the
Council’s retention schedule.

Dates

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Claire
Thompson
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Payments and
Charges

32

CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
4: Processing and
recording Licensing
Fees

Medium

CW1803 Rec.
4.2 - Quality
checking
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Agreed Management Action
Licensing has existing assurance procedures for monitoring
noncompliance with core procedures and processes. These
will be reviewed to identify whether additional quality
assurance is required proportionate to the level of risk. Any
revision of the procedures will be focused on those aspects of
the processes which present higher levels of legal risk and will
use existing assurance data to identify areas that would benefit
from more robust scrutiny. Longer term upgrades to the APP
Civica Licensing should reduce the risks in this area. The
review and proposed revision of assurance procedures will be
agreed with Internal Audit to ensure that this risk is fully
addressed.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Payments and
Charges

Page 163
33

CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
5: Processing and
recording of
Parking Permit
fees
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Medium

CW1803 Rec.
5.1 - Process
for updating
fees and
charges in the
Apply system
Pending

Current processes and UAT (User Acceptance Testing)
mechanisms do exist for updating permit prices. However,
these will be reviewed and enhanced with better recording of
processes and outcomes. A new procedure regarding the
change of permit price process on NSL Apply will be
implemented.

Estimated
Date:29/05/2020
Revised
Date:01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Ewan
Kennedy
Gavin Brown
Gavin Graham
George Gaunt
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Payments and
Charges

34

CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
5: Processing and
recording of
Parking Permit
fees

Medium

CW1803 Rec.
5.2 Procedure for
authorising
payments
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 164
35

Agreed Management Action
NSL Apply offers improved control mechanisms by automating
many processes and tasks, including payments. These are
currently not being used. Implementations of these controls,
along with a formalised payment acceptance procedure will
ensure correct payments are received and further reduce any
anomalies. The payment acceptance procedure will confirm
that the Council does not accept part payment for parking
permits and only reduces the price when the applicant is a
disabled persons’ blue badge holder. The procedure will
establish a quality assurance payment sampling processes for
implementation across Business Support teams who
administer parking permits.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Ewan
Kennedy
Gavin Brown
Gavin Graham
George Gaunt
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Ewan
Kennedy
Gavin Brown
Gavin Graham
George Gaunt
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
1

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Payments and
Charges
CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
5: Processing and
recording of
Parking Permit
fees

Medium

CW1803 Rec.
5.3 - Ongoing
risk-based
quality
assurance

A quality assurance payment acceptance procedure will be
developed to ensure the accuracy of parking permit payments.
This process will be based on the Internal Audit
recommendations.

Pending
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
36

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

CW1806 Issue
1.1(7): ATEC
24 Review of
Operational
Processes Key Safes
Pending

7. The key safe business case, or an alternative approach, will
be progressed and an installation programme implemented to
allow the numbers of individual safes to be maximised.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

2. Quality assurance outcomes will be linked to supervision
and training and performance objectives, with regular one to
ones scheduled to ensure action is taken to address any
competence issues or gaps identified.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

3. Where systemic themes or trends are identified from quality
assurance reviews, management will consider whether existing
operational processes should be revisited.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
1

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

37

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Pending

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 165
38

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

CW1806 Issue
1.4(2): ATEC
24 Quality
Assurance
Framework Application

1. A documented quality assurance process aligned to
Technology Enabled Care Services Association (TSA)
guidelines will be developed and communicated for call
handling and response visits. The process will include quality
assurance roles and responsibilities, frequency and scope of
quality assurance checks, sampling methodologies to be
applied.

Pending

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

39

CW1806 Issue
1.4(1): ATEC
24 Quality
Assurance
Framework Methodology

Medium

CW1806 Issue
1.4(3): ATEC
24 Quality
Assurance
Framework Review
Pending

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

1. Feedback processes to obtain input from service users will
be implemented. These should be incorporated into a
continuous improvement programme for service delivery, with
improvement actions appropriately allocated and monitored.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
40

CW1806 Issue 2:
ATEC 24 Customer
Engagement

Low

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 166
41

CW1806 Issue
2.1(1): ATEC
24 Customer
Feedback Implementatio
n of Process
Pending

Homelessness
Services
CW1808 Issue 2:
Homelessness
data quality and
performance
reporting
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

High

CW1808
Recommendati
on 2.2.2 Performance
Information
Pending

2.2.2 - We will report performance information in relation to
Service Standards and key homelessness outcomes regularly
on the Council’s website and other forums such as social
media

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2
Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Debbie
Herbertson
Emma Morgan
Jackie Irvine
Nichola Dadds
Nicky Brown

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Homelessness
Services

42

CW1808 Issue 3:
Provision of
homelessness
advice and
information

Medium

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Page 167
43

Pending

Brexit impacts supply chain
management
CW1905 Issue 2:
Brexit governance
and risk
management
Andrew Kerr, Chief
Executive

CW1801
Recommendati
on 3.1.3:
Homelessness
information
leaflet

Medium

CW1905Recom. 2.1a:
Resilience
team Adequacy &
effectiveness
of the Brexit
risk
management
& governance
process
Pending

3.1.3 - Following the engagement events with key
stakeholders, we will develop a leaflet for applicants based on
the information set out above, and any other relevant
information. The leaflet will be made available in all Council
offices, locality offices, libraries, health centres, Citizen Advice
Bureaus, charities and other local support and advice
agencies.

Resilience presented a report on Brexit planning,
preparedness and governance to the Corporate Leadership
Team on 8 July and will subsequently be presented to the
Policy and Sustainability Committee. This includes proposals
for the cessation of the cross-party Brexit working group, with
all Brexit resilience planning taken forward through the Council
resilience group. The paper also proposes that the Council
Incident Management Team (CIMT) considers Brexit alongside
Covid-19 and includes Brexit as a standing item on CIMT
agendas from September 2020. Once approved by the Policy
and Sustainability Committee, these new governance
arrangements will be implemented. Resilience will coordinate
review of the corporate Brexit risk register, in conjunction with
the Commercial and Procurement Service and Corporate Risk
Management teams for consideration at the CLT risk
committee.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
0

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
No of Revisions
0

Contributor

Debbie
Herbertson
Jackie Irvine
Nichola Dadds
Nicky Brown

Donna Rodger
Gavin King
Laurence
Rockey
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Drivers - findings
only report

44

1: Completion of
Driver Licence
checks

High

Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 168
45

1.3 - Driver
permit
revocation

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

1. A standard reminder e mail will be prepared by the Head of
Place Development and issued to employees and their line
managers where permission forms have not been received 10
days prior to their expiry. 2. The e mail will highlight that driver
permits will be revoked if they are not received by the required
date, and employees and line managers will be made aware
that they are no longer eligible to drive for the Council and 9for
vocational and agency drivers) that they are no longer covered
by Council insurance. 3. and 4 Permits will be revoked where
permission forms are not received on time and e mail
confirmation provided to employees and line managers
reminding them that they can no longer drive on behalf of the
Council.

Estimated
Date:04/05/2020
Revised
Date:01/09/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Graeme Hume
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar

The risks detailed in this Internal Audit finding will be
highlighted for inclusion in the Place Management Risk
Register.

Estimated Date:
04/05/2020
Revised Date:
04/09/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar

Drivers - findings
only report
1: Completion of
Driver Licence
checks

High

1.4 - Risk
management
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

HMO Licensing

46

PL1803 Issue 2 Collection and
processing of HMO
licence fees

High

Page 169

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

PL1803 Issue
2.1 BACS
payment
reference
Pending

HMO Licensing

47

PL1803 Issue 3 Operational
Performance and
Reporting
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Medium

PL1803 Issue
3.6 HMO Key
Performance
Indicators and
Performance
Reporting
Pending

Agreed Management Action
It should be noted that measure is in place to ensure that no
application is progressed without the required fee being
reconciled. This reflects the statutory process and the need to
ensure that the Council treats applications for a renewal
lawfully unless the reconciliation process can evidence a
payment has not been made. There is no evidence from
directorate monitoring the level of income from HMOs licence
applications which would demonstrate that fees are not being
collected. Any unmatched fee not identified will in effect
contribute to the Council’s general revenue account and
therefore there is no financial loss to the Council. The Internal
Audit recommendation outlined above is not accepted as it not
believed to be achievable. Therefore Licencing; Customer; and
Finance will investigate potential solutions re the BACS issue,
(including any potential scope for a technology solution) to
address this risk. These options will be reviewed with Internal
Audit and a longer-term solution identified and implemented.
It has been agreed with Internal Audit that (once the solution
has been identified) another audit finding will be raised that will
monitor implementation of the solution to confirm that it is
operating effectively. In the meantime, a statement will be
added to the Licencing pages on the Council’s external website
and application forms advising customers of what reference
must be used to successfully make a BACs payment.
The Regulatory Committee were previously advised that HMO
performance data would be excluded whilst the Licencing
introduced the significant change of moving towards a threeyear licensing system. Performance reports therefore only
included Civic and Taxi data in the period 2015-2018.
Licencing will be reporting to Regulatory Committee on the first
cycle of three-year licencing for HMO’s prior to the setting of
Licensing Fees for 2020/21 in early 2020. The Directorate will
include within that report relevant performance data and make
recommendations for approval for performance targets
ongoing performance targets.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/03/2020
Revised Date:
05/10/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
George Gaunt
Grace McCabe
Isla Burton
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/06/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
George Gaunt
Grace
McCabe
Isla Burton
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

On appointment of the tier 3 and 4 management team, a rebase of the improvement plan will take place and the revised
plan will be submitted to the Council’s Change Board and the
Transport and Environment Committee for approval, with
ongoing progress updates provided to both forums.

Estimated Date:
31/07/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser

One of the roles included in the new Roads structure is a
Roads Service Performance Coordinator. The team member
appointed to this role will be responsible for designing;
implementing; and maintaining a performance and quality
assurance framework that will incorporate the
recommendations made to support ongoing monitoring and
management of the Roads service. This will involve ensuring
that all Roads teams develop team plans that include key
performance measures; outline their respective roles and
responsibilities for delivery; and are aligned with overall
Council’s commitments that are relevant to Roads.

Estimated Date:
31/07/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser

Road Services
Improvement Plan

48

PL1808 Issue 1.
Roads
Improvement Plan
financial operating
model and project
governance

High

PL1808 - 1.2
Roads Service
Improvement
Plan approval
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 170
49

Road Services
Improvement Plan
PL1808 Issue 2.
Roads services
performance
monitoring and
quality assurance
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

PL1808 - 2.1
Service
Delivery
Performance
Monitoring
Pending

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Road Services
Improvement Plan

50

PL1808 Issue 2.
Roads services
performance
monitoring and
quality assurance

High

Page 171

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

PL1808 - 2.2
Roads
services
quality
assurance
framework
Pending

Agreed Management Action
1. The existing Transport Design and Delivery quality
framework will be revised to reflect the new Roads and
Transport Infrastructure Service and rolled out across the
service. As part of this review, the recommendations
highlighted above will be considered and incorporated where
appropriate. The Design, Structures and Flood Prevention
Manager will be responsible for refreshing the quality
framework once appointed. 2. A sampling regime will be
designed and embedded for safety inspections to ensure that
defects are being categorised properly. This process will be
designed and implemented by the Team Leader for Safety
Inspections to be appointed as part of the ongoing restructure.
3. A sampling regime will be designed and embedded for road
defect repairs to ensure that repairs are fit for purpose and
effective. 4. Key performance indicators for each team will be
included in the target setting for each 4th tier manager and
their direct reports to ensure focus on these measures.
Emerging themes from Team Plans and quality assurance
reviews will also be shared with Roads teams, and individual
and team training needs will be considered based on the
themes identified. This process will be designed and
implemented by the Service Performance Coordinator to be
appointed as part of the ongoing restructure.

Dates

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions:
0

Road Services
Improvement Plan

51

PL1808 Issue 3.
Roads inspection,
defect
categorisation, and
repairs

Low

PL1808 - 3.2b)
Inspector
training and
qualifications
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

2. Ensure all relevant Inspectors are accredited by an
appropriately accredited professional body.

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
01/01/2021
No of Revisions
0

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
28/05/2020
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Jordan Walker
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Road Services
Improvement Plan

52

PL1808 Issue 4.
Roads Management of
public liability
claims

Low

PL1808 - 4.1
Management
of public
liability claims

A new process will be developed within the Confirm system
which requires reconciliation between accident claim enquiries
and those logged on the Local Authority Claims Handling
System (LACHS) system.

Pending
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 172
53

Road Services
Improvement Plan
PL1808 Issue 4.
Roads Management of
public liability
claims

Low

PL1808 - 4.2
Management
of public
liability claims
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Quarterly meetings will be arranged between the Safety
Inspection team and the Insurance team to identify trends and
areas of focus. This process will be designed and implemented
by the Team Leader, Safety Inspections to be appointed as
part of the ongoing restructure.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
5

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Mark Love
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Veronica
Wishart

Estimated Date:
30/07/2019
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Veronica
Wishart

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals

54

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals:
Process and
quality assurance
documentation and
training

Low

Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 173
55

PL1810 Issue
3: Rec 2 Refresher
training for
existing
employees

An essential Learning Matrix that specifies the refresher
training that the team requires to complete on an ongoing basis
has been developed and provided to Learning and
Organisational Development for their review and feedback,
with no response received as yet. The matrix will now be
implemented, and employee training requirements will be
assessed (and agreed) as part of the Annual Conversations.

Fleet Review
Project
management and
governance
framework

High

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

4.
Recommendati
on Stakeholder
Engagement

An internal/ external stakeholder engagement plan will be
developed; approved by the project Board and applied
throughout the project. Any key stakeholder engagement
actions will also be reflected in the project plan.

Pending

Fleet Review

56

Project
management and
governance
framework
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

5.
Recommendati
on Procurement
Strategy and
Plan
Pending

A procurement and strategy plan will be designed along with
the procurement team; approved by the project Board and
used to support the procurement process; The request for
procurement will include requirements in relation to paperless
processes and compatibility with existing fleet systems; and
The contractual position with CGI regarding telematics will be
confirmed prior to commencement of procurement.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

A monthly reconciliation between the incidents reported to
Fleet Services and those recorded on SHE will be performed,
with line managers advised re any gaps on the SHE system
that need to be addressed;

Estimated Date:
01/04/2019
Revised Date:
01/09/2019
No of Revisions
1

Adam Fergie
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Katy Miller
Martin Young
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Steven Wright

Place This recommendation is accepted, and this will be added
as appropriate to the Place mandatory training matrix at the
next review.

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
01/01/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Lynne
Halfpenny
Michael Thain

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Donna Rodger
Emma Baker
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan

Drivers

57

Recording and
addressing driving
incidents

Medium

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 174
58

Pending

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments
RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas

High

Budget Setting and
Management
RES 1903 Issue 1:
Savings proposals
documentation and
risk assessments
Laurence Rockey,

RES1809
Issue 1.3(3):
Contract
manager
support and
guidance Place
Pending

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

59

Recording and
addressing
driving
incidents Rec
2

Medium

RES 1903
Issue 1.1:
Savings
proposals
documentation
and risk
assessments
Pending

1. Savings plan and business case templates will both be
reviewed to ensure that they align to major projects
documentation. In addition, a procedural document will be
created which details the amount and depth of documentation,
which is required to support savings plans, based on outcomes
of the prioritisation matrix assessment. 2. The Finance budget
monitoring RAG (Red, Amber, Green) delivery risk assessment
categories will each be formally defined, and consistently

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Head of Strategy &
Communications

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated
Date:31/05/2020
Revised
Date:01/10/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Donna Rodger
Emma Baker
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan

applied to all savings delivery progress updates provided to
Directorate management teams, CLT, and service committees.

Budget Setting and
Management

60

RES 1903 Issue 3:
Continuous
improvement:
Lessons learned
and customer
feedback.

Medium

A methodology for the lessons learned process will be
developed and stated in a procedure document. This work will
be performed through liaison between the Change Strategy
Team and Finance. The methodology will include the
requirements stated above.

Pending

Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

Page 175
61

RES 1903
Issue 3.1:
Annual budget
setting lessons
learned
methodology

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning
CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 1: Policies,
Procedures &
Guidance

High

CF1901: Issue
1.1(b) Review of
Admissions
Operational
Procedures
Started

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

A working group led by the Communities and Families Senior
Education Officer with representation from all service areas
involved in school admissions, appeals and capacity planning,
will be established to undertake a review of all procedural
documents. This will include consideration of amalgamation of
existing procedures, where appropriate and implementation of
a review schedule and version control.

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1
Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

62

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 1: Policies,
Procedures &
Guidance

High

CF1901: Issue
1.1(c) - Placing
Appeals
Procedures
Started

As part of the working group led by the Communities and
Families Senior Education Officer, appeals procedures which
detail end to end processes to be applied across all areas
involved in placing requests will be established and this will
include clear roles and responsibilities.

Page 176

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

63

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 1: Policies,
Procedures &
Guidance
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

High

CF1901: Issue
1.1(d)/(e) Communicatin
g Guidance on
Website & Orb
Started

Following review and completion of working group actions, all
policies and procedures will be published on the Council’s
website and Orb, and communicated to all relevant officers,
with changes highlighted.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Contributor
Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir
Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

64

Page 177

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 2:
Operational
Processes Admissions &
Appeals
Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

High

CF1901 Issue
2.1(b):
Committee on
Pupil Student
Support Remit,
Review &
Recording of
Outcomes
Started

Decisions and outcomes of the annual meeting of the
Committee on Pupil Student Support will be documented, and
a process implemented to ensure that the outcomes are
addressed by the Council. Consideration will be given to
reviewing and updating the remit of the Committee.
Committee members will be provided with training and support
to enable them to fulfil their role in line with the agreed remit.

Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
30/11/2020
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alistair Gaw
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Lesley Birrell
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

65

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 3: Process
Documentation &
Delivery
Responsibilities

Medium

Page 178

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

CF1901 Issue
3.1(a):
Development
&
Communicatio
n of end to end
processes and
role/responsibil
ities
Started

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

66

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 3: Process
Documentation &
Delivery
Responsibilities
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CF1901 Issue
3.1(b): Internal
Partnership
Protocols
Started

The remit of the working group led by the Communities and
Families Senior Education Officer, will include reviewing and
documenting end to end processes for the annual school
admissions, appeals, and capacity planning process. A matrix
describing divisional roles and responsibilities for processes,
which details who will be responsible; accountable; consulted;
and informed for each stage will also be developed. The end
to end procedures and matrix will be discussed and agreed
with all divisional teams involved in the process,
communicated, and published on the Council’s intranet (the
Orb) with training provided where required.

Internal partnership protocols will be prepared and
implemented for services delivered by other divisions on behalf
of Schools and Lifelong Learning, incorporating the scope of
services and roles and responsibilities defined in the new end
to end process documentation. Where relevant, current internal
charging arrangements will be reviewed to ensure that it
accurately reflect the levels of support provided. Partnership
protocols and associated key performance measures /
indicators will be reviewed at least every two years to ensure
they remain aligned with service delivery, operational
processes and relevant regulatory and professional standards.
Governance arrangements to support ongoing performance
monitoring will be designed and implemented to ensure that
both Schools and Lifelong Learning and the service areas that
support them are satisfied with the quality of services provided.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor
Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir
Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

67

Page 179

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 3: Process
Documentation &
Delivery
Responsibilities
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CF1901 Issue
3.1(c): Annual
Process Debrief &
Lessons
LearnedStarte
d

Following completion of the annual process, a debrief meeting
will be held with all teams involved to understand what worked
well and what areas need to be improved. The outcomes
should be recorded in a ‘lessons learned’ document that is
used to implement the improvement opportunities identified
and address any process issues in advance of the next annual
process.

Estimated
Date:31/08/2020
Revised
Date:22/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

School admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning

68

CF1901: School
admissions,
appeals and
capacity planning Issue 3: Process
Documentation &
Delivery
Responsibilities

Medium

Started

Page 180

The working group will review the roles and responsibilities for
any tasks performed out with the annual P1/S1 admissions,
appeals and capacity planning process. These will be
documented and communicated to all teams involved in the
process. The review will include identifying key contacts for
common non-annual admissions queries, for example, home
schooling; private schooling; dealing with refugees; and
requests for current or future capacity information, to ensure
that they can be appropriately redirected and resolved.

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Resilience BC

69

CF1901 Issue
3.1(d): Roles &
Responsibilitie
s outwith
Annual
Process

Resilience
responsibilities
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

Rec 3.3 H&SC
- Defining and
allocating
operational
resilience
duties
Started

Operational resilience responsibilities for completion and
ongoing maintenance of Directorate and Service Area
Business Impact Assessments; Resilience plans; and
coordination of resilience tests in conjunction with the
Resilience team will be clearly defined and allocated. The total
number of employees with operational resilience
responsibilities will be determined with reference to the volume
of business impact assessments and resilience plans that
require to be completed and maintained to support recovery of
critical services.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/08/2020
Revised Date:
22/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
20/12/2018
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
5

Contributor
Alison Roarty
Andy Gray
Arran Finlay
Donna Rodger
Hayley Barnett
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Matthew Clarke
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nick Smith
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Sheila Haig
Stephen Moir

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Jacqui Macrae

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Resilience BC

70

Resilience
responsibilities

High

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Issue/Status
Rec 4.3 H&SC
- Objectives for
operational
Resilience
responsibilities
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Corporate; management; and team member objectives for
operational resilience responsibilities (for example completion
of Service Area Business Impact Assessments; Resilience
Plans; and coordination of Resilience tests) will be established,
with ongoing oversight performed by Directors and Heads of
Service to confirm that these are being effectively delivered to
support the resilience responses included in both the
Directorate and Council’s annual governance statements.

Estimated Date:
31/07/2019
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
1

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Jacqui Macrae

Resilience BC

Page 181

71

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Rec 3.1 a)
Place Development
of Resilience
Plans/protocol
s for statutory
and critical
services

Rebased action October 2020Following a refresh of Business
Impact Assessments and the new organisational structure,
resilience plans/protocols will be developed, with support and
training from Resilience, for high-risk essential services. A list
of these services is to be provided by Resilience for approval
by CLT. Date revised to 31 December 2022.

Started

Resilience BC

72

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

Rec 3.1b
Resources Development
of Resilience
Plans/protocol
s for statutory
and critical
services
Started

Rebased action October 2020Following a refresh of Business
Impact Assessments and the new organisational structure,
resilience plans/protocols will be developed, with support and
training from Resilience, for high-risk essential services. A list
of these services is to be provided by Resilience for approval
by CLT. Date revised to 31 December 2022.

Estimated Date:
19/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2022
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
19/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2022
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gavin King
George Gaunt
Laurence
Rockey
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Gavin King
Laurence
Rockey
Layla Smith
Mary-Ellen
Lang
Michelle
Vanhegan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Resilience BC

73

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 182
74

Rec 3.1c
H&SC Development
of Resilience
Plans/protocol
s for statutory
and critical
services

Rebased action October 2020Following a refresh of Business
Impact Assessments and the new organisational structure,
resilience plans/protocols will be developed, with support and
training from Resilience, for high-risk essential services. A list
of these services is to be provided by Resilience for approval
by CLT. Date revised to 31 December 2022.

Started

Dates
Estimated Date:
19/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2022
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Gavin King
Jacqui Macrae
Laurence
Rockey
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Resilience BC
Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

High

Rec 3.1d C&F
- Development
of Resilience
Plans/protocol
s for statutory
and critical
services
Started

Rebased action October 2020Following a refresh of Business
Impact Assessments and the new organisational structure,
resilience plans/protocols will be developed, with support and
training from Resilience, for high-risk essential services. A list
of these services is to be provided by Resilience for approval
by CLT. Date revised to 31 December 2022.

Estimated Date:
19/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2022
No of Revisions
1

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Donna Rodger
Gavin King
Laurence
Rockey
Mary-Ellen
Lang
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Resilience BC

75

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

Page 183
76

Rec 3.1e S&C
- Development
of Resilience
Plans/protocol
s for statutory
and critical
services
Started

Resilience BC
Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Rebased action October 2020Following a refresh of Business
Impact Assessments and the new organisational structure,
resilience plans/protocols will be developed, with support and
training from Resilience, for high-risk essential services. A list
of these services is to be provided by Resilience for approval
by CLT. Date revised to 31 December 2022.

High

Rec 6.1a
Place - Review
of third-party
contracts to
confirm
appropriate
resilience
arrangements
Started

Existing third-party contracts supporting critical services should
be reviewed by Directorates in consultation with contract
managers / owners to confirm that they include appropriate
resilience arrangements. Where gaps are
identified, Procurement Services should be engaged to support
discussions with suppliers regarding inclusion of appropriate
resilience clauses requiring third parties to establish adequate
resilience arrangements for both services and systems that are
tested (at least annually) with the outcomes shared with /
provided to the Council. Where these changes cannot be
incorporated into existing contracts, they should be included
when the contracts are re tendered.

Dates
Estimated Date:
19/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2022
No of Revisions
1

Contributor

Donna Rodger
Gavin King
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated
Date:20/12/2019
Revised
Date:31/03/2021
No of Revisions
3

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Alison Coburn
Annette Smith
Claire Duchart
David Givan
George Gaunt
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Mollie Kerr

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Resilience BC

77

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 184
78

Started

Resilience BC
Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Rec 6.1b
Resources Review of
third-party
contracts to
confirm
appropriate
resilience
arrangements

High

Rec 6.1c
H&SC Review of
third-party
contracts to
confirm
appropriate
resilience
arrangements
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Existing third-party contracts supporting critical services should
be reviewed by Directorates in consultation with contract
managers / owners to confirm that they include appropriate
resilience arrangements. Where gaps are
identified, Procurement Services should be engaged to support
discussions with suppliers regarding inclusion of appropriate
resilience clauses requiring third parties to establish adequate
resilience arrangements for both services and systems that are
tested (at least annually) with the outcomes shared with /
provided to the Council. Where these changes cannot be
incorporated into existing contracts, they should be included
when the contracts are re tendered.

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Existing third-party contracts supporting critical services should
be reviewed by Directorates in consultation with contract
managers / owners to confirm that they include appropriate
resilience arrangements. Where gaps are
identified, Procurement Services should be engaged to support
discussions with suppliers regarding inclusion of appropriate
resilience clauses requiring third parties to establish adequate
resilience arrangements for both services and systems that are
tested (at least annually) with the outcomes shared with /
provided to the Council. Where these changes cannot be
incorporated into existing contracts, they should be included
when the contracts are re tendered.

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Annette Smith
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mollie Kerr

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Annette Smith
Cathy Wilson
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Moira Pringle
Mollie Kerr
Sally
McGregor

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Existing third-party contracts supporting critical services should
be reviewed by Directorates in consultation with contract
managers / owners to confirm that they include appropriate
resilience arrangements. Where gaps are
identified, Procurement Services should be engaged to support
discussions with suppliers regarding inclusion of appropriate
resilience clauses requiring third parties to establish adequate
resilience arrangements for both services and systems that are
tested (at least annually) with the outcomes shared with /
provided to the Council. Where these changes cannot be
incorporated into existing contracts, they should be included
when the contracts are re tendered.

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Contributor

Resilience BC

79

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Page 185
80

Rec 6.1d C&F
- Review of
third-party
contracts to
confirm
appropriate
resilience
arrangements
Started

Resilience BC
Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

High

Rec 6.1e S&C
- Review of
third-party
contracts to
confirm
appropriate
resilience
arrangements
Started

Existing third-party contracts supporting critical services will be
reviewed by Directorates in consultation with contract
managers / owners to confirm that they include appropriate
resilience arrangements. Where gaps are
identified, Procurement Services will be engaged to support
discussions with suppliers regarding inclusion of appropriate
resilience clauses requiring third parties to establish adequate
resilience arrangements for both services and systems that are
tested (at least annually) with the outcomes shared with /
provided to the Council. Where these changes cannot be
incorporated into existing contracts, they will be included when
the contracts are re tendered and critical service plans should
be documented and
communicated by Corporate Resilience.

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Annette Smith
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Michelle
McMillan
Mollie Kerr
Nickey Boyle
Ruth Currie

Annette Smith
Donna Rodger
Gavin King
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Mary-Ellen
Lang
Mollie Kerr

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Resilience BC

81

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Rec 6.2a
Place - Annual
assurance
from Third
Party
Providers
Started

Agreed Management Action

Page 186

Following receipt of initial assurance from all third-party
providers for statutory and critical services (as per rec 6.1),
annual assurance that provider resilience plans remain
adequate and effective should be obtained. This should
include confirmation from the provider that they have tested
these plans and recovery time objectives for systems and
recovery time and point objectives for technology systems
agreed with the Council were achieved. It is recommended that
contract managers include this requirement as part on ongoing
contract management arrangements. Where this assurance
cannot be provided, this should be recorded in Service Area
and Directorate risk registers. Date revised to reflect that
following receipt of initial assurance by 31 March 2021, annual
assurance should be obtained by 31 March 2022.

Dates

Estimated
Date:28/06/2019
Revised
Date:31/03/2022
No of Revisions
3

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
George Gaunt

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Resilience BC

82

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Page 187

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Rec 6.2b
Resources Annual
assurance
from Third
Party
Providers

Agreed Management Action
Following receipt of initial assurance from all third party
providers for statutory and critical services (as per rec 6.1),
annual
assurance that provider resilience plans remain adequate and
effective should be
obtained. This should include
confirmation from the provider that they have tested these
plans and recovery
time objectives for systems and recovery time and point
objectives for
technology systems agreed with the Council were achieved.
It is recommended that contract managers include this
requirement as part on ongoing contract management
arrangements.

Started
Where this assurance cannot be provided, this should be
recorded in Service Area and Directorate risk registers.

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2022
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Annette Smith
Hugh Dunn
Iain Strachan
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mollie Kerr

Date revised to reflect that following receipt of initial
assurance by 31 March 2021, annual assurance should be
obtained by 31 March
2022.
Resilience BC

83

Dates

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

Rec 6.2c
H&SC Annual
assurance
from Third
Party
Providers
Started

Assurance will be obtained annually for statutory and critical
services from third party service providers that their resilience
plans remain adequate and effective; and have been tested to
confirm that the recovery time objectives for systems and
recovery time and point objectives for technology systems
agreed with the Council were achieved. Where this assurance
cannot be provided, this will be recorded in Service Area and
Directorate risk registers.

Estimated Date:
21/06/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2022
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Gavin King
Jacqui Macrae
Laurence
Rockey
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Resilience BC

84

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements

High

Page 188

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Rec 6.2d C&F
- Annual
assurance
from Third
Party
Providers
Started

Agreed Management Action
Following receipt of initial assurance from all third party
providers for statutory and critical services (as per rec 6.1),
annual
assurance that provider resilience plans remain adequate and
effective should be
obtained. This should include
confirmation from the provider that they have tested these
plans and recovery
time objectives for systems and recovery time and point
objectives for
technology systems agreed with the Council were achieved.
It is recommended that contract managers include this
requirement as part on ongoing contract management
arrangements.
Where this assurance cannot be provided, this should be
recorded in Service Area and Directorate risk registers.

Dates

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2022
No of Revisions
2

Contributor

Anna Gray
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Date revised to reflect that following receipt of initial
assurance by 31 March 2021, annual assurance should be
obtained by 31 March
2022.
Resilience BC

85

Completion and
adequacy of
service area
business impact
assessments and
resilience
arrangements
Laurence Rockey,

High

Rec 6.2e S&C
- Annual
assurance
from Third
Party
Providers
Started

Following receipt of initial assurance from all third party
providers for statutory and critical services (as per rec 6.1),
annual
assurance that provider resilience plans remain adequate and
effective should be
obtained. This should include
confirmation from the provider that they have tested these
plans and recovery
time objectives for systems and recovery time and point
objectives for
technology systems agreed with the Council were achieved.

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2022
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Donna Rodger
Mary-Ellen
Lang

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Head of Strategy &
Communications

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

It is recommended that contract managers include this
requirement as part on ongoing contract management
arrangements.
Where this assurance cannot be provided, this should be
recorded in Service Area and Directorate risk registers.
Date revised to reflect that following receipt of initial
assurance by 31 March 2021, annual assurance should be
obtained by 31 March
2022.

Records
Management LAAC

Page 189
86

CW1705 Issue 1:
Project file review
process
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CW1705 Issue
1.1: Review
and Refresh of
the project file
review
process.
Started

Agreed actions will be implemented as recommended by
Internal Audit. The project team will work to an end of January
date for implementation of the quality assurance within the
project team with an end of February date for Internal Audit to
review the process applied.

Estimated Date:
28/02/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
3

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Records
Management –
LAAC

87

CW1705 Issue 1:
Project file review
process
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CW1705 Issue
1.2: Process
communication
and training
Started

Agreed actions will be implementedas recommended by
Internal Audit. Theproject team will work to an end of January
date for implementation of qualityassurance within the project
team with an end of February date for InternalAudit to review
the process applied.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated
Date:28/02/2020
Revised
Date:31/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Page 190

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Records
Management LAAC

88

Page 191

CW1705 Issue 1:
Project file review
process
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CW1705 Issue
1.3: Quality
assurance
checks
Started

Agreed Management Action

Project management information will be monitored weekly to
identify the volume of files that have been reviewed by the
project team and an independent risk based quality assurance
approach developed and implemented that focuses on files
that have not been ‘split’ by the project team, to confirm that
they have been accurately classified as files that have not
been merged prior to their return to Iron Mountain for archiving.
Quality assurance sample sizes will be selected at the start of
each week and will depend on the volumes of files reviewed by
the project team and the relevant proportion of non-merged
and merged files. Where merged files have been identified and
split by the project team, a lighter touch approach involving
peer reviews will be adopted to ensure that the project file
review process has been consistently applied and appropriate
actions implemented. Quality assurance outcomes will be
recorded and all significant errors (for example failure to
identify merged files), areas of good practices, and areas for
improvement will be shared with the project team. Availability
of quality resource will be monitored throughout the project to
ensure that it remains adequate to complete an appropriate
number of QA reviews based on file outcomes. A retrospective
sample of cases already reviewed by the project team will also
be selected for retrospective review based on the approach
outlined above. The project team will work to an end of
February date for implementation of quality assurance within
the project team with an end of March date for Internal Audit to
review the process applied.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
3

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Records
Management LAAC

89

CW1705 Issue 2:
Review of
additional files

Medium

Started

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Page 192
90

CW1705 Issue
2.1: Review of
additional files

Records
Management LAAC
CW1705 Issue 2:
Review of
additional files
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CW1705 Issue
2.2: Impact
analysis
Started

The total volume of files at Westerhailes will be quantified.
Once this has been completed, a risk-based sample approach
will be applied to review the files and identify any that may
have been merged.

The outcomes of the review of additional files (as detailed at
recommendation 2.1) will be shared with the Senior
Responsible Officers together with an impact analysis detailing
the resourcing and associated costs of including the files within
the project scope, and recommendations made as to whether
the scope of the project should be extended to include these
files, or whether reliance should be placed on the new
business as usual process to be implemented as detailed at
Finding 3. Where the decision is taken to include the potentially
merged files within the scope of the project, they will be
transferred across to the project team and logged for review.
The project team will work to a completion 29 May with a date
of 26 June for validation by Internal Audit.

Dates
Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Estimated Date:
26/06/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Contributor
Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Records
Management LAAC

91

CW1705 Issue 3:
Pre destruction
business as usual
file review process

Medium

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Page 193
92

Issue/Status

CW1705 Issue
3.1: Pre
destruction
business as
usual file
review process

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

The pre destruction business as usual file review process is
currently being developed and will cover all of the points
recommended by Internal Audit. The process will be prepared
by the end January 2020 and agreed with the Health and
Social Care and Communities and Families Directorates by the
end of February 2020.

Started

Records
Management LAAC
CW1705 Issue 3:
Pre destruction
business as usual
file review process

Agreed Management Action

Medium

CW1705 Issue
3.2a (C&F):
Communicatio
n and training
Started

Children’s Practice team managers have already been briefed
regarding the outcomes of the audit and a refreshed process
will soon be implemented. The process will be co-produced
with Business Support Team Managers, communicated and
uploaded to the Orb. Given the scale of training to be provided,
a CECiL based approach will be applied with support provided
by Business Support and requested from Learning and
Organisational Development (Human Resources), with
divisions requested to track completion of the CECiL module.
Locality Management teams will also receive face to face
training on the new process.

Dates
Estimated Date:
28/02/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
3

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated
Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Contributor
Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey
Louise McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Records
Management LAAC

93

CW1705 Issue 3:
Pre destruction
business as usual
file review process

Medium

Issue/Status

CW1705 Issue
3.2b (H&SCP):
Communicatio
n and training
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 194
94

Agreed Management Action

Health and Social Care will adopt a similar approach to
Communities and Families with the new process
communicated and uploaded to the Orb. A CECiL based
approach will also be applied with support provided by
Business Support and requested from Learning and
Organisational Development (Human Resources), with
completion of the CECiL module by the relevant teams
tracked. Locality Management teams will also receive face to
face training on the new process.

Records
Management LAAC
CW1705 Issue 3:
Pre destruction
business as usual
file review process
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Medium

CW1705 Issue
3.3a (C&F):
Quality
assurance
process
Started

A joint risk-based quality assurance process will be established
between Business Support and Team Managers in Localities.
Quality assurance outcomes will be recorded, and learnings
shared with team managers at Children’s Practice Team
meetings, enabling city wide service improvement actions to be
identified and implemented where appropriate.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
0

Contributor

Cathy Wilson
Jacqui Macrae
Tom Cowan

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated
Estimated
Date:30/06/2020
Revised
Date:01/11/2020
No of Revisions
0

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Alison Roarty
Ani Barclay
Donna Rodger
Freeha Ahmed
John Arthur
Laurence
Rockey Louise
McRae
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Ruth Currie
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Records
Management LAAC

95

CW1705 Issue 3:
Pre destruction
business as usual
file review process

Medium

Issue/Status

CW1705 Issue
3.3b (H&SCP):
Quality
Assurance
Process
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Agreed Management Action

A joint quality assurance process will be established between
Business Support and Team Managers in Localities. The new
Health and Social Care Partnership Chief Nurse and Head of
Quality will be responsible for managerial oversight of the
quality assurance processes, ensuring that lessons learned are
fed back to the Localities and outcomes reported to the Clinical
and Care Governance Committee for scrutiny and oversight.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
0

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Contributor

Cathy Wilson
Jacqui Macrae
Tom Cowan

Page 195

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Payments and
Charges

Page 196
96

CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
1: Review,
authorisation, and
publication of fees
and charges
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Medium

Issue/Status

CW1803 Rec.
1.1 - Process
documentation
supporting
calculation of
fees and
charges
including
review of
reserve
balances
Started

Agreed Management Action
Response from Licensing Any new fees or proposed
adjustments are presented to the Committee for scrutiny and
agreement. The rationale for Taxi, Civic and Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) licensing fees was reviewed and agreed by
Regulatory Committee in 2015 and 2017 respectively and no
further changes are planned at this time. As part of the annual
budget process, the Place Directorate makes
recommendations on any inflationary uplifts that should be
applied to fees based on projected costs and the Licensing
reserves position. In 2018/2019 there was no increase in the
Licensing budget which reflected the reserves position at that
time. In the 2019/20 budget Taxi and Civic discretionary
licence fees were increased by 2.5% to reflect increased costs
associate with the local government pay settlement for 2018/19
and 2019/2020. In comparison, the increase applied to fees
supporting generation of other types of income across the
Council was circa 5%. This demonstrates that Licensing is
proactively managing both fees and reserves. For HMO
Licences, the Regulatory Committee approved a revised fee
structure in 2017, and there is planned reduction of current
reserve balances over a 3-year period. Consequently, HMO
fees for 2019/2020 were not increased. For budget 2020/2021
a review of HMO reserves will be performed with Finance and
recommendations made either to the Regulatory Committee or
Full Council on any further fee adjustments required to ensure
the planned reduction of the reserve is achieved. There are
also unplanned factors that impact the final reserves position.
These include increased application volumes; the impact of
vacancies and recruitment; and repairs or replacement of
property or equipment (for example a replacement ramp at the
Taxi Examination Centre in 2016/17 at the cost of £90K).
These unplanned factors are also considered when revised
fees are proposed during the budget process. The Taxi reserve
increase is largely driven by increased application volumes.
The reserve is also being allowed to increase in the medium
term to offset planned capital spend on relocation of the Taxi

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/07/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
Annette Smith
David Givan
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Layla Smith
Michael Thain
Michelle
Vanhegan
Sandra
Harrison
Stephen Moir

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Page 197

Examination Centre when the Council closes the Murrayburn
depot site in the next 2-3 years to avoid potential capital
budget pressures. Licensing is working with Finance to ensure
there is greater certainty in setting fees when taking account of
the impact of the Central Support Charges levied. In 2018 the
Directorate introduced financial reporting to the Regulatory
Committee in addition to the established financial reporting
provided to the Finance and Resource
Committee.http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/
58887/item_72_-_licence_income_for_fees_20172018http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/59029
/minute_of_the_regulatory_committee_of_221018 Response
from Finance At present, the allocation of central support costs
in line with accountancy conventions is not finalised until after
the licensing charges for the future year have been set. A
mechanism to approximate allocation of central support
charges in advance to allow for more considered analysis of
reserve balances and costs within each budgetary process will
facilitate this. There is already a framework in place to
apportion income and costs across licence categories and
calculate additions to or withdrawals from licensing reserves.
This populates the annual City of Edinburgh Licensing Board
Financial Report as required under Section 9B of the Licensing
(Scotland) Act 2005. This framework where appropriate will be
developed to add to existing transparency in respect of
rationale and processes. The combination of both actions
above will enable regular review and monitoring of reserve
positions and related decision making. The implementation
date allows for 2020-21 budget setting and 2019-20 final
accounts processes to be completed allowing for audit
evidence.

Dates

Contributor

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Payments and
Charges

97

CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
4: Processing and
recording Licensing
Fees

Medium

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 198
98

Issue/Status

CW1803 Rec.
4.1 Procedures
supporting
processing
and recording
licencing fees
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

The recommendation is accepted. Financial reconciliations
between the systems have commenced reinstatement. Work is
underway to build a management information suite which will
augment the control attributes of the reconciliation as a
standalone mechanism.

Estimated Date:
28/02/2020
Revised Date:
30/06/2021
No of Revisions
3

Annette Smith
Dougie Linton
Gavin Graham
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Susan Hamilton

2. Call prioritisation procedures will be designed and
implemented, including recording the rationale for call
prioritisation and delivery of training to staff. A review schedule
for these procedures will be implemented with the last review
date and date of next scheduled review clearly identifiable i.e.
every 3 years.

Estimated Date:
29/11/2019
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

The Licensing Service processes approximately 21,000
applications per annum and the Internal Audit sample reviewed
represents approximately 1% of the overall number of
applications. Internal procedures will be reviewed to ensure
that that they adequately cover the issues raised and all staff
will receive refresher training to reinforce the importance of
consistent application of the procedures. Longer term
upgrades to the APP Civica Licensing system should also offer
enhanced capability with mandatory sections for each licence
type processed.

Payments and
Charges
CW1803 Payments
and Charges Issue
5: Processing and
recording of
Parking Permit
fees

Medium

CW1803 Rec.
5.4 - NSL
income
reconciliation
Started

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
99

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

CW1806 Issue
1.1(2): ATEC
24 Review of
Operational
Processes Call
Prioritisation
Started

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Emma
Szadurski
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

2. All Telecare SLAs will be reviewed every two years to
ensure that they take account of service delivery and
operational processes, changes to any applicable regulations
and relevant professional standards.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Emma
Szadurski
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

3. A partnership protocol will be approved and implemented for
the Fallen Uninjured Person Service to reflect the current
operations, funding arrangements and any planned process
improvements.

Estimated Date:
29/11/2019
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
3

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

100

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 199

101

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

CW1806 Issue
1.2(2): ATEC
24 Service
Level
Agreements Schedule for
Future
Reviews
Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
102

All third-party contracts and supporting Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) will be reviewed and updated. This will
include a review of financial arrangements to ensure ATEC 24
is adequately remunerated for the levels of service provided.

Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

CW1806 Issue
1.2(1): ATEC
24 Service
Level
Agreements Review of all
Contracts

Medium

CW1806 Issue
1.2(3): ATEC
24 Service
Level
Agreements Partnership
Protocol
Started

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

1. Key performance indicators included within the Health and
Social Care scorecard will include percentage of calls
answered within set targets; percentage of emergency
response visits within target; and well as volumes of calls and
responses.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Philip Brown
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

2. The parameters used for monitoring call handling and
response times will be reviewed and updated in line with
Technology Enabled Care Services Association (TSA)
guidance and used to inform capacity planning; to ensure that
there are sufficient call handlers and responders to meet
industry standards.

Estimated
Date:31/10/2019
Revised
Date:01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

6. Roll out of handheld devices to allow automated reporting
will be progressed.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
1

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

103

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 200
104

105

Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

CW1806 Issue
1.3(1): ATEC
24
Performance
Reporting Scorecard
KPIs

Medium

CW1806 Issue
1.3(2): ATEC
24
Performance
Reporting Response
Parameters

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

CW1806 Issue
1.1(6): ATEC
24 Review of
Operational
Processes Response
Recording

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Started

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

3. ATEC 24 Service performance will be reported and regularly
scrutinised by the Health and Social Care Partnership
Executive Management Team.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Philip Brown
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

2. Benefits and service improvements made as a result of
customer feedback will be tracked and communicated both
externally to customers, and internally to the service.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Andy Jones
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Craig ODonnell
Katie McWilliam
Lindsay Munro
Sylvia Latona
Tony Duncan

Estimated Date:
30/11/2019
Revised Date:
01/10/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alistair Gaw
Angela Ritchie
Brian
Henderson
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Fiona Benzies
Jackie Irvine
Nichola Dadds
Nickey Boyle
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer
Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

106

CW1806 Issue 1:
ATEC 24
Operational
Framework

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 201

107

Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
CW1806 Issue 2:
ATEC 24 Customer
Engagement

Low

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

CW1806: Issue 2:
Third Party Service
Provision - Health
& Social Care
Partnership

CW1806 Issue
2.1(2): ATEC
24 Customer
Feedback Tracking and
Communicatio
n
Started

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints
108

CW1806 Issue
1.3(3): ATEC
24
Performance
Reporting Scrutiny of
Performance
Measures

Medium

CW1806:
Issue 2(1):
SLAs - Third
Party Service
Provision
Started

A review of the SLA for the ESCS is underway. It is likely the
detail of the arrangements will differ considerably from what is
currently included within the SLA. The review will, however,
take into consideration the points noted above. The review of
the SLA will include contributions from City of Edinburgh
Council, Midlothian Council and East Lothian Council, and will
be presented to the Edinburgh Health and Social Care
Partnership Executive Management Team for review and
approval.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
28/02/2020
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Alison Roarty
Alistair Gaw
Angela Ritchie
Brian
Henderson
Cathy Wilson
Elspeth
Thompson
Fiona Benzies
Jennifer Wilson
Julie Rosano
Layla Smith
Lisa Hastie
Michelle
Vanhegan
Neil Jamieson
Nickey Boyle
Nicola Harvey
Stephen Moir
Tony Duncan

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Emergency
Prioritisation &
Complaints

109

Page 202

CW1806: Issue 2:
Third Party Service
Provision - Health
& Social Care
Partnership

Medium

Agreed, once the SLA is finalised, a Partnership Protocol will
be developed in conjunction with Customer Contact Centre
colleagues.

Started
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Homelessness
Services

110

CW1806:
Issue 2(2):
Partnership
Protocol
HSCP/Contact
Centre

CW1808 Issue 2:
Homelessness
data quality and
performance
reporting
Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director

High

CW1808
Recommendati
on 2.2.3 Performance
Reporting
Started

2.2.3 - We will report performance information through a
dashboard to the Housing and Economy Committee, officers
are currently working with elected members to finalise the key
performance indicators required.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Emma Morgan
Jackie Irvine
Nicky Brown

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

of Communities
and Families
Homelessness
Services

111

Page 203
112

CW1808 Issue 3:
Provision of
homelessness
advice and
information

Medium

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

3.1.2 - Following the engagement events with key
stakeholders, the Council’s website will be updated to include
the information set out within the recommendation, and any
other information relevant to key stakeholders. Webpages will
be subject to regular review to ensure the information remains
up to date and in line with policies and legislation.

Started

Validation of
Management
Actions 2018/19
Validation Audit
CW1810 reopened
finding - HSC1513:
Management
structure and
business support
arrangements

CW1801
Recommendati
on 3.1.2:
Updating
homelessness
information on
website

High

Validation
Audit CW1810
- Issue 2.1
HSC1503:
Partnership
Management
Structure
Started

The Partnership’s organisational management structure will be
finalised, implemented, and embedded. The revised structure
does not need to be approved by the IJB because it is an
operational matter. It will however be presented to the EIJB for
information. The revised implementation date of April 2020 will
allow completion of Partnership budget and transformation
Programmes.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
3

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Estimated Date:
31/12/2015
Revised Date:
01/09/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Debbie
Herbertson
Jackie Irvine
Nichola Dadds
Nicky Brown

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report

113

A1.1: Care Homes
Self Assurance
Framework

Medium

Page 204

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
A2.3: Welfare Fund
and Outings Funds

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

115

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

A2.3(2)
Establishment
of welfare fund
committees
Started

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
A2.3: Welfare Fund
and Outings Funds

A1.1: Care
Homes Self
Assurance
Framework
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

114

Issue/Status

Medium

A2.3(3)
Production of
annual
accounts and
review by
welfare fund
committee
Started

Agreed Management Action

A self-assurance framework will be designed and implemented
that will validate effective operation of controls in place to
manage these risks. The Health and Social Care Partnership
Operations Manager will be accountable for development;
implementation and ongoing operation of the framework.
Development and implementation support will be requested
from Business Support and Quality Assurance and
Compliance.

A working group has been established that will focus on
welfare. The remit of the group will focus on welfare
committees; constitutions; accounts; criteria and donations. 2
officers from the working group have been assigned
responsibility to write and implement welfare guidelines.

A working group has been established that will focus on
welfare. The remit of the group will focus on welfare
committees; constitutions; accounts; criteria and donations. 2
officers from the working group have been assigned
responsibility to write and implement welfare guidelines Task
assigned to Business Officer for annual accounts and daily
bookkeeping. Guidelines to be written for consistency.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/06/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
1

Contributor

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
31/07/2018
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
5

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
31/07/2018
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
4

Current revised
date agreed as

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

part of extension
exercise

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
116

A3.1: Training

Medium

Page 205

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

117

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

This will be included as part of a new monthly controls process
to be implemented and monitored via completion of a monthly
spreadsheet. A working group has been established to
document all processes to be included.

Started

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
A3.3: Performance
& Attendance
Management

A3.1(1)
Manager
review of
training

Medium

A3.3(2) Health
& Social Care
Teams - 6
monthly and
annual
performance
conversations
Started

Estimated Date:
30/06/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
3

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Health and Social Care Teams Will ensure that annual
performance conversations (once completed) are recorded on
the iTrent system.

Estimated Date:
30/06/2018
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
5

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report

118

A3.3: Performance
& Attendance
Management

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 206

119

Medium

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

120

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

This is the responsibility of the Unit manager for their direct
reports. The Business Support Officer will ensure that the Unit
Manager is aware on a monthly basis for Domestics and
Handymen reporting to them The Business Support Officer is
required to monitor and report through the Customer process
on a monthly basis. The staff nurse / charge nurse to be
appointed at Gylemuir will ensure that this is performed for all
NHS staff.

A3.4(2)
Analysis of the
agency staff
and hours
worked
charges

The BSO will assist the UM (See A2.1). A paper is being
presented to the Health and Social Care Senior Management
Team week commencing 15th January 2018 that proposes a
solution where information will be provided to Locality
Managers who will prepare reports for Care Homes. If this
solution is agreed, it will be implemented immediately.

Started

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
A3.5: Adequacy of
Resources

A3.3(4) Health
& Social Care
Teams quarterly
review of
absence and
performance
management

Agreed Management Action

Started

H&SC Care Homes
- Corporate Report
A3.4: Agency
Staffing

Issue/Status

Medium

A3.5(1) Care
Inspectorate
Dependency
Assessments
requirements

Unit managers submit monthly reports to Cluster manager and
Locality management team. Locality management team
responsible for ensuring resource meets the demand based on
dependency scoring.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/06/2018
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
3

Contributor

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
31/03/2018
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
4

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
31/01/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
5

Started
Current revised
date agreed as

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Marian Gray
Tom Cowan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

part of extension
exercise

Page 207

121

Social Work Centre
Bank Account
Reconciliations
Corporate
Appointee Client
Fund Management
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

Recommendati
on 1a - Health
& Social Care
Started

1. Health and Social Care: Given the considerable business
support and social worker resources implications, the above
recommendations will take time to design, implement and
maintain. Business Support is resolving problem appointee
arrangements as we go along, however, the backlog of reviews
will need a programme management approach to rectify errors
and support the governance required. In the meantime,
associated risks will be added to the Partnership’s risk register
to monitor controls and progress on a monthly basis, given its
high finding rating. Following the Care Home Assurance
Review, the Partnership is developing a self-assurance control
framework. Locality Managers have agreed for corporate
appointee arrangements to be included in the assurance
framework – which if found to be successful and useful, can be
mirrored by the other applicable services in this report.
Business Support is working on new guidelines for the
administration of Corporate Appointeeship (e.g. new
procedures, monthly checklists, etc.), which will support the
effective delivery of the framework.

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Ian Waitt
Tony Duncan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Social Work Centre
Bank Account
Reconciliations
122

Corporate
Appointee Client
Fund Management

High

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 208

123

Issue/Status

2.2. Updating
procedures to
include an
annual review
of Corporate
Appointee
contracts

Agreed Management Action

2. New guidelines will be written to ensure clarity of
responsibilities. Sections will be included detailing Social Work;
Business Support; and Transactions team responsibilities. The
objective is to create and implement an end to end process
that includes eligibility criteria, DWP processes and a full
administrative process that will be applied centrally and across
Locality offices; clusters; and hubs.

Started

Social Work Centre
Bank Account
Reconciliations
Corporate
Appointee Client
Fund Management
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

Recommendati
on 8
Started

8. Refresher training will be offered as part of the
implementation of the new guidelines to all staff involved in the
process and recorded on staff training records. The training will
also be incorporated into the new staff induction process.

Dates
Estimated Date:
30/04/2018
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
31/05/2018
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
3

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Ian Waitt
Tony Duncan

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Ian Waitt
Tony Duncan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Social Work Centre
Bank Account
Reconciliations
124

Corporate
Appointee Client
Fund Management

High

Issue/Status

Recommendati
on 1b Business
Support
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 209
125

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
Risk and Supplier
Performance
Management
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

Rec 1 - Risk
Management
Started

Agreed Management Action
1. Business Support: Business Support will enable the review
of current processes and guidelines in conjunction with Hub
and Cluster Managers with sign off at the Locality Managers
Forum. Business support will review all Corporate Appointee
accounts and contact the relevant social worker, support
worker or hub where the funds are over £16K for immediate
review. Business support will advise social work when the
funds exceed £16K where there is not a valid reason (for
example, client deceased and social worker discussing estate
with solicitor). Clarity on contact with DWP is being progressed
and will be written into the new guidelines. Regular reporting
will be introduced from the revised systems being
implemented. This will be provided monthly at Senior Social
Work level and annually for H&SC management

A contracts management risk register will be developed
describing, prioritising, and addressing risks to delivery. The
risk register will be shared with and approved by the Core
group by January 2018. The risk register will be refreshed
quarterly and reviewed by the Core Group.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/05/2018
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
2

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise
Estimated Date:
30/03/2018
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
4

Current revised
date agreed as
part of extension
exercise

Contributor

Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Ian Waitt
Tony Duncan

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
126

Risk and Supplier
Performance
Management

High

Issue/Status

Rec 3 Performance
Expectations
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 210

127

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
Risk and Supplier
Performance
Management

High

Rec 4 Timeframes
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

128

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
Key Person
Dependency and
Process
Documentation

Medium

Rec 2 Contract
Management
Processes
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

The existing contract management procedures will be
summarised in a single document. It will include the dates
information needs to come in, the key contacts, the escalation
process in the event of non-performance and the priority
metrics that would trigger those processes (waiting times,
numbers taken onto caseloads, planned discharges). There
will still be subject knowledge and judgement involved in
monitoring the contracts; the escalation process cannot be
reduced to an algorithm. To be agreed with the providers to
confirm our shared understanding and shared with the EADP
core group by January 2018.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

The existing contract management procedures will be
summarised in a single document. It will include the dates
information needs to come in, the key contacts, the escalation
process in the event of non-performance and the priority
metrics that would trigger those processes (waiting times,
numbers taken onto caseloads, planned discharges). There
will still be subject knowledge and judgement involved in
monitoring the contracts; the escalation process cannot be
reduced to an algorithm. To be agreed with the providers to
confirm our shared understanding and shared with the EADP
core group by January 2018.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

The existing contract management procedures will be
summarised in a single document. It will include the dates
information needs to come in, the key contacts, the escalation
process in the event of non-performance and the priority
metrics that would trigger those processes (waiting times,
numbers taken onto caseloads, planned discharges). There
will still be subject knowledge and judgement involved in
monitoring the contracts; the escalation process cannot be
reduced to an algorithm. To be agreed with the providers to

Estimated Date:
31/01/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 211

129

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/01/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

confirm our shared understanding and shared with the EADP
core group by January 2018.

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
Key Person
Dependency and
Process
Documentation

Agreed Management Action

Medium

Rec 4 - Key
Supplier
Contracts
Started

The existing contract management procedures will be
summarised in a single document. It will include the dates
information needs to come in, the key contacts, the escalation
process in the event of non-performance and the priority
metrics that would trigger those processes (waiting times,
numbers taken onto caseloads, planned discharges). There
will still be subject knowledge and judgement involved in
monitoring the contracts; the escalation process cannot be
reduced to an algorithm. To be agreed with the providers to
confirm our shared understanding and shared with the EADP
core group by January 2018.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management
130

Key Person
Dependency and
Process
Documentation

Medium

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Rec 5 Records
Management
Policy

Records retention policy: Direction will be requested from the
Information Governance team in relation to Records
Management Policy requirements and how they should be
applied to retention, archiving and destruction of contract
management information. Any lessons learned will be shared
with the Health and Social Care contracts management team.

Estimated Date:
30/03/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
5

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

Contingency plans will be developed, discussed with existing
suppliers, and approved by the Core Group.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2018
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Colin Beck
Tony Duncan

Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Page 212

Edinburgh Alcohol
and Drug
Partnership
(EADP) – Contract
Management

131

Medium
Supplier
Sustainability
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Rec 2 Contingency
Plans
Started

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

132

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 213

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Issue/Status

1.1
Recommendati
on - Localities
Operating
Model Post
Implementatio
n Review
Started

Agreed Management Action

Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Alistair Gaw
David Givan
Evelyn Kilmurry
George Gaunt
Mike Avery
Peter Strong
Ruth Currie
Sarah Burns

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

133

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 214

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Issue/Status

1.2
Recommendati
on –
Development
and Delivery of
Council
Locality
Improvement
Plan Actions
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Alison Henry
David Givan
Donna Rodger
Evelyn Kilmurry
George Gaunt
Laurence
Rockey
Michele
Mulvaney
Mike Avery
Paula McLeay
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

134

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 215

Laurence Rockey,
Head of Strategy &
Communications

High

Issue/Status

1.3
Recommendati
on - Locality
Service
Delivery
Performance
Measures
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/08/2021
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Donna Rodger
Evelyn Kilmurry
Michele
Mulvaney
Mike Avery
Paula McLeay
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

135

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 216

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Issue/Status

1.4
Recommendati
on Engagement
with Council
centralised
divisions
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Evelyn Kilmurry
George Gaunt
Mike Avery
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

136

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 217

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

Issue/Status

1.5
Recommendati
on - Locality
budget
planning and
financial
management
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Annette Smith
Evelyn Kilmurry
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mike Avery
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns
Susan Hamilton

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Localities
Operating Model

137

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

Page 218

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

1.6
Recommendati
on - Risk
Management
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Contributor

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Evelyn Kilmurry
George Gaunt
Mike Avery
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Localities
Operating Model

138

1. Localities
Governance and
Operating Model

High

Page 219

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Issue/Status

1.7
Recommendati
on Succession
Planning
Started

Localities
Operating Model

139

2. Oracle Financial
System –
Authorised
Approval Limits
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Low

2.1
Recommendati
on Authorisation
Limits Review
Started

Agreed Management Action
Management response from the Place Directorate and
Strategy and Communications It is recognised the Council’s
localities operating model has not been fully effective and that
oversight of locality performance and delivery of locality
improvement plan actions could be improved. This is mainly
attributable to the ambitious and complex design of the original
localities operating model. The Localities operating model is in
the process of being redesigned following dissolution of the
Localities Committees as in February 2019, and the Internal
Audit recommendations included in the first finding below will
be considered and implemented (where appropriate) in the
design of the new model and incorporated within reporting
provided to established Council executive committees that are
responsible for oversight of service delivery across the
localities and monitoring progress with delivery of LIP actions.
Once the new locality model has been designed, details of the
new design and implementation plan will be shared with
Internal Audit by 31 March 2020 to demonstrate how their
recommendations will be addressed and implemented. It has
been agreed with Internal Audit that new management actions
will be raised at that time to track implementation progress.
A large-scale exercise, involving over 500 changes to the
structure, was undertaken during the winter months realigning
Place, taking into account changes relating to Transformation.
A review of all Oracle Requisition Approvers for the department
of Place has been initiated and is currently underway. More
fundamentally, a rolling programme of all Oracle Requisition
Approvers, across all divisions, has been reinstated. Prior to
2015 this was business as usual (BAU), however due to the
proposed introduction of the enterprise resource planning
solution and other budget cuts and staff reductions this was
suspended. The significance of this regular review was
recognised and reinstated in 2018. This will be rigorously
implemented until firmly re-embedded as part of BAU across
the business

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1
Now in the
process of being
transferred to
the Adaptation
and Renewal
Programme

Estimated Date:
26/06/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
0

Contributor

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Evelyn Kilmurry
George Gaunt
Mike Avery
Peter Strong
Sarah Burns

Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Brenda
Brownlee
David Camilleri
Hugh Dunn
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Planning and S75
Developer
Contributions

140

Backlog of Legacy
Developer
Contributions
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

Issue/Status

PL 1802
Recommendati
on 1.1 Review
of developer
contributions
held in the
Finance
database
Started

Agreed Management Action

A full review of all developer contributions held in the Finance
database will be performed, and all entries reconciled to
amounts held on deposit and/or in the general ledger.

Page 220

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/01/2016
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Bruce
Nicolson
David Leslie
David Givan
Hugh Dunn
Layla Smith
Michael Thain
Michelle
Vanhegan
Rebecca
Andrew

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Planning and S75
Developer
Contributions

141

Page 221

Backlog of Legacy
Developer
Contributions
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

High

Issue/Status

PL 1802
Recommendati
on 1.2
Retrospective
review of
historic
developer
contribution
legal
agreements
Started

Agreed Management Action

Planning has worked with Finance to identify the status of
legacy contributions identified in 2015. Planning accepts that
the status of the remaining £2.3 million backlog needs to be
identified, and any associated actions identified and recorded.
Whilst an agreed implementation date of 30 September 2020 is
noted below, priority will be given to completing these actions
as quickly as possible.1. The audit recommendations detailed
above will be implemented. Finance and planning will work
together to determine the risk-based sample to be included in
the review. For the sample selected, Planning will determine
whether or not the terms of the agreement have been fulfilled
where agreements have been fulfilled, Finance will determine
whether developer contributions have been received and
applied. Where agreements have not been fulfilled and the
Council is holding developer funds, the management action
specified at 2.3 below will be applied.2. An internal record will
be maintained of agreements that have not been fulfilled to
prevent services from drawing down contributions to support
any development work. Developers will not be advised that
agreements are void and no longer applicable, as (under
legislation) only developers can seek to discharge the
agreement; and3. and 4 where agreements have not been
fulfilled and funds are held by the Council, the developer will be
contacted (where they can be traced) to ascertain whether they
would accept reimbursement of funds. Where this is the case,
a value should be agreed between the Council and the
developer that reflects interest and indexation (where
applicable) and reimbursed.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/01/2016
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Bruce
Nicolson
David Leslie
David Givan
George Gaunt
Graham Nelson
Hugh Dunn
Kevin McKee
Michael Thain
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nick Smith
Rebecca
Andrew

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Planning and S75
Developer
Contributions

142

Ongoing
management of
developer
contributions

High

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 222
143

Issue/Status

PL1802 Iss 3
Rec 3.2
Ongoing
maintenance
of developer
contributions

High

PL1803 Issue
1.1 Project
Plan
Started

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

All recommended actions will be implemented as set out above
(in IA recommendations).

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Hugh Dunn
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Rebecca
Andrew

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alison Roarty
Grace
McCabe
Heather Robb
Isla Burton
Julie Rosano
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey

Started

HMO Licensing
PL1803 Issue 1
Licensing system Data Integrity and
Performance
Issues

Agreed Management Action

Response from Digital Services Digital Services resources
have now been allocated to work with both the Licencing team
and CGI to progress the change request for the upgrade to
APP Civica CX, and this will involve developing a plan to
support implementation of the system upgrade that includes
details of all relevant activities to be completed and
implementation timeframes. Response from Licencing the
Place Directorate and Digital Services have made change
requests for CGI to provide analysis on the business benefits,
costs and risks of moving to the APP. These change requests
are outstanding from CGI from 2018. Upon receipt of this
analysis the Directorate will agree with the Resource
Directorate a project plan for approval by senior managers,

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

HMO Licensing

144

PL1803 Issue 1
Licensing system Data Integrity and
Performance
Issues

High

Started

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 223
145

PL1803 Issue
1.2 Escalation
of system
issues

HMO Licensing
PL1803 Issue 3 Operational
Performance and
Reporting
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Medium

PL1803 Issue
3.1 Inspection
revisit policy
Started

The Place Directorate has previously reported on operational
performance issues to the Regulatory Committee in 2018. The
Place Directorate will include a full assessment of system
issues with APP within a wider performance report due to be
submitted to Regulatory Committee in the last quarter of
2019/20. This report will include an update on proposed project
plan for APP Cx

It is not legally possible to refuse a licence application based
on number of visits as legislation requires that each case is
considered on its merits and any policy that removes discretion
would be at high risk of legal challenge. A new procedure is
currently being drafted that will ensure a consistent approach
and any decision on number of revisits is controlled by
managers of the service to reduce the number of unnecessary
revisits. We will amend current codes used in the APP Civica
licencing system to ensure a 3-stage process for inspection
and revisit is applied going forward. This will include creation
of: a new unique single action code for an Initial inspection a
new unique single action code for a Revisit inspection to offer a
7,14 21 or max 28-day time frame to complete any outstanding
works – only available after an initial inspection has taken
place a new unique action for a single Team Leader/Manager
Review Inspection – only available in exceptional cases where
additional guidance is sought by the inspector and must be
authorised by a team leader/manager

Dates
Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/03/2021
No of Revisions
1

Revised due date
to be further
agreed with
management and
updated

Estimated Date:
31/12/2019
Revised Date:
05/10/2020
No of Revisions
5

Contributor

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
George Gaunt
Grace
McCabe
Isla Burton
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
George Gaunt
Grace
McCabe
Isla Burton
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

HMO Licensing

146

PL1803 Issue 4
Training and
Guidance
Documentation

Low

Started

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO
Road Services
Improvement Plan

Page 224

147

PL1808 Issue 1.
Roads
Improvement Plan
financial operating
model and project
governance

High

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

148

Paul Lawrence,

PL1808 - 1.1
Roads Service
Improvement
Plan review
(including
financial
operating
model)

Dates

Contributor

Regulatory Services introduced a service specific induction
program for all teams in 2018 in order to ensure that all new
starts are appropriately supported. Written Induction packs for
the licensing service were created and will be used for all new
staff. The pack includes a 6-week training programme which
will be tailored for each new start depending on where they sit
within the service. The member of staff identified by the audit
had been assigned alternate duties was not therefore familiar
with the process. This has been addressed with the individual
concerned. Appropriate refresher briefings will be given for all
managers within the service.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/02/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Andrew Mitchell
David Givan
George Gaunt
Grace
McCabe
Isla Burton
Michael Thain
Sandra
Harrison

Accepted. The Roads Service Improvement Plan (the Plan) will
be reviewed following completion of the organisational
restructure and will consider the points noted in the
recommendation. A review of the financial operating model will
also be undertaken with the aim of embedding a new budget
structure for the service. Once completed the Plan business
case will be refreshed to reflect any significant changes.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/09/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/06/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Started

Road Services
Improvement Plan
PL1808 Issue 3.
Roads inspection,
defect
categorisation, and
repairs

PL1803 Issue
4.1 Induction
process

Agreed Management Action

Low

PL1808 - 3.2a)
Inspector
training and
qualifications
Started

1. Design and implement a training framework for all relevant
Inspectors in line with the newly adopted ‘Road Safety
Inspection and Defect Categorisation Procedure’

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/06/2020
No of Revisions
0

Alison Coburn
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Jamie Watson
Jordan Walker
Nicole Fraser
Sean Gilchrist

Executive Director
of Place and SRO
Road Services
Improvement Plan

149

PL1808 Issue 3.
Roads inspection,
defect
categorisation, and
repairs

Low

On appointment, the new Service Performance Coordinator
and Team Leader – Safety Inspections will work with Pitney
Bowes (the supplier of the Confirm system) to develop a new
process to plan and monitor safety inspection performance

Started

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 225
150

PL1808 - 3.3
Management
information for
planned
inspections

Road Services
Improvement Plan
PL1808 Issue 3.
Roads inspection,
defect
categorisation, and
repairs
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Low

PL1808 - 3.4
Authentication
protocol for the
Confirm
Connect
application
Started

An audit of all handsets will be undertaken, and any noncomplaint handsets will be removed and replaced

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals

151

Street Lighting Inventory and
Maintenance

Medium

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 226
152

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

PL1810 Issue
2: Rec 1 Street lighting
inventory
completeness
and electrical
testing results
Started

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals
Street Lighting Inventory and
Maintenance

Issue/Status

Medium

PL1810 Issue
2: Rec 2 Street Lighting
Inventory
Checks
Started

Agreed Management Action
Clear processes will be designed and implemented to ensure
that: all street lighting additions and removals are accurately
recorded on Confirm; electrical testing outcomes are
completely and accurately recorded on Confirm; and progress
with testing is accurately monitored and reconciled. These
processes will be included in the Street Lighting Operational
Guide (developed under Finding No 3 below). With this action
being inextricably linked with the ongoing Energy Efficient
Street Lighting Programme, implementation will be phased (on
a Ward by Ward basis) within six months of completion of each
Ward within the Programme, with full completion by 30 June
2022. It has been agreed with Internal Audit that an
implementation date of 20 December 2019 has been agreed
with Internal Audit, enabling them to perform sample testing
across the wards that have been completed at that time.
The processes (designed and implemented above) will include
a monitoring arrangement, with quarterly checks made to
confirm the completeness and accuracy of the inventory in
Confirm. With this action being inextricably linked with the
ongoing Energy Efficient Street Lighting Programme,
implementation will be phased (on a Ward by Ward basis)
within six months of completion of each Ward within the
Programme, with full completion by 30 June 2022. It has been
agreed with Internal Audit that an implementation date of 20
December 2019 has been agreed with Internal Audit, enabling
them to perform sample testing across the wards that have
been completed at that time.

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Estimated Date:
20/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
2

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Mark Love
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Mark Love
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals

153

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals:
Process and
quality assurance
documentation and
training

Low

PL1810 Issue
3 - Rec 1
Operation and
maintenance
procedures
Started

Street Lighting and Traffic Signals Operational Guides will be
developed, implemented, and reviewed to ensure that
processes align with current regulatory requirements.
Operational Guides will be implemented within six months of
implementation of the Roads Improvement Plan, or by 30
September 2019, whichever comes first.

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 227
154

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals
Traffic Signals:
Evidence of pre
installation design
and acceptance
testing
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Low

PL1810 Issue
4: Rec 1 Paperless
testing
checklist
Started

A checklist will be introduced to record all factory and site
acceptance testing and uploaded onto InView against the
appropriate asset. The checklist will record engineer
acceptance and review.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
31/12/2019
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Mark Love
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
2

Alan Simpson
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
Cliff Hutt
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
Gavin Brown
George Gaunt
Lindsey
McPhillips
Mark Love
Nicole Fraser
Robert Mansell
Tony Booth

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals

155

Traffic Signals:
Evidence of pre
installation design
and acceptance
testing

Low

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 228
156

PL1810 Issue
4: Rec 2 Guidance
supporting
testing
checklist

Workshop to be arranged to guide all relevant team members
on the processes for completion and retention of the checklist.

Started

Street Lighting and
Traffic Signals
Traffic Signals:
Evidence of pre
installation design
and acceptance
testing
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Low

PL1810
Issue4: Rec 3 Checklist
retention
procedures
Started

Processes for the completion and retention of the checklist to
be included in appropriate Operational Guide.

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
28/06/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Veronica
Wishart

Estimated Date:
01/02/2019
Revised Date:
01/03/2021
No of Revisions
3

Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Katy Miller
Martin Young
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Steven Wright

Estimated Date:
01/02/2019
Revised Date:
01/09/2019
No of Revisions
1

Adam Fergie
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Katy Miller
Martin Young
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Steven Wright

Fleet Review

157

Project
management and
governance
framework

High

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

3.
Recommendati
on - Project
Management
Framework
Started

Agreed. The guidance designed by Strategy and Insight will
be applied to support the Fleet project management
framework; Agreed – all documentation noted above will be
prepared to support the project; Project documentation will be
approved by the Project Board. Status reporting will be
provided to Strategy and Insight for inclusion in the CLT
Change Board pack; and agreed – actions will be documented;
allocated; and monitored to confirm their completion.

Drivers

Page 229

158

Management and
use of Driver
Permits and fuel
FOB cards

Medium

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Management
and use of
Driver Permits
and Fuel FOB
cards Rec 4

Fleet Services will perform an exercise to remove all historic
leavers from their database and advise the external third party
who performs the annual licence checks to ensure that no
subsequent checks are performed on former employees;

Started

Drivers

159

Recording and
addressing driving
incidents
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Medium

Recording and
addressing
driving
incidents Rec
3
Started

Quarterly analysis of driving incidents will be performed and
provided to Service Areas with a request that any recurring
themes or root causes are incorporated into ongoing driver
training;

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Estimated Date:
01/10/2019
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Adam Fergie
Alison Coburn
Claire Duchart
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Katy Miller
Martin Young
Nicole Fraser
Scott Millar
Steven Wright

A review of the office estate is underway by the Operational
Estates team to identify third party users and approach them to
seek appropriate leases or licences to allow them to occupy
the premises and ensure the Council is appropriately
reimbursed.

Estimated Date:
31/10/2018
Revised Date:
01/03/2026
No of Revisions
3

Audrey Dutton
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Lindsay
Glasgow
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

The Carer’s Agreement will be revised with assistance from
Legal and Risk service to ensure it complies with all
requirements. All current carers will be asked to sign a revised
agreement. The agreement will be revised on an annual basis
to take account of any relevant changes.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
3Closed

Angela Ritchie
Anne-Marie
Donaldson
Cathy Wilson
Kevin McKee
Mark Grierson
Tony Duncan

Drivers

160

Recording and
addressing driving
incidents

Medium

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 230

161

Recording and
addressing
driving
incidents

Six monthly reporting will be provided to the Corporate
Leadership Team together with details of relevant actions
taken.

Started

Asset Management
Strategy
Issue 1: Visibility
and Security of
Shared Council
Property

Medium

Review of
existing shared
property
Started

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources
Compliance with
IR35 and Right to
Work

162

RES1802: Issue 1.
IR35 Compliance
and Oversight
Framework

High

RES1802:
Issue 1.5
Daybreak
Carer’s
Agreements
Started

Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Certifications and
Software Licenses

163

RES1805 Licenses
and Certificates:
Issue 1 Governance and
Oversight

Medium

Started

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 231
164

1.1 Council Governance
and Oversight
of Certificates
and Licenses

Agreed Management Action

Council: Both Digital Services Management and CGI agree
that the issues relating to Certificates and Licenses must be
addressed. Digital Services Management will: ensure improved
Governance of the processes around this are undertaken,
reporting any issues through the Executive Board; and ensure
licenses are reduced/savings are realised where reduction or
improved management of licenses is practicable. 2. Although
not directly part of this action, more explicit requirements and
governance around certificates and licenses will form part of
any new or revised outsourcing contract.

Certifications and
Software Licenses
RES1805 Licenses
and Certificates:
Issue 1 Governance and
Oversight

Medium

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Certifications and
Software Licenses
165

High
RES1805 Licenses
and Certifications:
Issue 2 - Ongoing

1.2 CGI Reporting and
monitoring Licenses and
Certificates
Started

CGI will Provide improved reporting on licenses and usage to
Council Asset meetings. This will start no later than October
2019; At these meetings, also provide updates on certificate
management, highlighting any service impact/incident reports
caused by certificate issue; and Work with Council to provide a
relevant update for the Partnership Board/Executive meeting
on certificate and license management.

2.1
Completeness
and accuracy
of license
inventory
reports

CGI will Use the Microsoft SCCM Product to ensure that all
software installed in appropriately licensed Ensure that the
license report is reconciled back to source system data (where
applicable) and gain Council confirmation that they are
satisfied with the completeness and accuracy of the license
inventory. Update the Council at the fortnightly asset meetings

Dates
Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
2
Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.
Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
2
Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.
Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Julie Rosano
Laura Millar
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey
Stuart
Skivington

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Laura Millar
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey
Stuart
Skivington

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Julie Rosano
Laura Millar

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

management
Started
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

of any differences between installed and licensed software and
agree a course of action e.g. removal, reduction in licenses,
discussion with Services on usage This should start by the end
of October 2019.

Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.
No of Revisions
2

Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey
Stuart
Skivington

Certifications and
Software Licenses

Page 232

166

RES1805 Licenses
and Certifications:
Issue 2 - Ongoing
management
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

2.2 Thematic
certificates and
licenses
incidents
Started

CGI will report to the Council on service incidents that have
been caused by license or certificate issues where the root
cause is non/late renewal or incorrect implementation. This
should start no later than the end of October 2019 and will be
discussed at the monthly Partnership Forum. CGI and Digital
Services will then determine if the issues identified require a
process review.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
2Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Julie Rosano
Laura Millar
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey
Stuart
Skivington

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Out of Support
Technology and
Public Sector
Network
Accreditation

167

RES1807 - Issue 1:
Public Services
Network
governance
framework

Low

RES1807 - 1.1
Public
Services
Network
governance
arrangements
Started

Page 233

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Cyber Security Public Sector
Action Plan

168

Issue/Status

RES1808: Issue 1:
Critical Operational
Cyber Security
Controls
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Medium

RES1808:
Issue 1:
Recommendati
on 1.2 - Cyber
Essentials
Accreditation
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Digital Services Management has recognised the need to
review governance arrangements around PSN /Cybersecurity.
This will include Adapting the Security Working Group (SWG)
Assurance report, in conjunction with CGI, to be the single
report for all security assurance and accreditation matters
encompassing PNS, Cyber Essentials/Cyber Essentials Plus,
PSCAP and progress against Internal Audit findings. Working
with CGI to change the Security Management Plan to have
separate fortnightly SWG meetings to cover Operations and
Assurance: SWG Operations Group will review the Security
Operations Centre (SOC) and Security Operations Reports
(SOR)SWG Assurance Group will review Assurance, PSN,
Cyber Essentials/Cyber Essentials Plus and Audit Actions. To
enable this approach, we will work with the Commercial teams
from CGI and the Council to ensure that this approach is
acceptable under the terms of the Contract Ensuring that PSN
risks are included and highlighted in the Public Sector Network
Plan B report. These risks will also be added to the
Council/CGI partnership security risk log and reviewed as part
of this.

Estimated Date:
31/01/2020
Revised Date:
01/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Julie Rosano
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mike Brown
Nicola Harvey

CGI completed a complete manual vulnerability scan of the
estate in November 2018 Vulnerabilities identified from this
scan are being resolved as part of the Public Services Network
remediation action plan. CGI have been formally requested to
implement automated vulnerability scanning as a service. To
ensure this is in place in time for Cyber Essentials Plus
accreditation this automated vulnerability scanning is targeted
to be implemented by end of June 2019.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2019
Revised Date:
01/05/2021
No of Revisions
2

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mike Brown
Nicola Harvey

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Cyber Security Public Sector
Action Plan

169

RES1808: Issue 1:
Critical Operational
Cyber Security
Controls

Medium

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 234
170

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families

RES1808:
Issue 1:
Recommendati
on 4.1 - User
access
controls
Started

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments
RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas

Issue/Status

High

RES1809
Issue 1.1(3):
Completeness
and accuracy
of the contract
register - C&F
Started

Agreed Management Action

CGI indicated that the full recommendations made by the
external auditor could not be implemented without significant
change to the contract and at a notable additional cost. CGI
provided the Council and the External Auditors with details of
the current oversight of the CGI Wintel and UNIX password
policies. Current ongoing evidence of this oversight via the
Security Working Group will be provided to external audit, a
statement confirming the risk acceptance by the Executive
Director of Resources will be prepared, approved, signed, and
provided to Scott Moncrieff.

Communities and Families A review will be undertaken to
populate the contracts register with accurate details of named
officers for tier 1 contracts and Procurement will be notified so
that master contracts register can be updated. We will follow a
similar process to HSC and Place in relation to updating of the
register for tier 2, 3 and other value contracts at the point of
procurement, renewal, or submission of new waivers.

Dates
Estimated Date:
31/05/2019
Revised Date:
01/10/2019
No of Revisions
0
Agreed date to
be extended as
part of IA
Extension
Timeframes
exercise – date
to be advised by
Service.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1

Contributor

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Mike Brown
Nicola Harvey

Anna Gray
Claire
Thompson
David Hoy
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments

171

RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas

High

Issue/Status

RES1809
Issue 1.1(4):
Completeness
and accuracy
of the contract
register - Place

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Place A recent review of the contracts register was carried out.
However, an annual review of the contracts register will be
undertaken to ensure that the Council’s contracts register is
completely and accurately populated for all Place contracts,
with contract tiering assessments and accurate contract
manager details included.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Lynne
Halfpenny
Michael Thain

Health and Social Care Partnership These recommendations
have been accepted. The outcomes of the waiver review will
be presented to and discussed at the Procurement Board, and
appropriate action taken to address waivers that have been
consistently waived.

Estimated Date:
27/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alana Nabulsi
Angela Ritchie
Cathy Wilson
Moira Pringle
Sally
McGregor

Started
Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Page 235
172

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments
RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas
Judith Proctor,
Chief Officer

High

RES1809
Issue 1.4(2):
Review of
contract
waivers HSCP
Started

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

RES1809
Issue 1.4(3):
Review of
contract
waivers - C&F

Communities and Families Recommendations accepted. We
have reduced the need for waivers through the development of
framework arrangements and contracts that are in place.
However, we will review the waivers currently in place and
report this to Communities and Families Directorate Senior
Management Team meeting with the Corporate and
Procurement Services commercial partner.

Estimated Date:
27/03/2020
Revised Date:
01/11/2020
No of Revisions
1

Anna Gray
David Hoy
Michelle
McMillan
Nickey Boyle

Place Service area management teams currently receive this
information (at least on a quarterly basis) and this will continue,
with escalation of any issues to the Place SMT as appropriate.

Estimated Date:
31/03/2020
Revised Date:
31/12/2020
No of Revisions
1

Alison Coburn
David Givan
Gareth Barwell
George Gaunt
Lynne
Halfpenny
Michael Thain

Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments

173

RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas

High

Started

Page 236
174

Alistair Gaw,
Executive Director
of Communities
and Families
Supplier
Management
Framework and
CIS Payments
RES1809 Issue 1:
Contract
Management by
Directorates and
Service Areas

High

RES1809
Issue 1.4(4):
Review of
contract
waivers Place
Started

Paul Lawrence,
Executive Director
of Place and SRO

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Asset Management
Strategy and
CAFM system
18/19

Page 237

175

RES1813 Asset
Management
Strategy and
CAFM: Issue 3 Property and
Facilities
Management Data
Completeness;
Accuracy; and
Quality
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

3.1 Ensuring
Data
Completeness,
Accuracy, and
Quality
Started

Agreed Management Action
Current CAFM users have access to the operational data they
need in the system to perform their roles and are also updating
the CAFM system with new data. Whilst the vision is to have all
property data in CAFM, the volume of property data that could
be captured and recorded is near infinite, therefore property
data that will retained in CAFM has to be focused on the effort
and cost to collect versus the value it provides. The CAFM
Business Case includes requirement for a Data Quality
Manager, who will be the responsible data steward for Property
and Facilities Management (P&FM) data. Their role is not
necessarily to collect the data but to ensure rigor and control
over it. This will involve ensuring regular reviews of data within
the system and ensuring that data is managed and maintained
in line with the established CAFM data hierarchy and agreed
Council information management policies and procedures.
Sharing data steward responsibilities across services is
problematic, as they hold responsibility and accountability for
the data under their remit. It would be highly unlikely that a
data steward from another service would want to take on the
additional accountability of data from P&FM. We recommend
that P&FM establish their own data steward. The CAFM
Business Case includes the delivery of a Data Quality Strategy
for P&FM. The objective of the data quality strategy is to
attribute risk and value to the data maintained in the system.
Additionally: data change processes and procedures that
capture data processing and management in CAFM will be
designed and implemented. processes for reviewing data
quality, for example, review of condition survey data run in
tandem with review of property data every five years, will be
designed and implemented. data validation controls within
CAFM will be applied; and data quality audit controls for
individual data fields available in CAFM will be applied, and
audit reports run at an appropriate frequency to identify any
significant changes to key data.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2016
Revised Date:
01/08/2022
No of Revisions
1
Management
has proposed
closure by risk
acceptance –
discussions
with IA ongoing

Contributor

Alan Chim
Andrew Field
Audrey Dutton
Brendan Tate
Gohar Khan
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Issue/Status

Agreed Management Action

Asset Management
Strategy and
CAFM system
18/19

176

Page 238

RES1813 Asset
Management
Strategy and
CAFM: Issue 3 Property and
Facilities
Management Data
Completeness;
Accuracy; and
Quality
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

High

3.2 Resolution
of known data
quality issues
Started

A reconciliation of the two lists has been performed and there
are no obvious discrepancies other than properties which are
out with the scope of the survey team. The viability of
establishing a referencing system for concessionary lets in the
CAFM system will be explored. The volume and value of
known concessionary lets across the Council Estate will form
part of the Annual Investment Portfolio update which is
reported to the Finance and Resources committee. There is an
ongoing work stream looking at vacant and disposed
properties and the systems updates required.

Dates

Estimated Date:
31/03/2016
Revised Date:
01/08/2022
No of Revisions
2
Management
has proposed
closure by risk
acceptance –
discussions
with IA ongoing

Contributor

Alan Chim
Andrew Field
Audrey Dutton
Brendan Tate
Gohar Khan
Graeme
McGartland
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Peter Watton

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

CGI Subcontract
Management C/f
2018/19

177

1 Council oversight
of CGI subcontract
management

Page 239

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Medium

Issue/Status

1.1
Assessment of
the criticality of
CGI subcontractors
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Digital Services will: Perform a review, with the assistance of
CGI where appropriate, of the remaining population of 65 subcontractors that are not currently classified as key subcontractors to determine whether they should be reclassified
as ‘key sub-contractors’ based on the criticality of their role in
supporting delivery of Council services, or the value of their
contracts in comparison to the aggregate charges forecast
included in the CGI contract. This review will consider the
criticality of Council applications and infrastructure supported
by these sub-contractors in comparison to divisional
application and system recovery requirements and will ensure
that the gaps noted in the CNT spreadsheet in relation to
missing contractors; expired purchase orders; and criticality of
applications have been addressed. Where the review
highlights any significant changes, the outcomes will be
provided to the relevant Council and CGI partnership
governance forums together with a request that CGI
implements the supplier management arrangements specified
in the contract to any new key sub-contractors. Review of CGI
sub-contractors will be scheduled for completion annually, and
the process outlined above applied.

Estimated Date:
30/04/2020
Revised Date:
01/01/2021
No of Revisions
1

Alison Roarty
Heather Robb
Jackie
Galloway
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan
Nicola Harvey

Ref

Project/Owner

Issue
Type

Budget Setting and
Management

178

RES 1903 Issue 4:
Training for budget
managers

Medium

Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Page 240
179

Issue/Status

RES 1903
Issue 4.1:
Training for
budget
managers
Started

Agreed Management Action

Dates

Contributor

Finance is not currently responsible for providing training for
budget managers as this was centralised into, Learning and
Development in 2016. However, following discussions earlier
this year, it has been agreed that responsibility for budget
managers training will transfer back from Learning and
Development to Finance. Once these responsibilities have
been transferred, Finance will establish a process to ensure
that all first line budget managers have completed the two
training modules with supporting checks performed to ensure
that the training has been completed. Please note that the
‘Evidence required to close’ listed above is for indicative
purposes only. During Internal Audit's review of any evidence
submitted, further supporting evidence may be required to
close the action. Evidence should be uploaded to TeamCentral
as actions progress and no later than 10 working days before
agreed implementation date. This will allow Internal Audit
sufficient time to review the evidence.

Estimated Date:
30/09/2020
Revised Date:
01/02/2021
No of Revisions
0

Alison Henry
Annette Smith
Hugh Dunn
John Connarty
Layla Smith
Michelle
Vanhegan

Estimated Date:
31/05/2020
Revised Date:
30/10/2020
No of Revisions
1

Adam Fergie
Caroline Bayne
Katy Miller
Layla Smith
Louise
Hitchings
Margaret-Ann
Love
Michelle
Vanhegan

Budget Setting and
Management
RES 1903 Issue 4:
Training for budget
managers
Stephen Moir,
Executive Director
of Resources

Medium

RES 1903
Issue 4.2:
CECiL training
module
Started

This is underway and will be completed by the end of May
2020.

